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June 10. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

#1 Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend existing
contfacts, some of which are not.Sole Source as Indicated in italics, with the vendors listed below
in bold for the continuation of Student assistance Program sen/ices at the middle and high school
leveie, by increasing the total price limitation by $1,258,907 from $2,859,021 to $4,117,928 and
by extending the completion dates from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021.100% Federal Funds.
0% General Funds.

The Governor and Council approved the
amendments as indicated in the table below.

original agreements and subsequent

Vendor Name Vendor

Code .

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Mohadnock

Family
Services

177510 Kee/ie $101,118 $47,178 $14$,296

0:09/13/17,
(Item 016)

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item, 029 A)

North

Country
Education

Services

154707 Gorham $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

0: 9/20/18,
(Item 023)

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item 029A)

North

Country
Health

Consortium

158557 Littleton $600,000 $300,000 $900,000

O: 9/20/13,
(Item 023)

A1:6/19/19,
(Iteth 029A)

SAU 08

Claremont

School

District

177374 Claremont $62,940 $46,500 $109,440

0; 12/05/18,
(Item 021)

A1: 8/28/19,
(Item #13)
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SAU18

FrankUn

School

District

)

159863 Franklin $291,143 $91,143 $382,286

0:9/13/17,
(Itom

A1:6/19/19,
(Item #29AJ

SAU30

Laconia

School

District

177240 Laconia $299,985 $39,995 $399,980

0:9/13/17,
(Item 1116}

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item, n29A)

SAU33
Raymond
School

District

159945 Raymond $299,945 $99,990 }399,935
O: 9/13/17,
(Item #16>

A1:6/19/19,
(Item 1I29A}

SAU 37

. Manchester

School District
177323 Manchester $200,000 $0 $200,000

O: 12/5/18,
(Item #29A)

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item #29A)

SAU 54

Rochester

School

District

in467 Rochester $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

O: 9/20/18,
(Item i$23)

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item #29A)

SAU 61

Farmlngton
School

District

160001 Farmlngton $300,000 $100,000 $400,0<^

0:9/13/17,
(Item 916}

A1: 6/19/19,
r/fem n29A)

Second Start 177224 Concord $303,890 $274,101 $577;991

0:9/13/17,
(ttemff16)

A1: 6/19/19,
(Item 029A)

-

Total: $2,859,021 $1,258,907 $4,117,928

#2 Authorize the Departmerit of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend existing
Sole Source contracts \with the vendors listed below for the provision of drug and alcohol misuse
prevention through Student Assistance Programs at the middle and high school levels, by
increasing the total price limitation by $595,000 from $715,000 to $1,310,000 and by extending
the completion dates from June 30, 2020 to June 30. 2022. 97% Federal Funds. 3% General
Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Seacoast

Youth

Services

203944 Seabrook $140,000 $140,000 $280,000

0; 9/20/18,
(Item 023)

A1: 7/10/19,
(Item 015)
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SAU17

Sanbom

School

District

154453 Kingston $75,000 $75,000 $150,000

0: 9/20/18,

(Item #23)

A1: 6/19/19,
(ltem#29A)

SAU 52

Portsmouth

School

District

177463 Portsmouth $140,000 $140,000 $280,000

0: 9/20/18,
(Item #23)

A1: 6/19/19,

(Item #29A)

SAU 43

Newport

School District
159924 Newport $120,000 $0 $120,000

0: 12/5/18,
(Item #21)

A1:9yi8/19.
(Item #17)

SAU 64

Milton

School

District

156682 Milton $100,000 $100,000 $200,000

0: 9/20/18,

(Item #23)

A1:7/10/19,
(Item #15)

SAU 9

Conway
School

District

159846 North

Conway
$140,000 $140,000 $280,000

0:9/20/18,
(Item #23)

A1; 6/19/19,
(ltem#29A)

Total: $715,000 $596,000, $1,310,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified. The Partnership for Success grant funding is anticipated to be available
in State Fiscal Year 2021. effective October 1. 2020.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request includes contracts that are Sole Source because vendors have effectively
operated the Student Assistance Program for three (3) to five (5) years. Research dempnstrates
that substance rnisuse prevention education is most successful vrtien the program is delivered in
a consistent manner over a course of five (5) plus years to affect each cohort of grades.
Additionally, the New Harripshire Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services must demonstrate
sustained outcomes through the grant periods in order to continue receiving Federal funding.

The contracts that are not sole source were competitively bid and contain renewal
language in Exhibit C-1 that allovifs the Department to renew the contract for up to two (2) years,
subject to continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written
authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in
agreement with renewing services for the second (2'*') year of the two (2) year renewal option.
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The purpose of this request is to continue Student Assistance Programming using the
evidenced based Project Success in twenty (20) high schools; twenty-three (23) middle schools;
and one (1) community college. The Contractors will effectively serve up to 23,333 New
Hampshire youth in high need communities in order to prevent and reduce underage drinking,
high risk drinking and the use of non-medical prescription drugs including oploids and Illicit drug
use.

This request includes 15 of 17 agreements listed in the table above. The Department
anticipates the remaining 2 agreements will be presented at the July 8. 2020 Governor and
Executive Council meeting.

The Contractors conduct alcohol and other drug screenings, individual support
sessions, group support sessions, and referrals to drug and alcohol treatment providers when
indicated by the screening. Additionally, the Contractors provide students and parents with
target^ drug and alcohol education to improve understanding of risks associated with
prescription drug and underage alcohol use as well as the developmental milestones and brain
development of adolescents. The Contractors incorporate community level media strategies as
well as other approaches shown to impact the culture and overall wellbeing of the community.

Student Assistance Programs work coliaboratively with the Department and the NH,Center
for Excellence to improve the quality of services to students and to collect data for the purposes
of data driven decisions on school-based prevention programming. Based on the Youth Risk
Behavior Surveillance Sun/ey trend data from 2013 to 2017 results for the schools indicate
statistically significant changes in the following:
•  Increase in students' perception of risk for the use of alcohol and non-medical prescription

drugs.
•, Increase In student's reporting parent and peer disapproval for the use of alcohol and non-

medical presaiption drugs.
The follovying perfprmance measures/objectives will continue to be used to measure the
effectiveness of the contracts:

•  There will be an increase in the percentage of students who report a high risk of harm for
using substances (alcohoi. marijuana, non-medicai prescription drugs, and heroin) on the
Youth Risk Surveillance Survey (YRBS).

•  There will be an increase in the percentage of students who report their parents/caregivers
and peer would disapprove if they used substances on the YRBS.

•  There will be a decrease in the percentage of students who report they used substances
(alcohol, non-medical prescription drugs and heroin) in the past 30 days on the YRBS.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. 23,333 students, statewide,
may not receive the support and substance misuse prevention education needed;during critical
adolescent development years. Lack of these support services could result in: higher prevalence
rate s.of underage drinking and drug use; misuse and abuse of prescription medication; and an
escalation in adverse childhood experiences, such as a trauma related to parental/caregiver
substance abuse.

Area served: Statewide.
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Source of Funds: Source of Funds: 98.93% Federal Funds from the Department of Health
& Human Services (DHHS), Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
Block Grant (SAPT) CFDA #93.959 FAIN #TI010035 & TI083041 and DHHS. SAMHSA. Center
for Substance Abuse Prevention, NH Partnership for Success Initiative (PFS2) CFDA #93.342
FAIN #SP020796and 1.07% General Funds

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt'

A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join conxmunlties and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

0S-9S-92-920510-33800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, H^LTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, PREVENTION SVS

97% Federal Funds 3% General Funds

CFDA # 93-959

FAIN TI010035 and TI083041

VE #159846-6001 PC #1070318

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 • - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 70,000 - 70.000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 21,049 - 21,049

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ 70,000 70,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ 70.000 70.000

Sub Total 91,049 140.000 231.049

Milton School District SAU #64 VE # 156682-B001 PO#1064299

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 50,000 - 50.000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 15,035 - 15,035

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ 50.000 50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 50.000 50.000

Sub Total 65,035 100,000 165.035

Newport School District SAU #43 VE # 159924.B001 PO #1065161

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • •

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 60,000 - 60,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 60,000 - 60,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - •

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 , . -

Sub Total 120,000 - 120.000

North Country Health Consortium VE # 158557-B001 PO #1064300

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / /\ccount Class Tide Job Number
Cun-ent Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 100.000 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - •

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

Sub Total 100.000 100.000
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NH OHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

Portsmouth School Dlsrlct SAU #52 VE # 17746S-B006 PC #1064301

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ - ■

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 70,000 • 70,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 21,049 - 21,049

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 70,000 70,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 70,000 70,000

Sub Total 91.049 140.000 231,049

Sanbom Regional School Dlstrlc SAU #17 VE# 154453-8001 PO #1064303

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - ■ •

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 37,500 ■ 37.500

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 11,276 • 11,276

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 37,500 37,500

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 37,500 37,500

Sub Total 48,776 75,000 123,776

Seacoast Youth Services VE # 203944-B001 PO #1064302

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title J^ Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - ■ -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 70,000 -
70,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 21,049 • 21,049

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 70,000 70,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 70,000 70,000

Sub Total 91,049 140,000 231,049

Second Start VE # 177224-B002 PO #1064304

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Inaeased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 42,500 • 42,500

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 • -

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - 25,000 25,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ - ■

Sub Total 42,500 25.000 67.500

SUB TOTAL PREVENnONT 649,458 620,000 1,269.458
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NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF.DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. CLINICAL SVS

66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds

CFDA # 93-959

FAIN T1010035

I School District SAU #9 VE #159846-6001 PC #1070318

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057502 - - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 48,951 - 48,951

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

Sub Total 48.951 - 48.951

Milton School District SAU #64 VE# 156682-8001 PO #1064299

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 . -

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 34.965 34,965

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services . 92057502 - -

2022 102/500731' Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

Sub Total 34.965 34.965

Newport School District SAU #43 VE# 159924-B001 PO #1065161

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 -

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - -

Sub Total - -

North Country Health Consortium VE# 158557-B001 PO #1064300

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • - -

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2022 i 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 ■ - -

Sub Total * - ■
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NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

Portsmouth School DIsrtct SAU #52 VE #177463-8006 PC #1064301

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services -92057502 - • -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • -

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 48,951 -
48,951

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • -

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services . 92057502 - • •  •

Sub Total 48,951 - 48.951

Sanbom Reolonal School District SAU #17 VE #154453-6001 PO #1064303

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2019 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 • - •

2020 102/5X731 . Contracts for Program Services 92057502 26,224
-

26,224

2021 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2022 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - ■ •

Sub Total 26; 224 -
26,224

Seacosst Youth Services VE # 203944-8001 PO #1064302

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Utie Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Inaeased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2016 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - •  • -

2019 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2020 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 48,951 -

48,951

2021 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • •

2022 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - • -

Sub Total 48,951 - 48,951

Second Start VE #177224-8002 PO#1064304

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/5X731. Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2019 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 • - ■

2020 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

2021 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 • - •

2022 102/5X731 Contracts for Program Services 92057502 - - -

Sub Total - •
-

SUB TOTAL PREVENTIONT 208,042 208,042
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NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95*92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, PFS2 GRANT

100% Federal Funds

CFDA# 93.243

FAIN SP020796

Claremont School District SAU #6 VE# 177374-8005 PC #1065162

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) /Vnount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 31.470 31,470

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 31.470 ■ 31,470

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 46,500 46,500

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92052407 • - ■

Sub Total 62.940 46,500 109,440

Farmlngton School Diet SAU 61 VE #160001-8001 PO #1069091

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Deaeased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 • 100,000

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 - 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 - 100,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 -
100,000 100,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - -

Sub-Total 300,000 100,000 400,000

Franklin School District VE #159863-8001 PO #1058310

State

Fiscal

Year

. Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 • 100,000

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 • 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 91,143 • 91,143

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 91,143 91,143

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - -

Sub Total 291,143 91,143 382.286

Laconia School DIst VE #177420-8001 PO #1058311

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/5M731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 99,995 V. 99,995

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 99,995 ■ 99,995

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 • 99,995 - 99,995

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 -
99,995 99,995

2022 102/5M731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - ■ -

Sub Total 299,985 99.995 399,980

Manchester School District SAU #37 VE# 177323-8003 PO #1065163

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - •

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 100,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - -

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - -

Sub Total 200,000 - 200,000

Monadnock Family Services VE #177510-8001 PO#1058318
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NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Deaeased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 36,762
•

36,762

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 32,178 ■
32,178

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 32,178 -
32,178

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 47,178 47,178

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 . - ■

Sub Total 101,118 47.178 148,296

North Countrv Education Services VE #154707-8001 PO #1064306

State

Fiscai

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased -

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - • -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 - 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 -
100,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 100,000 100,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - -
•

Sub Total 200,000 100.000 300,000

North Countrv Health Consortium VE #158557-8001 PO #1064300

State

Fiscai

Year

Class / Account Class Title J^ Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - •

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 200,000 ■ 200,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 300,000 -
300,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 300,000 300,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - -

Sub Total 500,000 300,000 800,000

Raymond School Oist Sau 33 VE#159945-B001 PO #1058319

State

Fiscal.

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 99,965 • 99,965

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 99,990 - 99.990

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 99,990 • 99,990

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 99,990 99,990

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - ■

Sub Total 299,945 99.990 399,935

Rochester School District SAU #54 VE # 177463-8006 PO #1064305

State

Fiscai

Year

Class / Account • Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - • -

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 - 100,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 100,000 -
100,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - 100,000 100,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 - - •

Sub Total 200.000 100.000 300,000

Second Start VE# 177224-8002 PO #1064304

State

Fiscai

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 -

. 2019 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 62,289 - 62,289

2020v 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 199,101 - 199,101

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 • 249,101 249,101

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052407 ■ - -

Sub Total 261,390 249,101 510.491

\

SUB TOTAL PFS2I 2,716,521 1,233.907 3,950,428

Page 6 of 7



NH DHHS STUDENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SAP) CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

I  TOTAL CONTRACTI I 3,574,021 1 1,853,907 | 5,427,928

Page 7 of 7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student /^sistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2nd Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
(hereinafter referred to as the "State".or "Department") and Monadnock Family Services, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a domestic nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 64 Main St,
Keene, 03431.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 13, 2017, (Item #16), as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$148,296.

3. Exhibit B, Amendment #1. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section'4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Monadnock Family Services Amendment #2 • Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUOE-04-A02 Pago 1 of 3 Date '>1.^1^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendn^nts not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date

<57/

State of New Hampshire
Department of Healtp-and Human Services

Name:

Title: ̂

Monadnock Family Services

Date Name:

Title:

1

Monadnock Family Services

RFA.2018-BDAS-02-STUDe-04-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student /^sistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 9, 2020 O
Date l^me:

Title; Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Monadnock Family Services Amendment tt2

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-04-A02 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MONADNOCK FAMILY

SERVICES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 05, 1924.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

fur as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62930

Certificate Number: 0004888363

SJ op

B&.

•T*-

-1^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be uffixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOih day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Aaron Moody, Secretary , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of. .Monadnock Family Services
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 19. 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That .Philip Wyzik, CEO.
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of Monadnock Family Services.
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

to enter into contracts or agreements

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the'corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the §^e of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 20 May 2020
icerSignature of Elected

Name: Jl
Title: ^

s,;?'//

W-^o. / I

9

Rev. 03/025/2020



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMXMyVYYY)

05/20/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsemontis). ,

PRODUCER

Brown & Brown of New Hampshire

309 Daniel Webster Highway

MerrimacK NH 03054

^wcT patnda LeBlanc

Sn". P.,- (003) 424-9901 | (886) 848-1223
^MSS- pleb1anc@bbnhlns,com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAQE ' NAtca

iNSiiRpRA' The Hanover insurance Company 22292

INSURED

Monadnock Family Services Inc

64 Main Street

Keene .NH 03431

INSURER B: Ailmerica Finencial Benefit Insurance Company 41840

INSURER c: Technology Insurance Company. Inc. " 42378

INSURER D: Massachusetts Boy Insurance Company . 22306

INSURER E :

INSURER F ;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMEFTT WITH RESPECT TO ViHfCH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIOED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXaUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

lilM
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

'J'l'ULTi'!;
POLICr NUMBER

. POUCY EFF
iMM/oormYi

^OOCYEXP
!MM!OOirYYYY> UUITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OGNERAL LIABILITY

€ 1 Xl OCCUR

Y ZDV 0380398-02 09/01/2019 09/01/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1,000.000

icLAIMS-MAO
□AMAUEIOKbNIfcU
PREMISES (Ea emjWKet' , 100,000

MEO EXP lAnv on* oaraoni , 10,000

PERSONAL &ADV INJURY , 1,000,000

G£>rL MSOREGATE UMIT APPUES PER; GENERALAGGREOATE , 3,000.000

POUCY 1_J LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG , 3.000,000
t

8

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY 1

AWV 0360674-02 09/01/2019 09/01/2020

COMBINEO SiNGLE UMtT
(EaacdMnd

% 1,000,000

X ANY AUTO

:heouleo
ITOS
>fW3WNED
ITOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parion) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
AtJ

BODILY INJURY (Par acddani)

NC
Al

PROPERTY OAUACE
iPeraccMaMi $

Medical payments t 5,000

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE UHV 0360401-02 09/01/2019 09/01/2020
EACH OCCURRENCE , 2,000,000

AGGREGATE
, 2,000.000

1 OEO 1 X| RETENTION S. ^ 1 s

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnve (-H
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUOED?
(Mindatofy In NH)
If ya*. und«r
DKCfil PTiON OF OPERATIONS betew

N/A TWC3823009 09/01/2019 09/01/2020

■V PER I Vl OTH-^ ftTATIITF 1 ̂  FR 3A State: NH

E.L. EACHACCI0FN7 , 500.000

E.L. DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE , 500,000

EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT , 500.000

D
Human Services Professional Liability

ZDV 0380398-02 09/01/2019 09/01/2020

Each Claim

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS! LOCATIONS rvEHICI.ES (ACORO 101, AddlliontI RtmATk* ScliMul*. miy M itUelwd U mor* iptca ii raqulrtO)

General Liability: Certiricale holder is an addlUonel insured when required by written contract Employees & Volunteers ere an additional insured.
All Bcensod staff, clinicians, except for doctors/psychiatrists are covered under the Monadnock Family Services policies while employed at Monadnock
Family Service. This Professional Liability provides Contingent Coverage for Monadnock Family Services for'actions of the doclor/psychiatrisf named in the
suit. Primary coverage for the doctor/psychiatrist Is not provided however is veriFied to be elsewhere.

State of NH Dept of Health end Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

CoTKord NH 03301
■  1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

G1986-2016ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Our mission is to be a source of health and

hope for people and the communities in which
they live. We foster mental and emotional
wellness for individuals of all ages. We create
services that heal, education that transforms,
and advocacy that brings a just society.
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DOMai . CONCORD

To the Board of Directors of

Monadnock Family Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Monadnock Family Services,
Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),' which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of cash flows, and the
notes to the financial statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Management's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures-selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Monadnock Family Services. Inc. as of June 30, 2019
and 2018, and Its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in its net assets
for the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Monadnock Family Services, Inc.'s June 30, 2018 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated October 5, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The schedule of functional revenues on pages 18 - 20 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the,auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing ,and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. -

October 31, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICFS INC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries, wages, and related expenses
Refundable advance

Other current liabilities

Due to affiliates

I  ■
Total liabilities

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equivalents $  1,129,329 $  1,253,641
Accounts receivable:

Client fees 309,150 190,060

Medicaid and Medicare 266,341 259,762

Insurance 84,409 60,994

Other 344,184 113,609

Allowance for doubtful accounts (385,497) (267,102)
Prepaid expenses 10^687 57,163

Total current assets 1.851.503 . 1,668,127

PROPERTY ■ /
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 465,669 475,199'
Vehicles 194,863 183,790

Building and leasehold improvements 131,596 159,459

Total 792,128 818,448
Less accumulated depreciation 535.393 661.425

Property, net 256,735 157,023

OTHER ASSETS

■  Interest in net assets of Foundation 1,029,832 828,482

Total other assets 1,029,832 828,482

163,631

381,710

320,093

65,876

552,139

1,483,448

69,235

338,323

461,097

65,521

187,225

1,121,401

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

1,399,625

254,997

1,654,622

1,246,014

286,217

1,532,231

$  313flQ70 s

See Notes to Financial Statements

3



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue

Program service fees , $ 9,160,937 $ $  9,160,937 $  8,447,297

Other public support 570,423 - 570,423 38,490

Federal funding 561,592 - 561,592 679,095

Donations 299,902 - 299,902 251,949

United Way 208,012 - 208,012 191,208

Local/County government 182,439 - 182,439 197,247

Program sales 87,739 - 87,739 . 72,424

Rental income 2,338 - ,  2,338 2,807

Net gain on beneficial interest
f

in Foundation 186,638 14,712 201,350 194,494

Other income 72,251 , 72,251 9,055

11,332,271 ■ 14,712 - 11,346,983 • • 10,084,066

Net assets released from restriction 45,932 (45,932) -
-

Total public support and revenue . 11,378,203 (31,220) • 11,346,983 10,084,066

Expenses

Program services

Children & adolescents 2,578,426 - 2,578,426 2,186,563

Multi-service team 1,767,386 - 1,767,386 1,507,656

ACT team 883,226 - 883,226 858,393

Maintenance 862,688 - 862,688 699,037

Other non-BBH 769,447 - 769,447 764,141

Emergency services/assessment 734,862 - 734,862 704,342

Older adult services 478,031 - 478,031 431,845

Community residence 482,577 - 462,577 439,231

Intake 269,475 - 269,475 262,311

Supportive living 176,066 - 176,066 174.787

. Vocational services ,  169,095 - 169,095 116,884

Non-eligibles 163,183 - 163,183 148,998

Restorative partial hospital 38,151 - 38,151 52,123

Community education & training 10,276 10,276 56,446

.  Supporting activities

Administration 1,861,703 - 1,861,703 1,415,066

Total expenses 11,224,592 11,224,592 9,817,823

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 153,611 (31,220) 122,391 266,243

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,246,014 286,217 1,532,231 1,265,988

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR S  1 £ 2S4 Q97 £ 1 fiS4 fi22 £ 1 s:^2 2:^1

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30^2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in allowance for doubtful accounts

' Gain on beneficial interest in Foundation

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payaljie

Accrued salaries, wages and related expenses

Refundable advance

Other current liabilities

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY, OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in due to affiliates, net

Property and equipment additions

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest

2019

$  122,391

43,367

118,395

(201,350)

(379,659)

(46,424)

94,396

43,387

(141,004)

354

(346.147)

364,914

(143,079)

221.835

(124,312)

1,253,641

2018

$  266,243

66,140

(64,322)

(194,494)

(520)

7,880

(34,212)

34,113

(111,714)

46,070

15,184

48,753

(45,148)

3,605

18,789

1,234,852

S  1129 329 S 1?53fi41

J2Z

See Notes to Financial Statements

5



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC. Continued

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Children &

Maintenance Adolescents

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages $ 609,756 $ 1,657,246

Employee benefits 105,198 408,429

Payroll taxes 44.876 121,249

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Substitute staff 250 8,299

Audit fees 2,401 7,757

Legal fees 1,287 6,621

Other professional fees 154 38,695

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications 26 932

In-service training

Conferences and conventions, 3,592 6,623

Other staff development 1,007 1,409

OCCUPANCY COSTS

•Rent 45,311 145,252

Heating costs -

Repairs and maintenance 391 275

Other occupancy costs 6,847 21,524

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment . 5,641 7,523

Building and household ^ 1,356 1,907

Educational and training 12

Food 228 7,028

Medical supplies 208 409

Other consumable supplies 12,570 37,008

DEPRECIATION 134 280

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,783 7,901

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 762 2,289

ADVERTISING 351 653

PRINTING 271 , 47-7

TELEPHONE 7,974 25,035

POSTAGE 1,078 2,944

TRANSPORTATION •

Staff 1,775 34,785

Clients 19

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

Client services 141 6,241

INSURANCE

Malpractice and bonding 3,271 6,624

Vehicles - .

Comprehensive property and liability 4,019 12,986

MEMBERSHIP DUES

INTEREST EXPENSE

CONTRIBUTION EXPENSE

OTHER - ^

Older Adult

Services

$ 331,607

60,659

24,070

1,440

1,179

10

931-

256

20,495

190

3,089

1,241

422

528

6,222

7,023

87

621

454

218

105

5,105

338

7,594

158

3

1,574

2,412

Intake

$  173,181

44,477

13,146

1,190

103

13

236

191

16,656

135

2,805

1,436

421

242

5

5,797

72

1,986

399

42

102

3,994

241

200

2

410

1,993

Emergency

Services/

Assessment

$  512,790

104,744

37,525

233

2,014

349

8

2,157

294

32,015

279

4,771

2,046

587

135

272

10,588

130

622

72

151

10,214

522

5,875

35

90

2,973

3,371

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

$  27,931

5,591

2,028

151

110

20

32

3

111

109

115

54

706

30

5

46

657

9

137

52

254

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 862 688 $ 2 578 426 S 478 031 $ 269 475

See Notes to Financial Statements



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC Continued

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Vocational

Services

Multi-Service

Non-Eliatbles Team

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Substitute staff

Audit fees

Legal fees

Other professional fees

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications

In-service training

Conferences and conventions

Other staff development

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent

Heating costs

Repairs and maintenance

Other occupancy costs

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment

Building and household

Educational and training

Food

Medical supplies

Other consumable supplies

DEPRECIATION

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

ADVERTISING

PRINTING

TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

TRANSPORTATION

Staff

Clients

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

Client services

INSURANCE

Malpractice and bonding

Vehicles

Comprehensive property and liability

MEMBERSHIP DUES

INTEREST EXPENSE

CONTRIBUTION EXPENSE

OTHER

104,837

27,945

7,581

50

276

174

1,577

50

17,999

19

689

249

70

196

41

1.470

65

11

18

2,067

44

2,471

141.

583

463

105,378

28,751

7,753

500

224

1,054

417

8,908

58

1,154

195

146

48

66

2

2,532

24

878

169

336

51

1,579

137

1,707

172

836

102

$ 1,112,376

259,007

81,321

1,041

5,371

3,439

72,266

426

12,813

879

58,486

363

9,264

7,875

1,511

2,461

639

28,127

134

3,620

1,364

545

484

27,319

.1,439

35,457

205

20,136

9,213

213

8,992

150

450

ACT

Team

$  586,748

90,840

41,949

2

3,340

• 2,051

103

'1,472

173

73,936

456

10,762'

2,438

981

708

766

16,259

212

1,024

457

233

15,999

877

12,858

1,560

10,231

1,165

5,591

35

Community

Residence

308,207

67,432

23,019

36

1,558

973

277

174

285

7,982

1,192

231

1,361

3,637

22,919

686

7,548

1,353

501

60

36

7,370

189

593

266

8

884

1,192

2,608

Supportive

Living

$  6,446

2,415

438

164,890

28

837

2

1

362

2

71

36

10

177

1

6

4

15

112

91

63

10

47

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 16S,Q9{? . £ 163 183 $ 1 7fi7 £ 883 226 $ 46? 577 S 17finfiR

See Notes to Financial Statements ■



MONADNQCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Community
Education &

Training

PERSONNEL COSTS

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Substitute staff

Audit fees

Legal fees
Other professional fees

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Journals and publications

In-service training

Conferences and conventions

Other staff development

OCCUPANCY COSTS

Rent

Heating costs

Repairs and maintenance '

Other occupancy costs

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

Office supplies and equipment

Building and household

Educational and training

Food

Medical supplies

Other consumable supplies

DEPRECIATION '

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

ADVERTISING

PRINTING

TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

Tf^VNSPORTATION

Staff ,
Clients"

ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS

Client sen/Ices

INSURANCE

Malpractice and bonding

Vehicles

Comprehensive property and liability

MEMBERSHIP DUES

INTEREST EXPENSE

CONTRIBUTION EXPENSE

OTHER

$ 6,918

667

527

727

1.433

Other

Non-BBH

415.514

70.439

31,653

2.349

738

17.889

380

1,185

918

66.107

1.125

4,233

5,119

2,258

16.378

1,498

15,606

18!967

1,305

10.176

8,411

10.179

2,776

.1,165

29.667

1,429

808

3,576

4,243

852

22,504

Total

Programs

5,958.934

1,276,594

437,135

174,801

28,375

18,085

129,024

2,184

32,542

7,312

493,543

4,488

65,551

35,269

13.421

60

50,891

10,802

145,412

21,402

16,789

8,990

12,930

10,400

117,605

10,685

104,680

31,910

38.422

27.739

4.981

47,815

1.104

23.014

Administration

S  659,630

156,414

47,065

2,025

3,624

91,257

491

3,899

1,150

106,044

255

26,123

5,508

1,168

226

33,781

21,965

1,860

29,314

8,072

1,669

13,580

1,649

5,836

17

697

3.502

2.226

987

600.000

31.669

2019

Totals

6.618.564

1.433.008

484,200

174.801

30.400

21,709

220,281

2.675

36.441

8,462

599,587

4.743

91,674

40.777

14,589

60

51,117

10.802

179.193

43,367

18.649

38,304

21.002

12.069

131.185

12.334

110.516

31.927,

38,422

28.436

4,981

51,317

3,330

987

600,000

54,683

2018

Totals

5.901,725

1,269,250

433,032

204,618

38,099

15,081

135.031

3,357

492

20,645

5,906

574.774

2,376

9.004

87,789

35.148

9,695

508

•  49,059

11,977

39,609

66,140

19,520

34,813

39,818

8,979

143,246

12.561

106.476

25.392

44,196

42.401

4,079

.  39,162

3.759

422

325,000

54,684

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES L 10.276 769 447 £ 9362889 S 1.861.703 S 11.224.592 £ 9.817.823

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MONADNQCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

1. ORGANIZATION OF THE CORPORATION

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit corporation, organized
under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related
non-mental health programs.

The Organization operates in the Monadnock region of the State of New Hampshire.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Monadnock Family Services, Inc. have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables
and other assets and liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used at the
discretion of the Organization's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the
funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterhents and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.



Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor, for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as net assets with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same
period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the. support as net
assets without donor restrictions.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Propertv and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair value at the
date of donation. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized..
Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to
amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years

Building and leasehold improvements 5-40 Years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along
with the related accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $43,367 and $66,140 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services are provided or expenditures are
incurred.

Revenue

Net patient revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are
rendered and are adjusted in future periods, as final amounts are determined.
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A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-
party payors. The Organization receives reimbursement from Medicare,, Medicaid and
private third party payors at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by
these programs. The difference between established billing rates and the actual rate of
reimbursement is recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated
contractual-allowances is provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of
financial position date.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program services
and supporting activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by

. management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Square footage
All other expenses Direct assignment

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price, rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in
generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that
fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and
requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with ASC
820-10, the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income
and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 estat>lishes a fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The
three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

11



Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, prepaid expense, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair'value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Management has determined the beneficial interest in net assets held by Monadnock
Regional Foundatioh for Family Services, Inc. to be in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as
defined above (also see Note 4).

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an Organization that is
not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2). However, income from certain activities
not directly related to the tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business
income. Under Internal Revenue Code Section 512, certain parking related expenses
determined to be qualified transportation fringes are treated as an increase in the amount
of unrelated business taxable income. As a result of these taxable fringes,, a tax liability of
$7,203 has been recognized in the financial statements as of June 30, 2019. No tax
liability was accrued for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that the
Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions,
the Organization is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the United Stales
Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2015.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information
about liquidity and availability of resources, arid the lack of consistency in the type of
information provided about expenses and investment return. The Organization has
adjusted the presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.

12



3. AVAILiBILITY AND LIQUIDITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 and
2018:

Financial assets at year-end:
2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,129,329 $ 1,253,641
Accounts receivatile, net 618,587 357,323
Beneficial interest in Foundation 1.029.832 828.482

Total financial assets $ 2.777.748 $ 2.439.446

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions $ 246,997 $ 286,217
Less net assets with purpose and tirtie

restrictions to be met in less than a year - (45,932)
Beneficial interest in Foundation 1.029.832 828.482

Amounts not available within one year 1.276.829 1.068.767

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 1.500.919 $ 1.370.679

The Organization's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 45 days of
operating expenses (approximately $1.38 million). As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash
is invested in short-term investments, including money market accounts.

4. INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOUNDATION

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of assets held by Monadnock Regional
Foundation for Family Services, Inc. The Organization and the Foundation are considered

.  financially interrelated Organizations under FASB ASC Topic No. 958-605, Not-for-Profit
Entities - Transfers of Assets to a Nonprofit Organization or Charitable Trust That Raises
or Holds Contributions for Others. The fair value of the Foundation's assets, which

approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$1,033,171 and $832,126 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The cost basis of the
Foundation's assets was $971,974 and $806,069 at June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

13



5. DEMAND NOTES PAYABLE

The Organization maintains the following demand notes payable:

Demand note payable with a bank, subject to bank renewal on June 30, 2020. The
maximum amount available at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $250,000. At June 30, 2019
and 2018 the interest rate was stated at 6.25% and 5.75%, respectively. The note is
renewable annually, collateralized by all the business assets of the Organization and
guaranteed by a related nonprofit organization (see Note 10). There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The Organization maintains a demand note payable with a bank. The demand note
payable is examined and reviewed on a yearly basis. The maximum amount available at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $150,000. At June 30, 2019 and 2018 the Interest rate was

stated a 7% and 6.50%, respectively. The note is collateralized by all the business assets
of the Organization, real estate and assignment of leases and rents owned by Monadnock
Community Service Center, Inc. (a related party, see Note 10) and is guaranteed by
Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. (a related party, see Note 10). There was no
balance outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Special Purpose Restrictions:
.  Beneficial interest in Foundation $ 173,783 $ 159,071
Timken contribution - 45;932

Restricted in Perpetuity:
Beneficial interest in Foundation 81.214 81.214

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 254.997 $ 286.217

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions are as follows:

2019 2018

Satisfaction of Purpose Restrictions:
Timken contribution $ 45.932 $ 18.687

Total net assets released $ 45.932 $ 18.687

7. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. Under the plan
employees can make voluntary contributions to the plan of up to approximately 15% of
gross wages. All full-time employees are eligible to participate when hired, and are eligible
to receive employer contributions after one year of employment. The Organization's
matching contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were
$50,204 and $49,522, respectively.

14



8. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 approximately 73% and 76%, respectively of
the total revenue was derived from Medicaid. The future existence of the Organization, in
its current form, is dependent upon continued support from Medicaid.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 26% and 42% of the total accounts
receivable balances at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on past due accounts, nor are its accounts receivable pledged
as collateral, except as discussed in Note 5.

9. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Organization has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain
facilities and office equipment. The terms of these leases range from 36 to 63 months.
Rent expense under these agreements aggregated $618,239 and $594,294 for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 16,200
2021 15,270
2022 9.560

Total $ 41.030

See Note 10 for information regarding a lease agreement with a related'party.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. is related to the following nonprofit corporations as a
result of their articles of incorporation and common board membership.

Related Party Function

Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. Provides real estate services and

property management assistance.

Monadnock Regional Foundation for Endowment for the benefit of Monadnock
Family Services, Inc; Family Services, Inc.

Monadnock Family Services, Inc. has transactions with the above related parties during its
normal course of operations. The significant related party transactions are as follows:

15



Due to Affiliate

At June 30, 2019 and 2018 the Organization had a payable due to Monadnock Community
Service Center, Inc. in the amount of $394,444 and $123,853, respectively. At June 30,
2019 and 2018 the Organization had a payable due to Monadnock Regional Foundation
for Family Services, Inc. in the amount of $157,695 and $63,372, respectively. There are
no specific terms of repayment and no stated interest.

Rental Expense

The Organization leases office space from Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc.
under the terms of tenant at will agreements. Monadnock Family Services, Inc. has the
perpetual right to extend the leases. Total rental expense paid under the terms of the
leases was $576,250 and $556,500 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Contribution

During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 the Organization made a contribution to
Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. in the amount of $400,000 and $125,000,
respectively. During each of the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 the Organization
made a contribution to Monadnock Regional Foundation of Family Services, Inc. in the
amount of $200,000.

Management Fee

The Organization charges Monadnock Community Service Center, Inc. for administrative
expenses incurred on its behalf. Management fee revenue aggregated $84,899 and
$64,724 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Guarantee

One of the Organization's demand notes payable is guaranteed by Monadnock
Community Service Center, Inc.

Co-obligation

The Organization is co-obligated on certain mortgage notes of Monadnock Community
Service Center, Inc.

11. CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under various slate grants and from Federal sources.
Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within
a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If
expenditures were found, not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have
been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been
determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2019.
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12. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances that, at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up
to $250,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk \A/ith these
accounts. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, cash balances in excess of FDIC coverage
aggregated $707,613 and $826,500, respectively..

13. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have , been made to the. prior years' financial statements to
conform to the current year presentation. These classifications had no effect on the

■previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by
management to determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in
the financial October 31, 2019, the date when the financial statements were available to
be issued.
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICgS. tNC. Continued

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Maintenance

Children &

Adolescents

Older Adult

Services Intake

Emergency

Services/

Assessment

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

Program fees:

Net client fees

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Other program fees

Program sales:

Service and production

Public support:

United Way

Local/county government

Donations

Other public support

Div. for Children, Youth & Families

Federal funding:

Other federal grants

PATH

Bureau of Behavioral Health

Rental income

Net gain on beneficial

interest in Foundation

Other

30,851 $ 13,176

390,979 3,690,102

167,302 1,493

90,572 110,152

2,665

32,317

18,750

175

62,975

,36,315

7:i50

15,389

1,425

23,232

4,050

205

22,922

349,191

1,586

(814)

8,825

44,396

(141)

17,764

32,388

108,624

2,293

26,614

194,078

9,545

38,684

31,796

30,000

6,825

37,000

132,590

679

87,419

2,327

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES 7!^:^ ^ 3 966 839 S 376 179 S ?11 ftfifi S 607 136 S 90 476
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MONADNQCK FAMILY SERVICES INC. Continued

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Vocational Multi-Service ACT Community Supportive

Services Non-Ellqibles Team Team Residence Living

Program fees:

Net client fees

Medlcaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Other program fees

Program sales:

Service and production

Public support:

United Way

Local/county government

Donations

Other public support

Div. for Children. Youth & Families

Federal funding:

Other federal grants

PATH

Bureau of Behavioral Health

Rental income

Net gain on beneficial

interest in Foundation

Other

537

66,293

1.550

423

1,460

4.320 $ 52.326 $ 17,882 $ 21,915 $

4,938

278

11,597

20.638

7,500

150

17,500

2,064,754

20,203

6,042

1,650

12.094

235,478

487,313

24,712

13.416

1,000

46

225,000

396,230

1.106

(668)

32,330

(311)

346,208

(956)

1,042

10 1,635

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES £ 70 264 £ 66 931 £2 394 182 £ 769 369 , S 451 956 £ 344 941
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MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Community

Education &

Training

Other

Non-BBH

Total

Programs Administration

2019

Totals

2018

Totals

Program fees:

Net client fees

Medicaid

Medicare

Other Insurance

Other program fees

Program sales:

Service and production

Public support:

United Way

Local/county government

Donations

Other public support

DIv. for Children, Youth & Families

Federal funding:

Other federal grants

PATH

Bureau of Behavioral Health

Rental Income

Net gain on beneficial

interest in Foundation

Other

19,573

68,692

138,859

61,648

375

60.215

277.508

98,762

2,338

420

S  268,428

8,260,760

227,634

350.187

53,928

2.840

208,012

182.439

297.902

294,850

1.425

158,244

37,000

361,640

2,338

2.177

84,899

2,000

274,148

4,708

201,350

70.074

268,428

8,260,760

227,634

350,187

53,928

87,739

208,012

182,439

299,902

568,998

1,425

158,244

37,000

366,348

2,338

201,350

72,251

236,159

7,639,201

250,741

293,761

27,435

72,424

191,208

197,247

251,949

38,490

282,716

36,938

359,441

2,807

194,494

9,055

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL REVENUES S 19 573 S 708 817 S10 709 804 S 637 179 S 11 346 983 £ 10 084.066
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Winston Sims

Louise Zerba

I, '

2020 BOO Email list



George Piers, LICSW

Education

Smith College School for Sodal Woric. Northampton, Ma

Masters in Social Work 1994

Stillpoint School for Massage Therapy Hatfield, Ma

Massage Therapy Certification 1999

Salve Reglna College ^ Newport, R.I.

Bachelors in Social Work 1987

New Hampshire Llcensure

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker it1357 NH 1996

Certified Massage Therapist 111456 NH 1999

Work Experience

Monadnodc Family Services 2008 - present Keene, NH

Director of Child and Family Services 11/2014-present

-  Provides leadership within the organization and all assigned specific

.  programs.

-  Responsible for establishing and maintaining an Innovative and coordinated

service delivery system of Child and Family Services

-  Maintain services relevant and responsive to community needs.

-  Responsible for quality and compliance of services, processes and

outcomes.

-  Responsible for human capital management to promote quality service

delivery and positive employee relations.

-  Responsible for developing and monitoring the annual budgets of the Child

and Family Services in collaboration with the Chief Financial Officer.

Senior Clinical Supervisor 7/2013 -11/2014

_  Provide regular,



direct clinical supervision and ongoing evaluations to all outpatient and

community based clinicians.
Facilitator of bi-weekly case consultation group and reflective supervision for
agency clinicians.
Under supervision of Director, ensures ongoing communication between support
staff and clinical staff.

Works collaboratively with administration, supervisors, and direct services to
ensure appropriate inter-team communication, referrals, and
effective/efficient service delivery.

Collaborates in the planning, development, implementation, and evaluation of
services.

With Director of Children's Services, maintains community relationships that
enhance the effectiveness of the services delivered to area residents.

Coordinator of Graduate Internships 5/2012 - present

Responsible for

the clinical supervision and educational experience of graduate level

interns.

Coordinates

graduate experience with participating graduate schools.

Coordinator of Community Support Services 5/2012 — 7/2013

(Clinical Supervisor)

Provided clinical supervision to case management supervisors.

Provided clinical supervision to case management staff.
With Co- Coordinators, provided ongoing evaluations to case management
staff.

Involved in the recruitment, hiring, and orientation of case management staff.

Student Assistance Counselor 8/2008 — 5/2012

Keene Middle School

Provided short term Individual therapy to students referred to SAP by school
administration, guidance counselors, and parents.
Coordinated school wide substance use prevention/awareness campaigns.
In conjunction with school administration developed school policy on tobacco,
alcohol and drug use.



Provided Intervention, screenings, and brief therapy to students found in
violation of tobacco, alcohol, and drug use policy.
Responsible for recording relevant statistical data related to grants funding
prevention position Facilitated KMS Builder's Club, a community service based
group developing assertiveness and leadership skills in youth.

Private Psychotherapy Practice 2001-presenl Keene, NH

- Provide adult psychotherapy to clients who present with mood, anxiety, and
substance abuse diagnoses.

- Provide full range of mental health services, including assessment,
diagnosis, and treatment.

-  Interface with healthcare insurers to authorize care.

Keene Massage Works 1999-present Keene, NH

- Certified Neuramuscular Therapist providing massage therapy to clients
seeking relief from acute and chronic pain conditions.

- Provide client education on the causal relationship between stress and
presenting pain patterns.

- Recorrimend appropriate rehabilitation exercises and stress management
techniques to address client needs.

- Offer collaborative treatment planning and appropriate referrals.

Monadnock Family Services 1997 - 2001

Outpatient Clinician/Children's Team

Completed comprehensive psychosocial assessment of clients referred to
program and made appropriate referrals and treatment recommendations.

-  In collaboration with client and family developed treatment plan identifying-
appropriate goals.
Provided ongoing individual and family therapy.

-  Maintained regular communication with collaborative community services
involved with clients.



Philip F. Wyzik MA

EXPERIENCE:

.Monadnock Family Services, 64 Main Si, Kcene NH (6/2012 to present)
Chief Executive Officer

Responsible for all aspects of the leadership of a community mental health center in Cheshire
County, New Hampshire. Services focus on clientele considered eligible for state supported
care, out patient behavioral health counseling, prevention services and adult care for seniors.

Certified instructor Mental Health First Aid, July 2014

The Mental Health Association of Connecticut, 20-30 Beaver Rd, Wethersfieid CT 06109
President and CEO (9-08 to 6 -1-12)

Responsible for all aspects of executive leadership of a $9 million dollar private not for
provide mental health agency. Services offered to adults with severe and persistent mental
illness include housing, psychosocial rehabilitation, and supported employrnent; provide
leadership and supervision to Executive staff and Program Directors. Work includes
interface and coordination with Board of Directors, direct supervision of advocacy, lobbying
and public education efforts.

West Central Behavioral Health, Inc., 9 Hanover St, Lebanon, New Hampshire 03766
Senior Vice President of Operations (1-91 to 9-08)

Responsible for the executive leadership and management of a private not-for-profit
community mental health center. Duties include:

Program development and performance management: responsible development and
monitoring of annual operation plan to achieve key service outcomes and fiscal effectiveness,
internal quality assurance and management, including leading workgroups to implement new
treatment paradigms and improvements. Accomplished successful grant applications and
negotiated contracts, including US Government contract procurement and management under
the Javitts Wagner O'Day program. Assisted with marketing and internal and extemal
customer service. Planned conversion of two day rehab programs into pioneering supported
employment service.

Supervision and training of agency leaders: responsible for personnel development,
quality assurance and risk management; designed and implemented a new, proactive
employee review and development process. Planned and supervised the renovation and
relocation of three clinical offices. Lead agency wide staff satisfaction survey process;
developed work life commit^e to improve employee input into agency decisions.

Public Relations / fundraising: Conceived, organized and promoted all aspects of a two
day fundraiser ("Paddlepower") that increased public awareness about suicide and visibility



Philip F.Wyzik
KccncNH

for the agency. Current member of NH Suicide Prevention Advisory Committee and Garrett
Lee Smith Advisory Committee.

Information Technology; Supervised IT department of three PTEs since 2006,
including the implementation of an electronic medical record for improved clinical flow,
efficiency and compliance. Lead system improvement efforts to accommodate regulatory
and reimbursement changes and mandates, and accompanying staff training efforts.

Substitute for the CEO: Handle intemal, external, and State responsibilities.

Little Rivers Health Care Inc, PC Box 377, Bradford VT

Interim Chief Executive Officer (Sept 2005 to June 2006)

Under management service agreement with current employer, served as first CEO of a
Federally Qualified Health Center. Duties inyolved all aspects of merging three disparate
primary care offices into one organization. Developed initial Human Resource policies and
plans, facilitated clinical and quality policy development, initiated start up fiscal plan and
structure. Served as the liaison to Health Resource Services Administration Office of Grants

Management and Project Development and facilitated development of Board members.
Elected to the Board of Directors of Bi State Primary Care Association.

University System of New Hampshire, Granite State College

Faculty Member (November 2000 to present)

Teaching HLTC 600 Coniinuous Quality Improvement, HLTC 629 Legal and Ethical Issues
in Health and Human Services, and HLTC 627 Financing and Reimbursement in Healthcare,
and HLTC 550 The US Healthcare Industry (all online courses.) Taught numerous students
on independent contract learning projects. Familiar with Blackboard, WebCT, and Moodle
course management systems. .

Worcester Area Community Mental Health Center, Inc, Worcester, Ma. 01609
Director of Rehabilitation (12-84 to 12-90)

Organized and lead sociaiyvocational rehabilitation department serving mentally ill adults.
Responsibilities .included:

Day-to-day management of a psychosocial rehabilitation program for severely mentally ill
adults, program development, strategic planning and evaluation activities. Assisted in
interdepartmental and interagency communication and public relations. Primary liaison to
Mass Rehab Commission for vocational rehabilitation. Completed grant applications, hired
and supervised staff; Held previous roles including Program Coordinator, Rehabilitation
Counselor, Group Leader and Clinician.

Chandler St. Center, Inc., 162 Chandler St., Worcester, Ma. 01609

Substance Abuse Counselor (5-83 to 12-84)



Philip F. Wyzik
Kcene NH

Performed intake, crisis intervention, assessment, case management and addiction therapy
around heroin and cocaine abuse for tccn and adult clients. Facilitated support groups and
completed court ordered assessments.

St. Joseph Church, 41 Hamilton St, Worcester, Ma. 01604

Religious Education Coordinator (6-81 to 6-S3)

Supervised and coordinated all aspects of church based education program; recruited and
trained volunteer teachers; Provided instruction for child, teen and adult classes.

Notre Dame High School, Fitchburg, Ma.

Teacher (9-82 to 6-83) - Taught junior and senior high students in Religious Education
and substitute taught Spanish 1.

St Joseph School, Somerville, Ma..

Teacher (9-78 to 6-80) - Instructed five grade levels in Religion, Art, and Social
Studies.

. COMMUNITY SERVICE

Outreach House, Hanover NH (501.3C assisted living facility for nine seniors)
Board of Director, October 1998 to 2000 [approximately]

Ivy Place Condominiums, Lebanon NH (50 unit condominium facility)
Board of Director, 1992 thru 1997 [approximately]

Lebanon Riverside Rotary
Club member, chair of International Services Committee, 1992 thru 1996

EDUCATION:

Master of Arts. Counseling Psychology, Assumption College, Worcester Ma. 1984
Bachelor of Arts. Religious Studies (magna cum laude). Assumption College, Worcester,
Ma. 1978

•  "Leadership Upper Valley,"'May 2008 sponsored by the Lebanon Chamber of
Commerce.

•  "Institute for Non Profit Management," Antioch New England Graduate School,
Hanover NH, Spring 2004

•  "FIPSE (Fund for Improvement of Postsecondary Education) Training for Part Time
Faculty Teaching Adult Learners," College for Lifelong Learning, Concord, NH,
Fall, 2002



Philip F. Wyzik
Keene NH

•  "Improving Managerial Leadership and Effectiveness", "The Art of Negotiation,"
"Delivering Superior Customer Service," and "Contract Pricing," NISH Institute for
Leadership and Professional Development

PUBLICATIONS:

Munctz MD, Bimbaum A, Wyzik PF: An Integrative Ideology to Guide Community
Based Multidisciplinary Care of Severely Mentally 111 Patients. Hospital and Community
Psychiatry, June 1993, vol. 44, no 6.

Drake RE, Becker DR, Biesanz JC, Torrey WC, McHugo GJ, Wyzik PF: Rehabilitative
Day Treatment vs Supported Employment: I Vocational Outcomes. Community Mental Health
Journal, October 1994;30:519-532.

Torrey W, Clark RE, Becker D, Wyzik P, Drake RE: Switching from Rehabilitative Day
Treatment to Supported Employment. Continuum: Developments in Ambulatory Care, Jossey-
Bass Inc. Spring, 1997, vol 4, no 1.

Drake RE, Becker D, Biesanz J, Wyzik P: Day Treatment Versus Supported Employment
for Persons with Severe Mental Illness: A Replication Study. Psychiatric Services, October
1996, vol 47, ho 10.

Becker D, Torrey W, Toscano R, Wyzik P, Fox T: BuildingRecovery Oriented Services:
Lessons from Implementing IPS in Community Mental Health Centers. Psychiatric
Rehabilitation Journal, Summer 1998, vol 22, no 1.

Torrey, W, Wyzik PF: New Hampshire Clinical Practice Guidelines for Adults in
Community Support Programs, (unpublished monograph).

Torrey, W. Wyzik PF:.The Recovery Vision as a Service Improvement Guide for
Community Mental Health Journal, April 2000, vol 36, No 2.

Torrey, W, Drake RE, Cohen M, Fox L, Lynde D, Gorman P, and Wyzik PF: The
Challenge of Implementing and Sustaining Integrated Dual Disorders, Community Mental
Health Journal, December 2002, Vol 38, no 6

Salyers MP, Becker DR, Drake RE, Torrey WC, and Wyzik PF: A Ten Year Follow up
of Supported Employment (in press)

Torrey WC, Finnerty M, Evans A, Wyzik P: Strategies for leading the implementation of
Evidence-based practices. Psychiatric Clinics of North America, 26(4): 883-897, 2003

Wyzik L, "Grassroots Armada for Suicide Prevention" Behavioral Healthcare
Tomorrow, 14(4): 14-15,2005

"Tragedy Casts Attention on Mental Illness" Keene Sentinel, January 4, 2013, op ed.
"Mental Health Care is a part of health care" Keene Sentinel, March 19, 2013, op ed.
"There is Room for Medicaid Expansion" Keene Sentinel, June 2, 2013, op ed.
"No Medicaid Expansion Strains Mental Health Services" Fosters Daily Democrat,
December 25,2013, op ed.
"The Story that Changed Christmas" Monadnock Ledger Transcript, December 26, 2013,
op ed.



Scott S. Fotsom

Education;

Smith College School of Social Work Northampton, Massachusetts

Masters in Clinical Social Work, 2016

Courses ir)clude: Social Work Practice with Individuals and Families, Social Work Practice in

Schools, Introduction to Social Welfare Policy, Group Theory and Practice, Theories of Individual

Development, Problems in Biopsychosocial Functioning, Family Theory for Clinical Social Work

Practice, Sociocultural Concepts,

Keene State College Keene, New Hampshire
BA Psychology, AS Chemical Dependency Counseling, December 2013

Ur)dergraduate Honors Thesis: Hope and Treatment Engagement in Substance Abuse Clients

Social Work Experience

Student Assistance Program (SAP) Coordinator, Through Monadnock Family Services contract
with Keene Middle School, 21 hours/week, September 2018-current.

•  Coordinate and deliver programs to support students and reduce the risk for substance
abuse, social/emotional stress as well as other self harming behaviors; while working to
build skills that will protect students from these risks.

•  Individual and group counseling regarding substance abuse risks, education and
prevention interventions.

•  Deliver educational and prevention resources to parents and caregivers

• Work directly with school administration and staff to identify at risk youth in need of SAP
services.

Child and family outpatient therapist, Monadnock Family Services, Keene, N.H. 35 hours/week,

October 2017-current

•  Provide outpatient counseling services to children, adolescents and their families

•  Complete initial intake assessments and diagnoses

•. Develop individual treatment plans

•  Document services rendered



Coordinate care with collateral contacts to assist in providing the best quality of care to
clients

ACT (Assertive Community Treatment) therapist, Monadnock Family Services, Keene, NH.

35 hours/week, January 2017-October 2017

•  Provide clinical and functional support services to adult clients with chronic and severe

mental illness

•  Responsibilities included working individually with clients to Identify and develop skills

to improve community functioning.

• Work individually with clients and their families to support and address current needs

that impact mental health well-being and functioning

• Work collaboratively with both internal and external resources to provide continuity of
care and best care and services for the client.

Outpatient/School based therapist, Y.O.U. Inc., Gardner, MA.
40 hours/week, September 2016-January 2017
10 hours/week, January 2017-October 2018

Provide outpatient and school based counseling services to children and adolescents

Complete initial intake assessments and diagnoses

Develop individual treatment plans

Document services rendered

Reach out to collateral contacts to assist in providing the best quality of care to clients

Social Work Intern - Outpatient/School based therapist, Y.O.U. Inc., Gardner, MA.
30 hours/week, placement September 2015 - May 2016

Provide outpatient and school based counseling services to children and adolescents

Complete initial intake assessments and diagnoses

Develop individual treatment plans

Document services rendered

Reach out to collateral contacts to assist in providing the best quality of care to clients

Social Work Intern - Co-occurring detox unit therapist, Brattleboro Retreat, Brattleboro, VT

30 hour/week placement September 2014 - April 2015

•  Initial interview of patients on an acute 4-6 day detoxification unit with both substance
abuse and mental health diagnoses and develop psychosocial assessment



Meet with patients specifically to my caseload to assess and treat immediate needs

through psychotherapeutic interventions, and develop appropriate aftercare plans that
address both substance abuse and mental health wellness

Coordinate care with a treatment team" including medical doctors, psychiatrists, nurses
and mental health workers

Initiate appropriate third party referrals

When appropriate engage family in psycho-education and aftercare planning

Facilitate both psycho-educational and process groups with patients addressing issues
promoting physical, mental, and social wellness

Additional Experience

Residential Counselor, Phoenix Academy Dublin, NH

40 hours/week, June 2011-2014

•  Assist in the management of a 12 bed co-ed adolescent milieu, throughout daily groups

and activities

•  Facilitate evidenced based therapeutic groups in which I had received specific training

and certification

•  Dispensing of residents prescription medications

•. Crisis intervention and resolution

•  Complete appropriate assessments, developing individual treatment plans, individual

counseling and case management services

• Work cooperatively with parents and at times juvenile probation officers to meet the

needs of the residents

Counselor Aide, Phoenix House Keene Center, Keene NH

25-30 hours/week, June 2010-June 2011

•  Assist in the management of an adult milieu at a residential substance abuse

rehabilitation center

•  Overseeing and dispensing of prescription medications

•  Crisis intervention and resolution, to assure a safe and secure environment for all

residents

•  Complete all necessary paperwork In regards to resident compliance and involvement

in treatment during shifts and relaying this information to incoming staff



Volunteer Experience

Board of Directors, Interim Chairperson and Secretary, IVIonadnock Area Peer Support Agency,

Keene, N.H. 5 hours/month, November 2018-current

Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA), Manchester, NH.
10 hours/month, October 2015 - 2018

Program Volunteer, Pathways Vermont, Brattleboro VT.

4 hours/week, September 2014 - April 2015

Construction Volunteer, Habitat for Humanity International

Brazil 2009, Cambodia 2013 and Nicaragua 2014.

Big Brother, Big Brothers/Big Sisters, Keene NH

4-6 hours/month, February 2011 - 2014

Teacher's Aide, Cedercrest Center for Children with Disabilities, Keene NH.

8 hours/week, February 2010 - June 2010 '



ADRIANA TROXELL ELLIOT, LICSW

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

• More than 15 years in human services, including clinical experience with children and in corrections
• Training and experience in different methodologies, including Dialectical Behavioral Therapy, MATCH-

ADTC, GPP, Restorative Justice & Nonviolent Communication, among others
•  Fully bilingual English and Spanish
• Multiple competencies in administration and management; creative leadership and community

empowerment via dance, theatre, music and expressive arts
•  Strong computer skills, including Wordpress, Wild Apricot, GoToWebinar, Constant Contact,

Mailchimp, SPSS, Qualtrix

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire - Manchester, NH May 2016
Master of Social Work
• Christopher Arre Scholarship, Yarnold Scholarship, Roothbert Fund Fellowship

Reed College-Portland, OR May 1993
Bachelor of Arts. Theatre and Spanish Literature

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Monadnock Family Services, Kecne, NH August 2015-ongolng
Clinical Supervisor, Children and Families
•  Provide counseling and case management for children, adolescents and families
•  Develop treatment plans, perform assessments and enter notes in Electronic Medical Records
•  Supervise therapists, participate in leadership, interface with community and develop programs
• Teach Child Impact Program for divorcing and separating parents

Brattleboro Retreat, Brattleboro, VT July 2017 - Sept 2018
Per diem Case Manager/Social Worker (Weekends)
•  Perform bio-psycho-social assessments with children, adolescents and adults in inpatient psychiatric care
•  Provide group therapy for children, adolescents and adults, utilizing both DBT and ACT models of care

Monadnock Waldorf High School, Keene, NH September 2015-Mny 2016
Spanish Teacher
• Taught dynamic introductory Spanish class •
• Created interactive curriculum to incorporate various learning styles and multiple intelligences

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH August 2015-May
2016

Graduate Assistant

•  Provided research support and collaboration for Social Work program faculty
• Utilized survey software (Qualtrix) and statistical software (SPSS) to collect and analyze data

Cheshire Mediation, Keene, NH September 2008-May 2016
Mediator, Director

• Mediated for parenting, divorce, family, business, and organizational conflicts
Gave communication skills trainings, facilitated meetings, hosted community events and gave
presentations ^

Cheshire County House of Correction, Keene, NH August 2014-May 2015
MSW Clinical Intern

•  Provided individual and group counseling and substance abuse treatment for inmates
•  Served male and female clients, the majority of whom had significant trauma history

of2



ADRIANA TROXELL ELLIOT, LICSW

Cheshire County Family Court, NH January 200$-June 2013
Guardian ad Litem

• ■ Investigated, reported and advocated for best interests of children in court proceedings
• Applied conflict resplution skills to promote non-adversaria) resolution of family conflict

Bonnie CLAC/More than Wheels, Keene, NH January 2004-Mnrch 2007
Client Consultant

• Delivered client screening and interviews, financial counseling, advocacy, and coordinated car purchase
•  Engaged in marketing, database management, website maintenance, and program development

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

National Association of Certified Professional Midwives April 2013-October 2015
Administrative Assistant

• Accountable for bookkeeping, member communications, social media, project management, website
development, webinar support, board retreat coordination, database management

MoCo Arts, Keene, NH September 2003-June 2010
Movement Teacher

• Taught mindful wcllness-oriented exercise classes to adults and adolescents
• Mentored new teachers and offered community wellness events

Freelance Self-Employment, Keene, NH March 2007-January 2009
OJJice Assistant
•  Prepared confidential correspondence for private medical practice
• Organized financial records and created bookkeeping system for small business

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Joymoves Dance Collective, Keene, NH July 2011-ongolng
Co-Founder

• Create and collaborate in leadership of improvisational expressive-arts group
Monadnock Initiative for Restorative Justice, Keene, NH August 2012-May 2015
Facilitator

• Organized community-based monthly Restorative Justice learning group
•  Participated in trainings and coordinated speakers and community dialogue opportunities

Healing the Heart of Democracy Action Group, Keene, NH March-September 2012
Facilitator

• Co-taught a study group with curriculum from The Center for Courage and Renewal
New Hampshire Conflict Resolution Association June 2011-February 2013
Board Member

• Volunteered as a leader in state professional association for mediators
• Convened and spearheaded local mediation networking events

TRAININGS AND CERTIFICATIONS

• Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW), NH 2019
• Certified Prevention Specialist, NH 2019
• Certified MATCH-ADTC Therapist 2019
• Child Parent Psychotherapy Training 2019
• Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) 2016,2018,2019
•  Certified Guardian ad Litem - State of NH January 2008-September 2013
•  Justice of the Peace - State of NH June 2011-ongoing
• Basic Mediation Training and Marital Mediation Training - Keene, NH Fall 2007

2 of 2



MONADNOCK FAMILY SERVICES

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Scott Folsom KJvtS SAP Coordinator 36,184 60% 21,710

George Piers Director of Counselor

Services

■98,374 1.5% 1,476

Adrianna Elliot Assoc Dir of Childrens Servs 58,421 1.5% 876
Phil Wyzik Chief Executive Officer 144,834 0 0



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire ,
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program
This 2"^ Amendment to the Student A contract {hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and
between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to
as the State or Department') and North Country Education Services Agency, (hereinafter referred to as
the Contractor), a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation with a place of business at 300 Gorham Hill Rd
Gorham, NH 03581.

VVHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item #23). as amended on June 19, 2019, (ltem#29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021. '

■  2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$300,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15., to read;

2.15. Reserved

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Subsection 6.1., to read:

6.1 The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

7. Exhibit B, Amendment#!, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment; Section 4, Subsection '
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

North Country Education Services Agency Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-06-A02 Page 1 of4 Date "^7^/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

sr

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2. attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

North Country Education Services Agency Amendment #2

88-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-06-A02 Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date I20/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All lerms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^k(j3.o9D
Date Nlme:

North Country Education Services Agency

Date Name: Lc^qIvSiNciMic. ^

North Country Education Services Agency Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-06-A02 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10. 2020

Date h(^e;
Title;

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved'by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

North Country Education Services Agency Amendment #2
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SMen Assislanea Program Extiibli B-2, Amandmtni 97

New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services

Conlractor r>afn« North Courttry Education Sorvieos

Budgat Raguesi Ion Student Axststanea Pregrani (SS-»1>4DASm2>STUOE-OC-AO})

Budget Period; July 1, nzCKhine 30. 2021

Line
iRrogram ;Cc>st

-sifDirect iyt5it5a;y^^glndlre<aydfiA.^3LS£;^Totalj;'7r;:ga

tn}V>Wi53^.K.si!T'.,5PContractortShare7iMalchS;i?S?tifiiiiS>"n:'j-^
4g^0irectsatig|fflg^{lndtrect?5&>Jrii^i!SiT.6tal£K-^»

$iSlt5t;S$frfF.undedilvjDHHS:centroct?shai:elESre;iSa®53
S^P.Dire<agl!:^.tRS^.lndlrectf^SSg^TotaJZStgg

1 ■ Total SalaryWafles

2
60.000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 60.000.00

. Emptoyee Benefits 2.500.00 2.500.00 2.500.00 •2.500.00

3. Consultants 5.000.00 5,000.00 5.000.00 5.000.00
I- Equipment:

Rental 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation 3.750.00 3,750.00 3.750.00 3.750.00
5. SuppMes:

Educational 2.000.00 2.000.00 - 2.000.00 2.000.00
Lab

Pharmacy
Medicai

Office 2,000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00
6. Travel 3,500.00 3.500.00 3,500.00 3.500.00

Occupancy

6. Current Expenses

Tetephone
Postage
Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance 5.000.00 -5.000.00 5.000.00 5.000.00

Board Expenses
9. Software

10. MarKoUng/Communlcations 2.500.00 2.500.00 2.500.00 2.500.00
1. Staff Education and Training 5.000.00 5.000.00, 5.000.00 5.000.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements
3. Other (spedfic delate mandatory):

Indirect As A Percent ol Direct 8.000.00 8,000.00 8.000.00 8.000.00

• 100.000.00-.ITOTAL 92.000.00 "100,000.00 : 92,000.00
Indirect As A Percent ol Direct

North Country Education Services

SS-21)l9-00AS-02-ST1JOE-06-A02

ExhiM B-2. Amendment *2
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTH COUNTRY

EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 29, 1971. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofllce have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 66448

Certificate Number: 0004860555

o

A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERtlFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Kathleen Kellev , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of North Country Education Services Aoencv.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18, 2013, at which a quorum of. the Directors/shareholders were present and voting

(Date) ■ . .

VOTED: That Lori Lanolols. Executive Director and Matthew Treamer. Associate Director fmav list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of North Country Education Services Aoencv to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ^ f j

Dated: 5/20/2020

>^igj^at5ri'bf Reefed Offic^
Name: Kathleen Kelley
Title: Treasurer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Coos

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 20_day of May. 2020,

By Kathleen Kellev •
(Name of Elected OlTicer of Agejicy)

(Notauy-Seaiy ■

BETTY A LBWajN-DUBE, Notary Pubte
Commission Expires: ^ October 2h 2020

Nota ublic/Justice of the Peace)



Primex"
NH Public Risk Management Lichonge CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and byiaws, Primex® is authorized to provide pooied risk
management programs established for the benefit of poiitical subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each memljer of Primex® is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below, In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, excfusions. amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are appiicabie to the members of Primex®; including but not limitedTo the final and binding resolution of all claims-and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and-^
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a memljer in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any lime by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate is issued,.the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Pertldpaling Member: Member Number:

North Country Education Services Agency 953
300 Gorham Hill Road

Gorham, NH 03581

Compeny Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange • f^imex'
Bow Brook- Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage Effective Date

fmm/dd/ww)

Expiretlof} Date

(mm/dcUww}
Limits - NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Each Occurrence S 5,000,000

General Aggregate S 5,000,000

D Ma^ □ Occurrence ' Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X At
De

tomobile Liability
Kjuctible Comp and Coll:

Any auto

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Combined Single Limit
(Each AcOdant)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$ 5.000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  Statutory S 2,000,000

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee

Disease - Policy Umli

X  Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blanket Limit. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Deductible: $1,000

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: ' Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex® - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; Scti Pvuett

Date: 5/12/2020 mpurceliOnhDrimex.oraState of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct Inquires to:
Primex® Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



CATION

Mission

NCES collaborates with public schools and community partners to support excellent aitd equitable educationBl

opportunities throughout the North Country.
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The Mercier Group
a professional corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of the Board of Directors and Management
North Country Education Services Agency

Report on the Financial Statements. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North
Country Education Services Agency (a non-profit corporation) as listed in the table of contents, which comprise
the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional experises and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements. Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. This includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fî ud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these .financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance auditing standards that are generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluation the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the North Country Education Services Agency, as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Schedule. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule listed in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing it for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The Mercier Group, a professional corponUon
Grantham, New Hampshire
December 11,2019
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Exhibit A

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Slatements ofFinancial Position
June 30,2019and 2018

ASSETS

All numbers are espresseJ in (ISA Dollars

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land

Buildings

Equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current:

Accounts payable
Deferred revenues

Long-term, lesscurrtrnmanirHies

Contingency for unfunded pension & OPEB obligations:
Agency share of NHRS net pension liabilities,
deferred inflows and outflows of resources

Agency share ofNHRS net OPEB liabilities,
deferred inflows and outflows of resources

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions:

Board designated for building improvements
Net investment in property & equipment
Available to operations

Deficit related to unfunded pension obligations

With donor restrictions:

Program purposes

2019 2018

15,806 116,674'
694,303 641,108
123,814 95,831

28,815 23,050

. 1,050 994

863,788 877,657

35,000 35,000

609,967 609,967

23,082 27,854

(517,060) (501,544)

150,989 171,277

1,014,777 1,048,934 .

1,071 968

18,295 173

19,366 1,141

M88,207 1,350,995

98,862

1,387,069 1,350,995

1,406,435 1,352,136

64,056 41,448

150,989 171,277

465,840 534,451

(1,387,069) (1,350,995)

(706,184) (603,819)

314,526 300,617

(391,658) (303,202)

1,014,777 1,048,934

The accompanying notes are and integral pan of these financial statements.



Exhibit B

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Statements of Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ending'June 30, 2019 and 2018

All amounts art exprtssed in USA Dollars

2019 2018

Without Donor With Donor - Without Donor With Donor ■

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Federal grants 275,113 275,113 249,288 249,288

State grants 271,417 271,417 291,058 291,058

Local government agencies 126,037 126,037 278,297 278,297

Other non-profit agencies 347,236 347,236 224,284 224,284

Donations 676 11,269 11,945 200 2,259 2,459

Program service revenue 865^75 865375 917,090 917,090

866,051 1,031,072 1,897,123 917,290 1,045,186 1,962,476

OPERATING EXPENSES

Program Services;
NCES Programs 721,242 721,242 719,728 719,728

Substance Misuse Prevention 159,093 159,093 162,038 162,038

Adult Learner Services 142,814 142,814 137,154 137,154

Coos County Director's Network 129,902 129,902 91,265 91,265

NHCTA 123,295 123,295 128,684 128,684

SAP 92,000 92,000 92,000 92,000

Migrant 74,416 74,416 74,409 74,409

USDA Equipment 58,185 58,185 142,394 142,394

Jane's Trust 52,088 52,088 12,389 12,389

NHH Foundation 27,778 27,778 -

Tillotson - Trauma 27,778 27,778 -

FFCLA CTSO 14,142 14,142 ' -

Endowment for health 12,122 12,122 •  -

TSA CTSO 10,733 10,733 2,151 2,151

ECERS CDN 6,740 6,740 17,785 - 17,785

NHCF - Operating support 5,851 5,851 50,000 50,000

NHCF - Computer science - 1,000 1,000

NHCF - Administration 5,000 5,000

SUAV 4,264 4,264 6,335 6,335

Tillotson - No. of the 44th 192 192 5,156 5,156

Tillotson - Hi SET 65 65 -

STEM

3

54,865 54,865



Exhibit B

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Statements of Activities

For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30,2019 and 2018

All amouna art txprtsftd in USA Dollan

2019 2018

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Distance Learning

ECEP

NH Center for Learning

- 33,906

.13,135

6,700

33,906

13,135

6,700

1,667,700 -  • 1,667,700 1,751,094 - 1,751,094

Supporting activities:
Management and general 379,130 379,130 375,195 375,195

2,046,830 2,046,830 2,126,289 - 2,126,289

NET OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) (1,180,779) 1,031,072 (149,707) (1,208,999) 1,045,186 (163,813)

NONOPERATING INCOME AND TRANSFERS

AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

Investment income

Unrelated business income • garage rent
Net assets released from restrictions

56,851

4,400

1,017,163 (1,017,163)

56,851

4,400

99,026

3,900

1,074,614 (1,074,614)

99,026

3,900

1,078,414 (1,017,163) 61,251 1,177,540 (1,074,614) 102,926

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL POSITION (102,365) 13,909 (88,456) (31,459) (29,428) (60,887)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING, as restated (603,819) 300,617 (303,202) (572,360) 330,045 (242,315)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - ENDING (706,184) 314^526 •  (391,658) (603,819) 300,617 (303,202)

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements.



Exhibit C

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Slalemenls ofFunctional Expenses
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30,2019 and 2018

All amounts art exprtssed in USA Dollars

2019 2018

Regular Management Regular Management

Educational and Educational and

Programs General Total Programs General Total

Salaries and other compensation 557,159 231,301 788,460 592,293 227,967 820,260

Pension expense 65,945 30,733 96,678 98,952 37,752 136,704

Other Employee benefits 121,206 49,730 170,936 141,545 53,235 194,780

Payroll taxes 36,163 18,485 54,648 39,984 17,752 57,736

Staff development 20,111 3,298 23,409 30,761 3,300 34,061

Contracted services 306,170 6,800 312,970 455,134 6,500 461,634

Occupancy 49,963 8,223 58,186 46,650 8,084 54,734

Administrative expenses 23,709 7,679 31388 20,029 7,087 27,116

Travel 45,074 4,566 49,640 40,071 5,130 45,201

Materials & supplies 392,366 392366 263,685 263,685

Insurance 10,144 1,122 11366 8,000 8,000

Depreciation 15,216 5,072 20388 13,973 8,013 21,986

Interest - 17 17

Decrease in estimated net pension liabilities (NHRS) (42,068) (20,720) (62,788) -

Increase in estimated net OPEB obligations (NHRS) 66,542 32320 98,862 -

Tax on unrelated business income 521 521 375 375

1,667,700 379,130 2,046,830 1,751,094 375,195 2,126,289

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements.



Exhibit D

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Statements ofCash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30^ 2019 and 2018

All amounts art txprrssed in USA Dollars

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net operating income([oss) (149,707) (163,813)

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation Expense 20,288 21,986

Difference between pension & OPEB expenses
and NHRS plan contributions 36,074 31,317

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (27,983) (7.948)

Grants receivable (5,765) 4,594

Prepaid expenses (56) 2,006

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 103 (1,146)

Deferred revenues 18,122 (52,627)

(108,924) (165,631)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Unrelated business income - garage rent 4,400 3,900

Earnings on investments 56,851 99,026

Purchase of Investments (53,195) (96,454)

8,056 6,472

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (100,868) (159,159)

CASH - BEGINNING 116,674 275,833

CASH - ENDING 15,806 116,674

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for interest 17

The accompanying notes are and integral part of these financial statements.



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

North Country Education Services Agency is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation,
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) organized exclusively for
charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954, as amended. Its purpose is to provide member organizations and the
persons served thereby, directly and indirectly, with educational, administrative and
technological services, courses, facilities, and equipment generally and including, without
thereby limiting such generality, educational consulting services and the coordination of services
supplied by.others, administrative and technological assistance, counselor and other specialized
personnel, and specialized instruments, facilities and equipment. The degree of participation in
and subscription to the services of the Agency by districts of the School Administrative Unit are
determined by them individually. Mernbership in the organization is currently comprised of the
eleven school administrative units and supervisory unions listed below. The management and
controls of the affairs of this corporation are vested in and exercised by a Board of Directors
consisting of eleven (II) superintendents, or their designee, of the New Hampshire School
Administrative Units 3, 7, 9, 20, 35, 36, 58, 68, 77, 84, and members at large appointed by a
majority of the board who are individuals or representatives from organizations who are
committed to the betterment of education and the betterment of North Country Education
Services Agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Presentation. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), which require the Agency to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Agency. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and the board of
Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and
grantors. The donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by certain
actions or by the passage of time.

Basis of Accounting. The Agency presents its financial statements on the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this basis, exchange revenues and related accounts receivables are recognized
when earned. Non-exchange revenues (grants, contributions, donations, etc.) are recognized when
received. Expenses and related payables are recognized when title to goods and services passes to
the Agency.

Accounting Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash consists of bank deposits held in checking and savings
accounts. For purposes of reporting the statements of cash flows, if any, all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash
equivalents.

Investments. Investments are accounted for according to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (SFAS) No. 124, Accounting for Certain Investments Held by Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Under SFAS No. 124, investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in

the statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in
net assets.

Concentrations of credit and market risk. Financial instruments that potentially expose the
Agency to credit risk consist primarily of bank deposits and investments in participation units of
the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool. It is the Agency's policy to deposit monies
in high quality financial institutions and to limit risk by maintaining deposits within the Federal
Depository Insurance' Limits (FDIC) whenever possible. The Agency has not experienced any
losses on its cash deposits during FY2019 or FY2018. Market risk is limited to fluctuations in
the prices of mutual funds. Management monitors investments in high quality mutual funds and
believes it is not exposed to significant market risk on those amounts. Each participation unit of
the Pool is valued at one-dollar and the price there of does not fluctuate with the market values of
underlying investments.

Public Support and Revenues. Substantially, all revenue is derived from contract fees from
member school districts and grants awarded by government agencies. Revenues from service
fees are recognized on a monthly basis as services are invoiced. Some grants received from
governments, private foundations and other not-for-profit entities require that eligible expenditures
be made in order to recognize the revenue. Revenues from those sources are recognized in the
period in which eligible expenditures are made. Secondary support is obtained from the rental of
facilities, private donations, interest, dividends and capital gains on investments.

Contributions. Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor

restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an
increase in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as
increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restrictions. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed Services. From time to time, the Agency may receive donated services in carrying
out the mission and fund raising activities of the Agency. Such donations meet the criteria for
revenue recognition when all of the following conditions are met:

"  Special skills are required
■  The work is done by volunteers who have these skills
■  The services would otherwise have to be purchased

The value of volunteer services is also recorded when the services create or improve upon a non-



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

financial asset. In those cases, revenue is recognized in the amount of the value of the hours
contributed or via the change in fair value of the altered asset. The Agency received no
reportable donated services during FY2019 or 2018.

Deferred Revenues and Refundable Advances. Service charges received in advance of the
year to which they apply are reported as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position.
Amounts received from grants in advance of the year to which relating eligible expenses have
been incurred are reported as refundable advances.

Functional Allocation of Expenses. The costs of providing program services and supporting
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the Statements ofActivities. Expenses
are charged to program services based on direct costs incurred or estimated usage (for indirect
costs). Any expenses not directly chargeable are allocated to functions based on the direct
charges. Annually, an indirect cost rate is established by the Agency and approved by the State
of New Hampshire Department of Education for this purpose.

Prepaid Expenses. Disbursements made in advance of the receipt of goods and services are
recorded as prepaid expenses in the statement of financial position.

Property and Equipment. All costs of property and equipment, and the fair value of donated
assets value in excess of $1,000 and an initial economic useful life of greater than one
accounting period are capitalized. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method,
beginning in the month of acquisition at rates based on the following estimated useful lives:

Years

Buildings 30
Equipment 5

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay. Vacation time is granted to full-time employees
in amounts of 5 to 20 days per year, depending on positions held. Such vacation time must be
used prior to September 1 of the following year. Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of 1 work
day earned for every 20 days worked, not to exceed 12 days annually; total accumulation of sick
leave may not exceed 70 days. Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay is not accrued by the
Agency. However, estimated accumulation does not exceed a normal year's allowance.

Income Taxes. The Agency is organized exclusively for tax-exempt charitable and educational
.purposes within the meaning of Section 501(a) and Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954, as amended. The Agency is not a private Agency within the meaning of Internal
Revenue Code Section 509(a). During the years ended April 30, 2019 and 2018, the Agency had
unrelated business income for the rental of facilities; the income taxes on which is made in the
accompanying financial statements. Contributions to the Agency are deductible as allowed
under Section 170(b)(l)(A)(vi) of the Code.

New Accounting Pronouncement — On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. The
update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type
of information provided about expenses and investment return. Accordingly, the Agency has
adjusted the presentation of these statements and has applied this ASU retrospectively to 2018.



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reclassifications - Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

ASSETS ■

Deposits. All bank deposits as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 and substantially throughout the fiscal
years then ended were fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution.

Cash Equivalents. Short-term investments at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and throughout the
fiscal years then ended consisted of participation units in the New Hampshire Public Deposit
Investment Pool (NHPDIP). Governmental Accounting Standards consider these investments
unclassified since underlying investments are not fixed by individual investor. At this time, the
Pool's investments are limited to short-term U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government Agency
obligations. State of New Hampshire municipal obligations, certificates of deposit from AI/PI-
rated banks, money market mutual funds (maximum of 20% of portfolio), overnight to 30-day
repurchase agreements and reverse overnight repurchase agreements with primary dealers or
dealer banks.

Investments. Investments, the fair value of which is measured at quoted prices in active
markets for identical investments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, include the following:

2019 2018

Mutual Funds $ 694^303

The composition of investment return in the statement of activities for the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:.

2019 2018

Interest and dividends $ 3,656 $ 2,571

Capital gain distributions 53,195 96,455

$  56,851 $ 99,026

Accounts Receivable. Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018 include service fees due
from member school districts or program participants. All are considered to be collectible and no
reserve for uncollected accounts has been established.

Grants Receivable. Grants Receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018 include amounts due from the
Federal Government, the State of New Hampshire, other political subdivisions or private
contributors for eligible costs expended on various grant programs. All are considered to be
collectible and no reserve for uricollected accounts has been established.

Property and Equipment. A summary of changes in property and equipment for the fiscal years
ended June 30,2019 and 2018 are as follows:

10



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Balance Balance

July 1.2018 Additions Deductions June 30,2019

Land $  35,000 S - s $  35,000

Buildings 609,967 - - 609,967

Equipment & Furnishings 27,854 • 4,772 23,082

672,821 4,772 668,049

Less: Accumulated Depreciatioi (501,544) (20,288) (4,772) (517,060)

$  171,277 S (20^88) $ $  150,989

Balance Balance

July 1,2017 Additions Deductions June 30; 2018'

Land $  35,000 $ - $ $  35,000

Buildings 609,967 - - 609,967

Equipment & Furnishings 27,854 '  - - 27,854

672,821 • - 672,821

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (479,558) (21,986) - (501,544)

$  193,263 $ (21,986) $ $  171,277

Risk Management. The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, or destruction of assets, errors or omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During
the fiscal year, the Agency was a member of the following public-entity risk pools, currently
operating as a common risk management and insurance programs for member school districts,
school administrative units and similar government-supported agencies.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex Workers' Compensation and
P/C GROUP are pooled risk management programs under RSA 5-B and RSA 281 -A. The coverage
period runs from July 1, 2018 to July 1, 2019. The pool's board has determined to retain risks based
on the aggregate exposure and has allocated resources based on actuarial analysis for that purpose.
A summary of coverages provided during the fiscal year by Primex deductibles, contributions,
claims paid and credits or balances due are available from the Agency upon request.

•  Estimated net contribution billed for the year ending July 1, 2019 are as follows:
- Property/Liability $ 11,266
- Workers'Compensation $ 1,379

The Member Participation Agreement permits Primex^ to make additional assessments to
members should there be a deficiency in Trust assets to meet its liabilities. At this time
management understands that Primex ̂ foresees no likelihood of an additional assessment for this
or any prior year. Claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past years.

LIABILITIES

Line of Credit. During fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the organization had
available a $100,000 line of credit secured by substantially all business property other than real
estate. The note includes a variable interest rate equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus
2%. Outstanding balances at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were zero.

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Full-time employees participate in the State of New
^  n



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018 '

Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS), a public employee retirement system that administers one
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan) and four separate cost-
sharing multiple-employer postemployment medical subsidy healthcare plans. The Pension Plan was
established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections
401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a contributory, defined benefit
plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school teachers and administrators,
permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to
participate in the Pension Plan. Full-time employees of political subdivisions, including counties,
municipalities and school districts, are also eligible to participate as a group if the goveming body of
the political subdivision h^ elected participation.

NHRS is divided into two membership groups. By statute. Group I (employee and teacher)
members contribute 7% of their salary to NHRS. Group II (police & fire) members contribute
11.5% and 11.8% respectively. While member rates are set by statute, employer rates are set by the
NHRS Board of Trustees every two years after a biennial actuarial valuation is conducted using the
Entry Age Normal actuarial method. Employer contributions are assessed at five different rates, one
each for state employees, political subdivisions employees, teachers, police and fire. NHRS
employers are required by the New Hampshire Constitution to pay 100% of the actuarial sound
employer contribution rate as certified by the NHRS Board of Trustees to fully fund the pension plan
and to pay down the retirement system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a . closed
amortization period. Currently, employer contribution rates for the period July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019 are as follows:

Group I

Medical

Pension Subsidy Total

Employees 11.08% 0.30% 11.38%
Teachers 15.70% 1.66% 17.36%

For reporting purposes, the Agency follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,-which requires
participating employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and pension expense. Estimated
collective amounts have been allocated by NHRS based on employer contributions during the
respective fiscal years. Contributions to the plan are recognized when legally due, based on
statutory requirements. This information along with significant assumptions and inputs for total
pension liabilities, the NHRS's fiduciary net position and current year sources of changes to net
pension liabilities are available for the plan as a whole as well as audited cost-sharing schedules by
individual members in the System's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and other annual
reports are available from the NHRS located at Regional Drive ~ Concord, NH 03301-8509 or on its
web site at: https://www.nhrs.org • and https://www.nhrs.org/emDlovers/emDlover-resources/gasb/gasb-
reports

Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the cost-sharing multiple-employer
postemployment medical subsidy plan (OPEB Plan) are set by state law (RSA 100-A:52, RSA
I00-A:52-a and RSA 100-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The four
membership types re Group II, Police Officers and Firefighters; Group I, Teachers; Group I, Political
Subdivision Employees; and group I, State Employees. The OPEB Plan provides a medical

■" 12



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

vJuhe 30, 2019 and 2018

insurance subsidy to qualified retired members. The medical insurance subsidy is a payment made
by NHRS to the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance
for a qualified retiree, his^er qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent children with a
disability who are living in the household and being cared for by the retiree. If the health insurance
premium amount is less than.the medical subsidy amount, then only the health insurance premium
amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy amount,
then the retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer does
not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age and retirement date. Group II benefits are based
on hire date, age and creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants. Maximum
medical subsidy rates paid during fiscal years 2018 (the most recently available valuation dates)
were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $375.56 for a
single-person plan and $751.12 for a two-person plan.

•  For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $236.84 for a
single-person plan and $473.68 for a two-person plan.

For reporting purposes, the Agency follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, which requires
the Agency to recognize their proportionate share of collective OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources and OPEB expense. However, those amounts were not
available for inclusion in this report. As provided in the reports above, collective amounts have been
allocated based on employer contributions during the respective fiscal years. Contributions to the
plan are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements. This information along with
significant assumptions and inputs for total OPEB liabilities, the NHRS's fiduciary net position and
current year sources of changes to net pension liabilities are available for the plan as a whole as well
as audited cost-sharing schedules by individual members in the System's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and other annual reports are available from the NHRS located at Regional Drive -
Concord, NH 03301-8509 or on its web site at: httDs://www.nhrs.org and
httDs://www.nhrs.ore/emDlovers/emDlover-resources/gasb/gasb-reDorts

NET ASSETS

Board Designated Net Asset, During FY2018, the board established an allowance for building
repairs and improvements and is funding it monthly based on prior loan payment amounts of
$1,884. Balances of the reserve account and available for that purpose as of June 20, 2019 and
2018 were $64,056 and $41,448 respectively.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets.

Restricted For Program Purposes. Net assets restricted by grantors for program purposes
include the following:

13



NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Distance Leaming/Follet '  $ - $ 2,924

Coos County Director's Network 93,108 86,629

Jane's Trust 43,745 -

NHCF Operating Support 14,149 -

Tillotson - Hi SET 435 -

Tillotson - North of the 44th - 192

NHCTA 163,089 170,211

USDA - 32,038

CDN ECERS 2017 - 2,036

CDN ECERS 2018 - 6,587

$  314,526 $ 300,617

SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Grants. Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally State oversight agencies or the Federal government.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
Agency. The amount which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the Agency expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

14
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Schedule 1

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Comparative Schedule ofPension Obligations

As of June 30,2019

All amounts are expressed in USA Dollars

Estimated future pension obligations - New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS). Selected comparative information from NHRS*s audited
financial statements and cost-sharing schedules that is specific to the Agency is as follows:

Valuation as of June 30,

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Proportionate share 0.03138606% 0.03000652% 0.02908921% 0.02839177% 0.02942595% 0.02299710%

Employer contribution

Net Pension Liability

$  78,043

$  1,350,788

$

$

97,348

1,126,320

$

S

97,590

1,152,377

$

$

101,665

1,509,759

$

$

107,800

1,447,166

$

S

97,199

1,107,357

Deferred outflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual base year - - 4,196 3,281 8,839

Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan investments base year - - 94,458 145,315 -

Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion

base year

base year

- • 185,803 36,237 76,635

27,148

Total deferred onflows ofresources % $ _ $ . S 284,457 $ 184,833 $ 112,622

Deferred inflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual base year - 25,288 19,065 18,418 8,966

Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan investments base year ' 144,114 30,799 - 18,430 25,625

Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion

base year

base year 48,784 69,834 75,311 51,814 258,881

Total deferred inflows ofresources $  ■ $ 192,898 $ 125,921 $ 94,376 $ 88,662 $ 293,472

Pension expense:

Proportionate share of plan pension expense base year 76,366 74,458 166,542 153,526 110,012

Net amortization of deferred amounts from changes .

in proportion base year (10,588) (17,788) (23,497) (14,409) (75,601)

Total employer pension expense $ S 65,778 $ 56,670 '$ 143,045 $ 139,117 $ 34,411
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This information should be read in conjunction with the audited actuarial reports presented by the NHRS. This information along with significant

assumptions and inputs for total pension liabilities, the NHRS's fiduciary net position and current year sources of changes to net pension liabilities are
available for the plan as a whole as well as audited cost-sharing schedules by individual members in the System's Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report and other annual reports are available from the NHRS located at Regional Drive - Concord, NH 03301-8509 or on its web site at
https://www.nhrs.org/funding-and-investments/reports-valuations/annual-report-archive and https://www.nhrs.org/employers/gasb/gasb-67-68-reports . As

noted there in, the preparation of those reports requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts.

Due to the inherent nature and uncertainty of those estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences could be material. As of June 30, 2019, the

Agency has recognized ail statutorily required contributions to the plan. Unless additional assessments are imposed by the NHRS Board due to

insolvency or some other circumstances, all future obligations to the plan will become due as a percentage of qualifying wages as they are paid by the

Agency. At this time, management understands that that the NHRS foresees no likelihood of additional assessment beyond normal contribution rates,

which are established every two years by a statutorily-govemed rate-setting process. All future obligations of the Agency to the NHRS will be paid from

16



Schedule 2

NORTH COUNTRY EDUCATION SERVICES AGENCY

Comparative Schedule of Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligations
As of June 30, 2019

All amounts an expnssed in USA Dollars

Estimated future OPEB obligations - New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS). Selected
comparative information from NHRS's audited financial statements and cost-sharing schedules that
is specific to the School District is as follows:

valuation as ot june JU,

Proportionate share
Employer contribution

Net OPEB Liability

Deferred outflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments

Changes of assumptions
cnanges m proportion

Total deferred ou flows ofresources

Deferred inflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual

Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on OPEB plan investments
Changes of assumptions
i^nanges in proponion

Total deferred inflows ofresources

OPEB expense:

Proportionate share of plan OPEB expense
Net amortization of deterred amounts from changes

in proportion

Total employer OPEB expense

2016 2017 2018

0.03170407% 0.03325286% 0.00185088%

$ 18,422 $  19,709 $ 8,187

S 153,481 $  152,043 $ 84,742

base year - 497

base year - -

base year - -

base year 2,253 -

s - $  2,253 $ 497

base year - -

base year 480 269

base year - -

base year - 14,348

$ - $  480 $ 14,617

base year ^  11,253 7,805

base year 5,245 (51,026)

$ - $  16,498 S (43,221)

This information should be read in conjunction with the audited actuarial reports presented by the NHRS. This
information along with significant assumptions and inputs for total OPEB liabilities, the NHRS's fiduciary net position
and current year sources of changes to net OPEB liabilities are available for the plan as a whole as well as audited cost-
sharing schedules by individual members in the System's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and other annual
reports are available from the NHRS located at Regional Drive ~ Concord, NH 03301-8509 or on its web site at:

httns://Www.nhrs.org/emDlovcrs/emnlover-resourccs/gasb/gasb-reDorts

As noted there in. the preparation of those reports requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions
relating to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and uncertainty of those estimates, actual results could
differ, and the differences could be material. As of June 30, 2019, the Agency has recognized all statutorily required
contributions to the plan. Unless additional assessments are imposed by the NHRS Board due to insolvency or some
other circumstances, all future obligations to the plan will become due as a percentage of qualifying wages as they are
paid by the Agency. At this time, management understands that that the NHRS foresees no likelihood of additional
assessment beyond normal contribution rates, which are established every two years by a staiutorily-govemed rate-setting
process. All future obligations of the Agency to the NHRS will be paid by current appropriations as they become due.
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Dr. Marlon Anastasia
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Superintendent SAU 7
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Dr. Corinne Cascadden
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Randall Pilotte
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Member at Large
Personnel Member
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WOKK His tory

Student Assistant Program Coordinator, 09/2019 to Current

ADAPT Inc. / Lin-Wood Public Schools - Lincoln, NH

• Provide individual counseling services to high school and middle school students with substance abuse

issues and partnered to facilitate weekly support groups

• Co-Teach health, wellness, and adventure education course for 7th grade students

• Create and execute school wide events to promote positive school climate, wellness and substance abuse

prevention

• Established group to create and updated athletics substance abuse policy for High School

• Run afterschool wilderness program to promote health, wellness, and substance use education

Adventure Coordinator, 06/2018 to 08/2019

New York YMCA - Huguenot, New York

• Oversaw all challenge course functioning, risk management, staff training and equipment

• Factored-in abilities, needs and interests of participants in development of events and programs

• Oversaw all logistics, hiring, and training's summer teen programs

• Maintained parent and community relationships necessary to develop and execute summer camp programs

^  Education

Master of Science: Advanced Pedagogy, In Progress

Springfield College - Springfield, MA

Bachelor of Science: Movement and Sport Studies, 2016

Springfield College - Springfield, MA

Certifications & Trainings

• First-Aid, CPR, AED, and Emergency Oxygen • Project SUCCESS

• Lifeguard • ACE's & Trauma Informed Counseling

• SafeSport • Prevention Ethics

• Harm Reduction • Botvins Life Skill



-STUDENT-FOCUSED EDUCATOR, FACILITATOR & DIRECTOR-

has used experiential education & recreation as a vehicle to empower the students he works with to lead and promote the
benefits ofa healthy lifestyle."

-Wendy Hamill, Cuidance Director Laconia Public School

INTRODUCTION

Dynamic and passionate professional who has a proven and accomplished record working with students of all
ages; over twenty successful years utilizing his knowledge and skills to meet the unique needs of the
community from a wide range of backgrounds. Has introduced a number of Innovative programs, clubs and
intramural sports based on needs assessments such as Project D.J. "For Youth By Youth," Youth Leadership
Through Adventure {an adventure approach to teaching service learning and leadership skills, outing club
intramural tennis, golf, and basketball.

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATIONS

1996-2001 Plymouth State College Plymouth, NH
Bachelor of Science, Physical Education
Option: Recreation Leadership
Minor: Health

Certified Project SUCCESS Coordinator
Certified Prime for Life Instructor

Certified Life Skills Instructor '

Certified Project Venture Facilitator

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

profile Middle High School^ ' 2013-2019.
Project SUCCESS Counselor

Implementing the Evidence Based Intervention Project SUCCESS at Profile Public School with fidelity.

'A.D.A.P.T., Inc. - Lincoln, NH I 1999-PreserS
Project SUCCESS Counselor Supervision/ YLTA. WYLD .CEO.

Determining the mission and purpose of the organization. Leading and inspiring all aspects of the organization
including planning, administering needs assessments, budgeting. programming, financial reporting, payroll,
resource management, human resources, fundraising. grant writing, social enterprise, public relations, special
events and the training and supervision of staff. Implementing the Evidence Based Intervention Project
SUCCESS at Lin-Wood Public School with fidelity. Supporting the mission of the organization and creating
sustainable model programs.

O.C.T.A.A. (On Campus Talking About Alcohol) - Plymouth. NH 1 2008-Present;
instructor Plymoutii State University,
Facilitating the Evidence Based Intervention Prime for Life for University alcohol policy violators on a
bi-weekly basis.

|rhe Center for Adolescent Health/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic Plymouth. NH 2006-201Ci
Director of Experiential Programming



Implementation of culturally sensitive experiential programming for at-risk youth; including rock climbing,
backpacking, snowshoeing, white water rafting and service learning.

j\.D.A.P.T., Inc. ̂  Lincoln, Nrf I 1992-1999
positive Youth Development specialist ^

Programming, planning and organizing field trips, mentoring, designing and building of a challenge course.
Working with children in grades 1-12 by developing and offering a unique after school and summer adventure
program.



EDUCATION

Bachelors of Science, Health Science

Keene State College, Keene NH

Mcior: Heolfh Science Specialization in Behavior

Minor: Psychology'

QUALIFICATIONS;

Suicide Prevention Certificotion

•  Keene State College

Project Success troining
e  Student Assistance Services Corporation

Project ALERT

e  Project ALERT Corporation

Botvin LifeSkills

e  National Health Promotions A

Ethics In Prevention

•  SAMHSA's Center for the Applicotion of Prevention

Technologies-

gain's Screening Training
•  Chestnut Health Systems

Lifeguard CPR AED'& First Aid Certified

•  American Red Cross

Water Instructor Certification

•  American Red Cross

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Thornton Central School

Student Assistant Provider (Foil 2016- Current]

Promotes Drug and Alcohol Prevention

Works v/ith Middle and High School students
Advisor for both Middle and High school Chem. free club

Plans workshops and activities for different school climote projects

•'' Responsible for teaching Project Success progrom

Adopt Adventure Summer Camp

Lead Counselor [Summer 2011-2013]

Adventure Program Dire^or [Summer 2014-. Current]
Responsible for developing and promoting the summer program

Accountable for scheduling and booking field trips

Held responsible for finances

Organizes newsletters to porents

Facilitating and encouraging healthy behoviors

Holds leadership role with staff and'students

Adapt After School Proaramming

Coordinator [Fall 2018 - Current]

e  Responsible for developing and promoting After School Program

•  Accountoble for scheduling both stoff and Field Trips

•  Implementing healthy relationships, routines and lifestyles

•  Held responsible for finances

•  Lead communication between staff and parents

•  Organize newsletters to parents and staff
•  Holds leadership role with staff and students



DRUG PREVENTION EXPERIENCE

• Wilderness Youth Leadership Development '

o  Co-facilitating different bockpocking trips throughout NH with high school students

O  Co-focilitoting activities such as rock climbing, white water rafting, and zip-lining

e  Youth Leadership Through Adventure

o  Co-facilitdting different school climate workshops

O  Focilitating different activities based around leadership, communication, team building and goal setting

e  High School Leadership Conference

o Organizing and developing a schedule for the conference

O  Implementing different leadership workshops

O Managing over 100 students throughout the course of a week-end

o Applying the fitted youth leaders to co-facilitate the conference

•  Leadership Club Middle and High School

o  Designed ond implemented a guide to hold a chem. free leadership club

o Applied fitted youth leaders to facilitote the group

O  Provided youth leaders with workshops and activities to help school climate

o  Successfully ran school climate workshops

INTERPERSONAL SKILLS

e  Youthful yet mature, willing to learn and grow, passionate about achieving a challenging position that allows meaningful

contributions to the program

•  Persistent and driven; acquiring BS degree while working two to three jobs at a time

•  Skills in computers; google docs. Web Design, marketing ond social media

•  Outstanding leadership, time management, interpersonal, planning, and communication abilities. Great people and sales skills.

REFERENCES

•  Sean O'Brien (Executive Director of Adapt]

o  1(603)236-9227



North Countr>' Education Ser>'ices

Direct Prevention Ser\'ices 2020-2021

Kev Personnel

Name Job Title Salar)' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Annaliese Schmiel Program Co-Facilitator $37,500 100% $37,500

Sean O'Brien Program Director $80,000 44% $35,000

Erika Habley Program Co-Facilitator $37,500 100% $37,500

.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Health Consortium

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2^^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and North Country Health
Consortium, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Nonprofit Corporation with a place of
business at 262 Cottage St., Suite 230, Littleton, NH 03561.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 20, 2018, (ltem#23) as amended on June 1.9, 2019, (Item #29A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
or modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$900,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14. to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with
students in grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15. to read:

2.15. Reserved

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1; to read:

6.1., The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with '
students in grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.2. to read:

6.2. Reserved

7. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4.,
Subsection 4.1., to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and B-2, Amendment #2. .

North Country Health Consortium Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-07-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date 6/8/2020



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Health Consortium

"St,

81 Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

North Country Health Consortium Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-07.A02 Page2of4 pate 6/8/2020



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Health Consortium

All. terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

-f
Name;

Title:

North Country Health Consortium

6/8/2020

Date Name:' Becky McEnany
Title: Interim CEO

North Country Health Consortium

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-07-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Health Consortium

ar

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020 Q
Date t^me:

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of
meeting).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

North Country Health Consortium Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-07-A02 Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 05,

1998. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 301456

Certificate Number: 0004879131

ai O/s

y

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Michael 0. Lee hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporatioo/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/SecretsryfOfficer of North Country Health Consortium .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shafeholders, duly called and
held on May 10,2019, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votmg.

(Date)

VOTED: That Heckv McFnanv (or anv officer of NCHC Roardl (may list more than ore person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duty authorized on behalf of North Country Heatth Consorthrm to enter Into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is auttwrized to execute any and ad
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in fuQ force and effect as of the
date of the contracVcontract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remairw valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Auttxwity. I furtttor certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wfll rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
aO such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 5,2020 i*teha«tK (Jun5J020ltel9 ICm

Signature of Qected OfTtcer
Name: Michael 0. Lee

Title: NCHC Board President

President, Weeks Medical Center

Rev. 03/24/20



/XCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {MM/OO/YYYY}

04/06/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, .

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Geo M Stevens & Son Co

149 Main Street

Lancaster NH 03584

naUSe*^^ Patricia Bigelow-Emery
(503)788-2555 (603)788.3901

AOMESS: pemerytggms-ins.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC»

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURED

North Country Health Consortium Inc

262 Cottage Street, Suite 230

LItUeton NH 03561

INSURER B United Financial Casualty Co. 11770

INSURER C Eastern Alliance Insurance Company

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES . CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL204611903 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR
TOUT

WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/PP/YYYYI LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE . X OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

PHPK2057544 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

MED EXP (Any one peJ^on)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

PRO
JECTPOLICY□ □LOC

OTHER;

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Professional Liability

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000.000

s 2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acdttgnil S 1,000,000-

BOOiLY INJURY (Per person)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

00263832-1 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per acck)eoO
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddeni)
Uninsured motorist $ 1,000,000

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE ,4,000,000

PHUB699475. 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

X RETENTIONS 10.WX)
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY
ANY PROPRlETORfPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Menditory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

m 01-0000114697-02 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT, 100,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 100,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarlts Scheduli, may be attached If more space is required)

Health Consortium
NH Workers Compensation-excluded officers are Michael Lee. Karen Woods, Edward Shanshala II

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Sen/ices State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NORTH COUNTRY
HEALTH CONSORTIUM

North Country Health Consortium Mission Statement:

"To lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region.

The North Country Health Consortium (NCHC) is a non-profit 501{c}3 rural health network,

created in 1997, as a vehicle for addressing common issues through collaboration among health
and human'service providers serving Northern New Hampshire.

NCHC is engaged in activities for:

•  Solving common problems and facilitating regional solutions

•  Creating and facilitating services and programs to improve population health status

•  Health professional training, continuing education and management services

to encourage sustainability of the health care infrastructure

•  Increasing capacity for local public health essential services

•  Increasing access to health care for underserved and uninsured residents of Northern

New Hampshire.

262 Cottage Street, Suite 230, Littleton, NH 03561

Phone: 603-259-3700; Fax: 603-444-0945
www.uchciih.oiv • uchdo^nchcnh.orf!
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

North Countr)'Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidlar)'
Littleton, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Subsidiary', which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's ResponsihUity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's ResponsihUity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

A.M. PEISCH &.COMPANY. LLP

401 V^ater Towet Circl"? P.O. Box 460 30 Congfess Street 1020 Memorial Drive . 24 Airport Road
Suite 302 RutlaixJ, VT 0S7O2 Suite 201 St. Johnsbury. VT 05819 Suite 402

Colchester, ̂/T 05446 (802) 773-2721 St. Albans, VT 0547S (802) 740-5654 West Lebar>on. NH 0378'i

(802)654-7255 (802)527-0505 (603)306-0100



We believe that the audit evidence we have.obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary as of September
30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes,in its net assets, functional expenses, and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 17,
2020, on our consideration of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and-grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit perfomied in accordance with Government Auditing Standards '\ n considering North Country
Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

St. Albans, Vermont

March 17, 2020

VT Reg. No. 92-0000102

-2-



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Grants and contracts

Dental services

Certificates of deposit

Prepaid e.vpenses

Restricted cash - IDN

Total current assets

Property and equipment:

Computers and equipment

Dental equipment

Furnitures and fixtures

Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Restricted cash - (DN

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued wages and related liabilities

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Deferred revenue • Long term portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  947.618 .5 687.847

1,0.11,598 966,962

- 898

126.701 126.065

33.068 21.356

2.340.257 1.987,216

4,459,242 3,790,344

147,392 147,392

10.815 32,808 ,

30,045 30,045

18.677 18.677

(181,007) (170,735)

25.922 58.187

400.000 800.000

400,000 800.000

$  4.885,164 $ ■  4.648.531

$  204.323 $ 396.039

13.389 8,983

354.015 265,717

2,849,839 1,854,420

3,421,566 2,525,159

400.000 . 800,000

400,000 800,000

3.821.566 " 3.325,159

1.063.598 ■ 1.323.372

1,063,598 1,323.372

$  4,885,164 $ 4,648,531

See accompanying notes.

-3-



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

See accompanying notes.

2019 2018

Support:

Grant and contract revenue

Revenue:

Dental patient revenue

Fees for programs and services

Interest income

Other income

Total revenue

Total support and revenue
j

Program expenses:

Workforce

Public health

Molar

Friendship house

CSAP

Total program expenses

Management and general

Total expenses

Loss on sale of property and equipment

r

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, beginning of the year

NET ASSETS, end of the year

$  4,956,424

15,462

1,733,329

6,337

2,050

1,757,178

6,713,602

2,201,736

108,996

103,152

2,390,474

1,670,554

6,474,912

495,512

6,970,424 .

(2,952)

(259.774)

1,323,372

1,063,598

$  5,017,825

101,092

1,455,860

6,085

12,766

1,575,803

6,593,628

3,263,756

198,719

219,335

1,654,782

869,873

6,206,465

485,028

6,691,493

(97,865)

1,421,237

$  1,323,372

-4-



NORTH COUNTRY IIEvVLTII CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATE.MENT OK KUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FO{) THE YEAR ENDEI) SEPTE.MBER 30. 2019

Friendship Management A
ttorkforee Public Health Molar House CSAP Total Procrom General Total

Pcrjonnd;

Stiuies S  969.23! i 72,859 S  72,634 S  1.454,659 S  831.437 5  3.400.820 8  306,627 S  3.707,447
'  Paj'rol! (axes and employee benefits 186.72! 15,348 • 13,385 . 296,250 156.563 668,267 47.097 715,364

Subiolal 1,1JJ,952 88.207 86,019 1.750,909 988.000 4.069,087 353.724 4,422,81 1

Site expenses:

Computer fees 10,804 830 • 990 17.033 8,027 37.684 4,468 42.152
Medical and pharmacy sipplirs, MOA 640.669 1.810 8.811 28.179 396,126 I.OSI.595 834 1,082.429
Office supplies 6.044 2.800 324 45.308 25.439 79.915 •  17,126 97.041
Pood

- 74.719 . 74.719 74.719

Subtotal 663.517 5,440 . 10.12.'' 165,239 429,592 1.273.913 ' 22,428 1.296.341

General: -

Dad debts
. 12.153 12,153 . 12,153

Depreciation .  • 3,134 3,735 6,869 20.443 . 27,312
Dues. nKtnberships, education, and subscriptions •  145,997 30 265 16,659 478 163,429 9.571 173,000
Staff developttwnt 1,299 626 20! 293, 1.449 3.868 262 4,130
Equipntenl and maintenance 20,044 - 4,597 14,128 38.769 2.517 41.286
Rent and occupancy 44,146 3.773 921 222.386 3|-,:57 302.483 21.088 323.571
Insurance 5.520 1.188 930 7,989 4,371 19 993 5.213 25.211
Miscellaneous 24.114 - (2.285) 2,502 13,183 37.514 5,969 43.483
Payroll processinK fees 115 50 995 131 1.291 9,140 10.431 ■
Posiase 1.130 69 65 1,277 785 3,326 691 ■ 4.017
Printing 3.800 ISO 250 •  4,690 4.935 13,855 1,863 15,718
Professional fees 9,327 793 386 136.619 • 5.895 153,020 11.740 '  164,760
Training fees and supplies 36,593 2.983 83 I I.6S5 •  73,172 124.486 13.586 138,072
Travel 50,677 4.7IW •  2.094 22.416 50,437 130.328 7.139 137,467
Telephone 10.014 953 397 20.608 6.033 38.005 1.141 39.146
\ ehicle expense 567 5.752 . 6.319 (162) 6.157
Kvmt facility fees 29.491 . 46.708 76.199 9.159 85.358

Subtotal 382.267 15,349 7.008 474.326 252.962 1.131.912 119.360 1.251.272

Total expenses S  2.201,736 s 108,996 S  103.152 S  2.390,474 S  1.670.554 S  6.474.912 J  495,512 %  6.970,424

See ttcconipanying noiM.



NORTH COUNTRV HElAl.TH CONSORTtUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIAKV

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL E.VPF_NSES

FOR THE VE/\R ENDED SEPTE.MBER 30.201S

Friendship Manauemeni A
Workforce Pi4)lic Health Molar House CSAP Total Ptoitram Gerwral Total

Personnel:

Salaries J  987,365 S 1 15.572 $  112,796 5  1.102,500 S  377.817 $  2.696.050 8  281,983 $  2,978.033

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 185,49: 20.750 21.93$ 191,092 70.231 489,503 48,518 538.021

SubloiaJ 1.172.857 136.322 134.734 1.293,592 448,048 3.185.553 330,501 3,516.054

Site expenses:

Computer fees 16,218 l.l$6 3J92 14,15$ 4,688 39,642 3.161 42.803

Medical and pharmacy si<>plies. MOA l,6IO,:i2 36.431 55,217 20,063 307,207 2.029,130 4.967 2.034.097

OITice sivplies 17,314 • 2.634 44$ 55,007 9,892 85,295 30.617 115.912

Pood 58,405 • 58,405 . 58.405

Subtotal 1.643,744 40.251 59,057 147,633 321,787 2.212,472 38.745 2,251.217

Geneial:

Bad debt 12.847 . 12,847 12.847

- Depreciation 6,869 . 6,869 26.613 33.482

Dues, memberships, education, and stibscriptions 203.919 59 76 1.448 •  3,429 208,931 8.658 217.589

Education and uaining 2.10$ 140 1,050 3,298 45 3.343

l^ttipmenl and maintenance 22.299 544 3.787 . 26,630 2.420 29,050

Rent and occupancy- 51.$42 5.628 6,099 96.70$ 19,061 179,338 20.556 199.894

Insurance 5.364 972 1.173 5.254 1.902 14.665 5.016 19,681

.Miscellaneous 219 6.757 975 7.951 7,951

Payroll processing fees 150 50 600 94 894 9.105 9,999

Postage 1.646 168 178 1.073 562 • 3.627 313 3,940

Printing 4.208 366 1.175 2.835 1.495 10.079 1.756 11,835

Professional fees 26.047 1,000 2.797 34.789 3.784 68.417 19.353 87,770

Training fees and supplies 53.602 914 l.OOO 10.580 9.968 76.064 4.758 80,822

Travel 47.224 2,806 1.475 26.851 27.947 106.303 8.423 114,726

Telephone 10.222 1,1 16 501 9.997 2.351 24.187 1.327 25,514

Vehicle expense - 3.298 31 3.329 497 3,826

Event facility fees 18.524 9,067 . 27.420 55.011 6.942 61,953

Subtotal 447.155 22.146 25.544 213.557 100.038 $08,440 115.782 924,222

Total expenses $  3.263.756 $ 198,719 $  219.335 $  1,654.782 $  869.873 $  6,206.465 S  485.028 J  6.691,493

See accompanying notes.



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  (259,774) $  (97,865)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 27,312 33,482

Bad debt expense 12,153 12,847

Loss on sale of property and equipment 2,952 •

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable - Grants and contracts (56,789) (431,418)

Accounts receivable • Dental services • 898 (34)

Prepaid expenses (1 1,712) (1 1,396)

Restricted cash - IDN 46,959 . (565,828)

.  Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable (191,716) 290,694

Accrued expenses 4,406. 2,062

Accrued wages and related liabilities 88,298 1 i 1,263

Deferred revenue 595,419 .  269,155

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 258,406 (387,038)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Reinvestment of certificates of deposit interest (636) (525)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 2,001 .  -

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,365 (525)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 259,771 ,  (387,563)

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 687,847 1,075,410

Ending cash and cash equivalents $  947,618 $  687,847.

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of activities

North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (NCHC) {the 'Organization) is a not-for-profit
health center chartered under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Organization's mission is to
lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region. NCHC is engaged in promoting
and facilitating access to sendees and programs, that improve the health status of the area population,
provide health training and educational opportunities for healthcare purposes, and provide region-wide
dental ser\'ices for an underserved and uninsured residents.

The Organization's wholly owned subsidiary, North Countr>' ACO (the ACO), is a non-profit 501(c)(3)
charitable corporation formed in December 201 1. This entity was fornied as an accountable care
organization (ACO) with its purpose to support the programs and activities of the ACO participants to
improve the overall health of their respective populations and communities. A- nominal cash balance
remains and activities have ceased.

The Organization's primary programs are as follows:

Network and Workforce Activities - To provide workforce education programs and promote oral health
initiatives for the Organization's dental ser\'ices.

Public Health and CSAP - To conduct community substance abuse prevention activities, coordination of
public health networks, and promote community emergency response plan.

Dental Services and Molar - To sustain a program offering oral health services for children and low
income adults in northern New Hampshire.

Friendship House - A residential facility to provide patient drug and alcohol treatment and recover}'.

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

Financial.statemcnt presentation
I

Financial statements presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 1 17, Financial Statement of Not-
for-Profit Organizations and the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-
For-Profit Entities: Presentation of Financial Statements ofNot-or-Profit Entities. Under ASU No. 2016-
14, the Organization is required to report inforriiation regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets; net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor
restrictions. The Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions at September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless
of the measurement focus applied.



Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., measurable and earned. Measurable refers to the ability to
quantify in monetary terms the amount of the revenue and receivable. Expenses are recognized when they
become liable for payment.

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of North Countr>' Health
Consortium, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary-, North Country ACO. All inter-company transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Stales of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period;
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of risk

The Organization's operations are affected by various risk factors, including credit risk and risk from
geographic concentration and concentrations of funding sources. Management attempts to manage risk by
obtaining and maintaining revenue funding from a variety of sources. A substantial portion of the
Organization's activities are funded through grants and contracts with private, federal, and state agencies.
As a result, the Organization may be vulnerable to the consequences of change in the ayailability of
funding sources and economic policies at the agency level." The Organization generally doe's not require
collateral to secure its receivables.

Revenue recognition

Below are the revenue recognition policies of the Organization:

Dental Patient Revenue

Dental services are recorded as revenue within the fiscal year related to the service period.

Grant and Contract Revenue,
Grants and contracts are recorded as revenue in the period they are earned by satisfaction of grant or
contract requirements.

Fees for Programs and Sez-vices
Fees for programs and services are recorded as revenue in the period the related services were performed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

-9-



Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summar)' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Restricted cash - IDN

Restricted cash - IDN consists of advanced funding received from The State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services for the Integrated Delivery Network program (IDN). The
original advance of funds of $2,000,000 is to be used to fund the Organization's cost of administering the
IDN over a period of five years, beginning in fiscal year 2017. The remaining balance is to be distributed
to participants.

For the years ending September 30, 2019 and 2018, these amounts were restricted as follows;

■  2019 2018 ■

Administration fee to the Organization $ 800,000 $ 1,200,000

Distributions to participants 1,940,257 1,587,216

$• 2,740,257 $ 2,787,216

Accounts receivable

The Organization has receivable balances due from dental services provided to individuals and from
grants and contracts received from federal, state, and private agencies. Management reviews the
receivable balances for collectability and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
information, estimated contractual adjustments, and current economic trends. Management considers the
individual circumstances when determining the collectability of past due amounts. Balances that are still
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to
earnings and a credit to accounts receivable. Any collection fees or related costs are expensed in the year
incurred. The Organization recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated contractual
adjustments for dental service of $0 and $598 as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and an
allowance for doubtful accounts for grants and contracts of $25,000 and $12,847 as of September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The Organization does not charge interest on its past due accounts, and
collateral is generally not required;

Certificates of deposit

The Organization has three certificates of deposit that may be withdrawn without penalty with one
financial institution. These certificates cariy original terms of 12 months to 24 months, have interest rates
ranging from .50% to .55%, and mature at various dates through September 2020.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Organization generally
capitalizes property and equipment with an estimated useful life in excess of one year and installed costs
over $2,500. Lesser amounts are generally expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at
cost.

- 10-



Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summarj' of SigniFicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Propert)' and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method using the following ranges of
estimated useful lives:

Computers and equipment 3-7 years
Dental equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation expense totaled $27,312 and $33,482 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue is related to advance payments on grants or advance billings relative to anticipated
expenses or events in future periods. The revenue is realized when the expenses are incurred or as
services are provided in the period earned.

Net assets

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activity according
to two classes of net assets; without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of unrestricted amounts that are available for use in

carrying out the mission of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions - consist of those amounts that are donor restricted for a specific
purpose. When a donor restriction expires, either by the passage of a stipulated time restriction or by the
accomplishment of a specific purpose restriction, temporarily restricted net assets are reciassifled to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
The Organization has elected, however, to show those restricted contributions whose restrictions are met
in the same reporting period as they are received as unrestricted support. The Organization had no net
assets \vith donor restrictions at September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Income taxes

The Organization and the AGO are exempt from federal income ta.xes under Section 50) (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and are not classified as, private foundations. However, income from certain
activities not directly related to the Organization's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated
business income. The Organization had no unrelated business income activity subject to taxation for the
years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

The Organization had adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10. FASB ASC 740-10 prescribes a/
recognition threshold and measurement attributable for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or'expected to be taken in a tax return, and provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest, and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition. Based on management's evaluation, management has concluded that there were no significant
uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the financial statements at September 30, 2019 and 2018.



Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summar)' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Although the Organization is not currently the subject of a tax examination by the Internal Revenue
Service or the State of New Hampshire, the Organization's tax years ended September 30, 2016 through
September 30, 2019 are open to examination by the taxing authorities under the applicable statue of
limitations.

Functional expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the Statement of Activities. Expenses are charged to programs based on direct expenses incurred and
certain costs, including salaries and fringe,benefits, are allocated to the programs and supporting services
based upon related utilization and benefit.

Change in accounting principle

The Organization adopted the provisions of ASU No. 2016-14, Not-For-Profii Entities: Presentation of
Financial Statements ofNot-For-Profit Entities during fiscal year 2019. The ASU was issued to improve
reporting by not-for-profit entities in the areas of net asset classifications and information provided about
liquidity. Upon adoption of this standard the Organization has disclosed classifications of net assets in
Note 1, and disclosed information about liquidity and availability in Note 8 of the financial statements.
There is no effect on the change in net assets for the 2019 and 2018 fiscal years.

Implementation of new accounting pronouncements

Management is reviewing the following Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, which are effective for future years, for possible implementation and to
determine their effect on the Organization's financial reporting.

ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This ASU includes new revenue
measurement and recognition guidance, as well as required additional disclosures. The ASU is effective
for annual reporting beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual
reporting beginning after December 15, 2019. The effect of this ASU has not been quantified.

ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASU requires lessees to recognize the following for all
leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date; (I) a lease liability, which is
the lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and
(2) a right-of-use asset which is an asset that represents the lessee's right to use, or control the use of, a
specified asset for the lease temi. For short-temi leases (term of twelve months or less), a lessee is
permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets
and lease liabilities. If a lessee makes the election, it should recognize lease expense for such leases
generally on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The ASU is effective for annual periods, and
interim reporting periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15. 2019. The effect of
this ASU has not been quantified.

ASU No. 2016-1 Statement ofCash Flows: Restricted Cash. This ASU clarifies how to report restricted
cash in the statement of cash flows. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. This ASU will have
minimal effect on the Organization's financial statements.
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Note 2. Cash Concentrations

The Organization maintains cash balances at two financial institutions. Their bank accounts at the
institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial
institution. Cash balances at the institutions did not e.xceed federally insured limits as of September 30,
2019, but may have exceeded the limits during the year. Management believes the Organization is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash as of September 30, 2019.

The Organization manages credit risk relative to cash concentrations by utilizing "sweep" accounts. The
Organization maintains ICS Sweep accounts that invest cash balances in other financial institutions at
amounts that do not exceed FDIC insurable limits. All cash at these institutions is held in interest-bearing
money market accounts. Interest rales on these balances ranged from .10% to .15% as of September 30,
2019.

Note 3. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space in Littleton, NH under a three year operating lease that expires in
October 2020. The Organization has the option to renew the lease for two additional years.

The Organization operates the Friendship House, an outpatient drug and alcohol treatment facility and
program. The Organization leases the premises under a five-year operating lease that expires March 2023,
with monthly rent and CAM fee payments of $19,582. The CAM fee portion is to be adjusted annually.

The Organization leases satellite offices in Lebanon, NH, Berlin, NH, Tamworth, NH, Woodsville,.NH,
and Conway, NH under month-to-month operating lease agreements.

\

In addition, the Organization leases various copiers with lease terms ranging from thirty-six months to
sixty months, expiring on various dates through March 2023.

Future minimum rental payments under lease commitments are as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2020 $ 341,896

2021 243,916

2022 234,985

2023 ' 117,492
Thereafter . -

938,289

Lease expense for the aforementioned leases was $323,073 and $132,746 for the years ended September
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Note 4. Deferred Revenue

The summary of the components of deferred revenue as of September 30, are as follows:

Deferred Revenue - IDN

Deferred Revenue - Other-

Total

2019

2,992,839

257,000

2018-

2,387,744

266,676

$  3,249,839 $ 2,654,420

Deferred revenue - IDN

Under the terms of an agreement between the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Ser\'ices (CMS) and the
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Ser\'ices, various Integrated Delivery
Networks (IDN) are to be established, within geographic regions across the state to develop programs to
transform New Hampshire's behavioral health delivery system by strengthening community-based mental
health and substance use disorder services and programs to combat the opioid crisis. The Organization has
been designated to be the administrative lead of one of these IDNs.

In September 2016, the Organization was awarded a five-year demonstration project from the CMS,
passed through the Stale of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services. At that date, the
Organization was advanced $2,413,256 upon fulfillment of the condition of successful submission and
state approval of an IDN Project Plan. Of that amount, $2,000,000 will be retained by the Organization as
administrative fees for five years and the remaining funds will be disbursed to participants. For years two
through five, the IDNs will continue to earn performance-based incentive funding by achieving defined
targets and any funds received will be passed through to the participants.

Note 5. Line of Credit

The Organization entered into a line of credit agreement with a local bank. The Organization has
$500,000 of available borrowing capacity under this line of credit, of which all is unused. The line of
credit bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus .50% and is secured by all assets of the
Organization. The line of cre.dit is due on demand and matures Februar>' 2020.

Note 6. Related Party Transactions

A majority of the OrganiMtion's members and the Organization are also members of a Limited Liability
Company. There were no transactions between the Limited Liability Company and the Organization's
members in 2019 and 2018.

The Organization contracts various services from other organizations of which members of management
of these other organizations may also be board members of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary. Amounts paid to these organizations were $279,120 and $898,736 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Outstanding amounts due to these organizations as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $200 and $33,214, respectively. Outstanding amounts due
from these organizations as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $1,000 and $5,210,'
respectively.
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Note 7. Retirement Plan

The Organization ofTers a defined contribution savings and investment plan (the Plan) under section
403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. The Plan is available to all employees who are 21 years of age or
older. There is no service requirement to participate in the Plan. Employee contributions are permitted
and are subject to IRS limitations. Monthly employer contributions are $50 for each part-time employee
and $100 for each full-time employee. Employer contributions for the years ended September 30, 2019
and 2018 were $77,366 and $61,990, respectively.

Note 8. Liquidit>' and Availabilit}'

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise of the following: n

Cash and cash equivalent $ 947,618
Accounts receivable, net

Grants and contracts 1,01 1,598
Certificates of deposit 126,701

$  2,085,917

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures. In the event of further liquidity needs, the Organization could draw upon $500,000
of an available line of credit as described in Note 5.

Note 9. Commitment and Contingencies

The Organization receives a significant portion of its support from various funding sources. Expenditure
of these funds requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the related contracts and
agreements. These expenditures are subject to audit by the contracting agencies. Any disallowed
expenditures would become a liability of the Organization requiring repayment to the funding sources.
Liabilities resulting from these audits, if any, will be recorded in the period in which the liability is
ascertained. Management estimates that any potential liability related to such audits will be immaterial.

Note 10. Federal Reports

Additional reports, required by Government Auditing Standards and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit-
Requirements for Federal Awards, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, are
included in the supplements to this report.

Note]]. Reciassifications

Certain reciassifications have been made to the financial statements for the year ended September 30,
2018 to conform with the current year presentation.
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Note 12. Subsequent Events '

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) a
pandemic. As a result, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively impact the
Organization's financial operations. Other financial impact could occur though such potential impact is
unknown at this time.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events, through March 17, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NORTH COUNTRY' ill-ALTII CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHI-DULC OF E.XPENDITURES OF FEDER/KL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2019

Federul Granlor/Puss through Crantor/ProgrHm Title

U.S Department of Health and Human Ser^'iecs

Direct Proftrums;

Nctwofi: Development

Rural Health Care Services Outreach Program (Opioid)

Rural Health Opioid Program

Rural Communities Opioid Response Implementation

Rural Communities Opioid Response (Planning)

Drug-Free Communities (SAMHSA)

Total direct programs:

Passed through the Stale of iVor Hampshire:

Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Disaster Behavioral Health Response Teams

Hep A Vaccination

Lead

MRC

SAP

Young Adult Strategies

Young Adult Leadership

School-Based Immunization

Continuum of Care

Continuum of Care

Substance Misuse Pre\'ention

Substance Misuse Prevention

Student Assistance Program Federal Block Grant

Public Health Advisory Council '

Substance Use Disorder (Friendship House)

Substance Use Disorder (Friendship House)

Substance Use Disorder (Friendship House - SOR)

Substance Use Disorder (Friendship House - SOR)

Federal CFDA

Number

93,912

93.912

93,912

93,912

93,211

93,276

93,074

93,074

93,074

93,074

93,074

93,243

93,243

93,243

93,268

93,950

93,959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93,959

93,788

93,788

Grant No.

D06RH2803I

D04RH3164I

HIURH32387

GAIRH33527

C25RH32457

IH79SP02I539.0I

Pass-through

Grantor's Subgrant
No.

U90TP000535

U90TP000535

U90TP000535

U90TP000536

U90TP000536

SP020796

SP020796

SP020796•

H231P00757

TI0I0035-I4

TIC 10035

T10I0035-I4

TI0I0035

TI0I0035

TI0I0035

71010035-14

T10I0035

H79TI0SI6W

H79TI081685

Federal

Expenditures

426.829

185.022

157.548

5.367

774.766

200,000

129.144

1.103.910

50.487

3.613

8.228

1,877

2.160

66.365

212,061

84,044

5,833

301,938

10,103

34,813

12.069

60.300

18.829

96.238

1.370

107.410

36.190

367.219

206,100

68.700

274,800

Community Health Workers

Public Health AdvisorCourKil

Public Health Advisory Council

Total ixisscd through the State of New Hampshire:

Passed through the University ofDartniotith Area Health

Kducation ('.enter:

AHEC Supplement

Area Health Education Centers

Passed through the UniwrsityofNew Hampshire:

Practice Transformation Network

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

93.757

93.758

93.991

93.107

93.107

93.638

NU58DP00482I

D0IOTOO937

NB10T009205-01.0I

U77HP03627-i5-01

U77HP03627-09-0I

Agreement # 16-039

31,807

12,306

2,077

1,066,615

18,916

83,379

102,295

437,995

2,710,815

See accompanying notes to schedule of e.xpcndilurcs of federal awards.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes- the federal
award activity of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2019. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the "Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Unifomi Guidance whereby
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

(3) The Organization did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar)'
Littleton, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2019,
and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 17, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit-of the consolidated financial statements, we considered North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>''s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the efTectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misslatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit.we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstaiement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Audiling. Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a.n i.
VTReg. No. 92-0000102 • {J
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

North Countr)' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>'
Littleton, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the t)'pes of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material efTect on each of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2019. North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsihility

\

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of North Country Health Consortium,
Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. ■ Uniform Administrative
Requirements^ Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures .as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary is responsible for establishing and
maintaining eftective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal, control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.- However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St. Albans, Vermont ^ ^ \ i /\
March 17,2020 U.Tv.
VT Reg. No. 92-0000102 . ' ' U
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The independent auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated
financial statements of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>' were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.-

2. No material weakness or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary are reported in
the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
P\.cco^d?i[\ZQ\w\\\\ Governmental Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary, which would be required to be reported in

■ accordance with Government Auditing Standarchy were disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weakness or significant deficiencies relating to internal control over compliance for
major federal award programs are reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for North Country
Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary expresses an unmodified opinion on the major federal
program.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in this schedule in accordance with
2 CFR Section 200.516(a).

7. The program tested as a major program was U.S. Department of Health and Human Services -
Rural Health Care Services: Network Development, Rural Healthcare Ser\'ices Outreach
Program(opioid), Rural Health Opioid Program and Rural Communities Opioid Response
Implementation (CFDA Number 93.912).

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

9. North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary was determined to be a low-risk audilee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended September 30, 2019.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the federal program for the year ended September
30,2019.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Summar}' Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

2018 and 2017 - AUDlTs OF MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

2018: There were no reported findings related to the audit of the major federal program for the year
ended September 30, 2018.

2017: There were no reported findings related to the audit of the major federal program for the year
ended September 30, 2017.
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OFFICERS

Michael Lee, President (2022)
Weeks Medical Center

President

Rmail: michael.leef^.weeksmedical.ore

AA: lisa.tetreault(a).vveeksiTiedical.ore

Karen Woods, Secretary (2021)
Cottage Hospital
Administrative Director

Email: kwoodst^.cottaeehosDital.ora

Mike Counter, Treasurer (2020)
North Country Home Health & Hospice Agency
Executive Director

Email: mcounter(fl).nchhha.or2

,AA: gchase@nchhha.org

Rev. Curtis Metzger, Vice President (2022)
All Saints' Episcopal Church
Email: curtismetzaerfSlvahoo.com

DIRECTORS

Scott Colby (2022)
Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital
President and CEO

Email: scolbvf^ucvh.orc

AA: Dehlv@ucvh.ore ̂ Pou/ol

Kevin Kelley (2020)
Indian Stream Health Center

Chief Executive Officer

Email: kkellev(^,indianstream.ort!

AA: bDaauettei^indianstream.ore (BillieJo)

Ed Duffy, MD (2021)
Littleton Regional Healthcare
Executive Vice President, Chief Medical Officer-
Email: eduffvf^.lrhcares.oie

AA: nsweenevOlrhcares.org (Woncv)

Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson (2020)
Northern Human Ser\'ices

Regional Mental Health Administrator
Email: scaetiensf^.noithemhs.oru

Lars Nielson, MD (2021)
Weeks Medical Center

Chief Medical Officer

Email: lars.nielsonf^.weeksmedical.ora

AA: oaul.laduke^Slvveeksmedical.ora
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Ken Gordon (2021)
Coos County Family Health Services
Chief Executive Officer

Email: keordonf«)ccflis.ore

Jeanne Robillard (2022)
Tri-Count)' Communit>' Action Program
Chief Operating Officer
Email: irobi]lardf«)tccaD.ore

Tara MacKillop (2020)
Androscoggin Valley Home Care
Executive Director

Email: tmackilloDfSJavhomecare.ore

Vacant Seat (2022)
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services
25 Mount Eustis Road

Littleton, NH 03561

Phone:
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ANNIE PATOINE

SUMMARY

Friendly and enthusiastic professional with several years of experience in public
interaction and office environments. Ability to learn new tasks quickly and
proficiently.

Education

High. School Diploma: June of 2002 with Honors, accounting, culinary arts,
electricity and interned with Calex Ambulance. Saint Johnsbury Academy - Saint
Johnsbury, VT

Allied Health Preparation Certificate - Community Collage of Vermont
graduating on May 8, 2017 with Honors.

RELATED EXPERIENCE
North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH

Purchasing-Finance Assistant May 2019 - Present

•  Perform all duties related to processing orders for materials & supplies.
•  Supports Student Assistance Program through communication with external partners

regarding reporting requirements, technical assistance to SAPS regarding reporting, and
tracking of reporting deadlines and data entry into the PWITS system

•  Receive order requisitions from NCHC personnel using requisition email form - review for
completeness and accuracy (vendor, account codes, description, approval). Enter
requisition into AccuFund.

•  Process order through assigned vendor (from order req).
•  Shop for quotes as necessary for those orders that require three pricing options.
•  Filing for A/P, A/R and Friendship House client billing infonnation.
•  Assist Financial Controller on an as needed basis for ad hoc projects.

PTN Program Specialist May 2017 - May 2019
• Maintains, coordinates, and updates database on Sharepoint for Practice Transformation

Network initiative including practice listings, enrollment, and demographics; phase
progression, practice assessrnent tools and plan due dates; and folder updates for all
practices. Provides administrative support to PTN Program Staff including preparation of
print and electronic PATS and Plans.

• Assists Finance Team with data entry, maintaining excel spreadsheets, filing, and other
duties as requested

•  Supports Student Assistance Program through communication with external partners
regarding reporting requirements, technical assistance to SAPS regarding reporting, and
tracking of reporting deadlines and data entry into the PWITS system

•  Participates as needed in special projects



ANNIE PATOINE

Ensures compliance with NCHC policies and procedures, including code of ethics arid
confidentiality, while performing job functions

The Riverside School, Lyndonville, VT March 2016- May 2017

After School Coordinator & Substitute Teacher

Plan snacks, activities and use of space in advance of each day's program start
Keep track of attendance and pick up times for billing purposes, submit them to business
manager

Consistently supervising and engaging with students
Use appropriate behavior management techniques to maintain student behavior
Actively comrriunicate and build positive relationships with the parents of students in the
program

Teach lesson plan as outlined by absent teacher
Maintain a professional appearance as an example for children
File papers
Answer phones

Reliable, and flexible



April D. Mottram

Summary

Over 6 years of increasing management experience for the North Country Health
Consortium as both a Program Manager and Director for the Northern New Hampshire
Area Health Education Center and the Integrated Delivery Network. 18 years of
pharmacist experience in the local community and hospital environments, 13 of which
were in a supervisory management level. Direct experience as owner and sole proprietor
of an independent pharmacy and a gift shop.

Experience

Director of Workforce Integration & Training, North Country Health Consortium,
Littleton. NH
October 2018-current

Responsible for program oversight of the Region 7 Integrated Delivery Network (IDN), the
Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center (NNH AHEC), North Country
Public Health Network, and North Country Health Consortium Substance Misuse
Prevention Programs, including Drug Free Communities. Oversight activities include
supervising program staff; working with local and state government to secure funding
sources necessary to support project-based deliverables; providing direction in the
administration of contracts and associated subcontracts to ensure achievement of

performance metrics, and project deliverables; grant writing, fostering collaborative
relationships, including cross-program opportunities; and identifying new program
development options.

Integrated Delivery Network Program Manager, North Country Health Consortium,
Littleton, NH
July 2016-October 2018
Responsible for overall program management activities to support successful
achievement of project outcomes for Region 7 Integrated Delivery Network. Activities
included supervision of IDN program staff; creating processes and procedures to
accomplish IDN program objectives, metrics, and deliverables; monitoring project
activities to ensure continuity and alignment with Region 7 IDN program goals and IDN
Statewide initiatives; coordination and implementation of IDN projects activities to ensure
regional effectiveness and efficiency of the IDN program; monitoring budgeted program
expenditures; managing contracts with community partners; ensuring compliance to
fidelity; creating performance reports, analyses, and program reports.

Owner, Newfound Nook Gifts & More, Bristol, NH
January 2016-September 2016
Retail Business Owner/Operator. •'Created gift shop business from the ground up.
Responsible for all aspects of the business, including inventory control and maintaining
finances.

Pharmacy Manager, Indian Stream Health Center Pharmacy, Colebrook, NH
April 2013-December 2015
Provision and supervision of pharmaceutical care that is patient-centered and outcomes
oriented. Responsibilities included preparing and dispensing medications pursuant to
provider prescriptions; working in concert with the patient and the patient's other health



care providers to promote health, to prevent disease, and to assess, monitor, initiate, and
modify medication use to assure that drug therapy regimens are safe and effective:
inventory management; and ensuring 340B program regulations were followed and in
compliance; supervising the Prescription Assistance Program; and supervising pharmacy
staff.

Workforce Development Director/Grants Administrator, North Country Health
Consortium/Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center, Littleton, NH .
April 2012-March 2013
Worked as the Workforce Development Director for a rural health network.
Responsibilities included overseeing the development and implementation of a variety of
community-based health professions education programs with particular emphasis on
programs designed to support access to quality health care in Northern New Hampshire;
collaborating with community partners to complete community health needS'
assessments: providing oversight for the Workforce Development Program; preparing
and managing Workforce Development program budget; completing and submitting,
reports to funding agencies and monitoring work of subcontractors as assigned.
Additional responsibilities included grants administration for all programs of the North
Country Health Consortium.

Workforce Education & Development Program Manager, North Country Health
Consortium/Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center, Littleton, NH
November 2009-April 2012
Worked as the Northern NH Area . Health Education Center (NNH AHEC) Program
Manager. Responsibilities included planning and coordinating continuing education
programs for healthcare professionals; promoting health career awareness: managing
multiple funding sources; and providing oversight to staff involved with health careers and
community-based education programs.

Health Careers Counselor, North Country Health Consortium, Whitefield, NH
January 2009-November 2009
Worked in Coos and Grafton County to recruit students into health career occupations and
provide support for students interested in health professions training programs.
Responsibilities included developing programs to promote health careers and "hands on"
learning experiences; creating student tracking mechanisms to show progression of
education: and developing and implementing a successful Health Careers Summer Camp
program.

Pharmacist, LaPerle's IGA Pharmacy, Colebrook, NH
May 2008-December 2008
Worked as a community pharmacist at a -3406 qualified pharmacy. Responsibilities
included prescription verification; Drug Utilization Reviews; following Federal and State
rules: providing clinical support to physicians and patients: and supervising pharmacy
technicians.

Pharmacist, Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital, Colebrook NH
March 2006-March 2008 '

Worked as a hospital pharmacist performing drug utilization reviews; dispensing
medication for in-patient use; processing prescriptions for employees; teaching
community members about diabetes medications; supervising pharmacy technicians;
following Federal and State rules; and working with nurses and physicians to ensure
quality patient care.

Pharmacist, Rite Aid Corporation, Lancaster, NH
December 2005-June 2006

Responsibilities included prescription verification; Drug Utilization Reviews; providing



clinical support to physicians and patients: following Federal and State rules; and
supervising pharmacy technicians.

Pharmacy owner, Pharmacist, Groveton Pharmacy, Groveton, NH
April 2002-December 2005
Responsibilities included all pharmacist roles. Additional responsibilities included
•complying with Federal and State regulations; record keeping; inventory management;
payroll; deposits; accounts payable; accounts receivable; budgets; and human resources.

Pharmacist-in-Charge, Groveton Pharmacy, Groveton, NH
March 1995.March 2002

Provided prescribed medications for adequate patient care; managed control substances
inventory; counseled public on prescription and non-prescription medications ensured
compliance with State and Federal rules and regulations; supervised pharmacy
technicians; ensured adequate control and documentation of all controlled substance
records; participated in disease state management; and monitored drug therapy in
collaboration with physicians and/or other health professionals.

Pharmacist, Rite Aid, Derby, VT
March 1993-March 1995

Ensured that every customer received friendly, knowledgeable, and efficient service.
Checked all work done by pharmacy technician prior to dispensing medications. Upheld
service standards for counseling, dispensing, and pricing of prescriptions.

Education:

Massachusetts College of Pharmacy, Boston, MA
B.S. Pharmacy 1992

References: Available upon request



Bob Thompson

Objective

Continue pursuing a career in the education, substance misuse prevention, and behavioral health fields that

improves the lives of others, provides professional fulfillment, and is compatible with personal lifestyle interests.

Experience

Senior Program Manager

North Country Health Consortium

Littleton, NH

September 2019 - Present

Director, Office of Student
Wellness

Berlin Public Schools

Berlin, NH

April 2015 - September 2019

Program Manager

North Country Health Consortium

Littleton, NH

March 2007 - April 2015

Programs Manager

Tri-County Community Action Programs

Alcohol and Other Drug Division

Berlin, NH

October-1997 - March-2007

Responsible for all management and oversight responsibilities

associated with the Consortium's Substance Misuse Prevention

portfolio.

Manage SAMHSA funded Project AWARE, Systems of Care

Wraparound Services, and Restorative Justice grant programs. Direct

all Office of Student Wellness related acUvities.

Responsible tor all management level fcspoiisibilitics associated with

the Consortium's Substance Misuse Prevention portfolio.

Managed all Impaired Driver Inlervonlion Programs; developed and

managed Adolescent Substance Abuse Prcxfcntion (ASAP) program in

Carroll, Coos, and northern Grafton Countv district courts.

Education

Bachelor of Science

San Diego State University-1979

Master of Science

Granite State College - 2014

Major: Geography/Environmental Studies
Minor: Biology/Conservation

Leadership/ Project Management

Skills and Credentials

Certified Prevention Sp<;cialist, 2012 - present; Positive Behavioral Inlcrvcnlionsand Supports Trained Trainer Program ai University of

Conneciicut, 2016-17; iloard Certified Behavioral Analysl education program, Tloridn Institute of Technology 2017; Selectman, Town of

Jackson, 2012-2019.



GATHY ROY
SUMMARY

Astute professional with 15 plus years of experience in accounting and management within non-profit health

education/substance abuse, academic research administration, resort & hospitality and manufacturing settings.

Demonstrated expertise in both front and back of house systems, accounting and financial reporting systems.

EXPERIENCE

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH

Director of Finance 03/2020 to present

Oversee all finance department activities including budgeting, financial forecasting, financial reporting

requirements, and cash flor for administration, existing programs, and proposed new programs and services.

Review and approve preparation and finalization of monthly and annual financial reporting materials and

metrics for CEO and Board of Directors.

Coordinate all activities for financial, federal, state and worker's compensation audits.

Partner with CEO on the organization's financial, budgeting, and administrative processes.

Supervise Finance Team and serve as liaison between finance team and CEO.

Monitor insurance coverages.

Monitor clinical service insurance claim billing and collections.

Assist with payroll and benefit oversight.

Collaborate with senior leadership to review and update Financial Policies and Procedures.

Financial Controller 01/2019 to 03/2020

Direct supervision of Finance staff (Payroll/Benefits Admin, Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Purchasing)

Preparation and oversight of all finance related audits in collaboration with CFO.

Monthly flnancial'reports to CFO, provide direct oversight to.Finance team to adhere to monthly schedule to

produce timely and accurate reporting.

Assist with oversight of clinical service insurance claim billing and collections.

Collaborate with CFO in preparation of monthly, quarterly and annual reporting requirements by funders.

Responsible for the application of all NCHC Policies, including the Finance Procedures Manual and applicable

State and Federal guidelines.

•  Assist vyith the creation of budgets for new, existing and potential revenue streams from outside funders.

Assist with the annual organization wide budget preparation in coordination with Finance Team input including

managing the timeline.

ARC MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, Bradford, VT

Controller 04/2018 to 08/2018

• Manage weekly cash flow to correspond with business levels utilizing line of credit vs receivables'..

•  Process month end including payroll - produce financial statements - income statement, cash flow, balance

sheet for submission to funding representatives.

•  Produce reports associated with percent of completion on all open HVAC projects - job cost monitoring.

• Oversee contract billing - communication with project managers to assess amount to bill and forecast

completion for work in process reports.

•  Collection efforts for delinquent Accounts Receivable.

DARTMOUTH COLLEGE, Hanover, NH

Operations Director - Blomedlcal Data Science Department 07/2015 to 03/2018

•  Financial Planning 8i Budgeting - develop plan for group/research team's financial goals working with

departmental and division senior leadership. Working with the Dean's Office, the Office of Sponsored Projects,



office of Finance to implement processes and procedures for successfully monitoring and streamlining the

research objectives.

• Analyze on-going and planned research, available funding, anticipated fluctuations in funding, staffing and

other resources to project current and long-term financial needs.

• Grant administration including budget development/ creating the financial components of faculty grant

applications for submission to federal, state and private agencies with a focus on large multi-center $12 to $18

million federal projects. Manage the departmental portfolio of approximately $48m (over a 5-year span).

• Translate research plans into scope of work; identify areas in which costs will be incurred and develop estimates

for such costs, manpower, equipment, supplies, communications, travel, etc.

• Manage the work of administrative and research staff in preparing and submitting grant applications. Ensure

that all components are accurately and properly prepared and submitted timely.

• Develop recruitment packages and act as the department contact for potential recruits. Oversee recruitment of

research personnel as required by principal investigators. Work in conjunction with the Dean's office on the

promotion timeline and submission of faculty promotion package.

Administrative Officer - CFMED - Section of Biostatistics/Epidemiology 10/2013 -07/2015

•  Oversee staff that prepare and process payables, deposits, journal transfers and labor distribution updates.

Supervise the reconciliation of monthly financial reports and the resolution of discrepancies.

•  Pre-award administration responsibilities include developing research proposals, negotiating and executing

grants and contracts, working directly with faculty and staff to submit proposals, and educating faculty on best

practices and compliance of sponsored research.

•  Post-award administration duties include grant and contract compliance, reviewing financial reports, monitoring

time and effort certifications, completing RPPR reports, and grant budget preparation.

BURKE MOUNTAIN, East Burke, VT

Controller/HR Manager 08/2007 to 07/2013

• Executive management team member responsible for guiding the resort's resources and personnel towards the

goals and initiatives set by the Development Company.

• Preparation of annual business plan along with direction of budget process with upper management and their

direct reports.

• Educate staff on use of budget templates along with labor schedule tools to produce accurate budgets and

forecasts.

•  Develop and distribute trend analysis to management to assist in budgeting and forecasts.

•  Responsible for all payroll management. Including hiring, training, and orientation.

•  Direct staff on use of system including report analysis.

• Negotiation of benefit package along with administration of all facets including workers compensation.

•  Development of forecasting tool in conjunction with sql contractor to be used by management to monitor

daily/weekly/month to date business levels compared to prior year(s) and budget.

• Cash flow preparation for both operations and development requirements reflecting the actual revenue.

ATTITASH SKI RESORT Bartlett, NH

Financial Controller 02/2006 to 08/2007

•  Direct and manage all accounting, reporting, budgeting and forecasting for ski resort and hotel.

• Monitor business trends to ensure optimum yield for products.

•  Insure that the systems of internal control are in place, upgraded as needed and utilized resort wide.

•  Direct accounting staff in all daily/weekly/monthly accounting function and analyze resulting weekly/monthly

financial results compared to budget/history.

• Manage staff of 4 accountants, ticket manager and 2 payroll clerks.

•  Preparation of annual business plan for both ski resort & hotel working closely with department heads and

general managers of both resort & hotel.



•  Annual preparation of budget for Grand Summit Unit Owners Association • a quarter share condominium

Association.

Financial Reporting/Budget Manager 01/2003 to 02/2006

•  Preparation of weekly/monthly/quarteriy financial statements.

•  Provide variance commentary to management team members on budget to actual performance variances.

• Manage annual budget process - weekly line item budgeting - coordinate Department managers to develop

their annual budget.

•  Balance Sheet, P&L analysis; preparation of trial balance account schedules for SEC reporting.

• Manage flow of information from A/R, A/P, and payroll personnel in a timely fashion to consolidate the financial
reporting process.'

^  EDUCATION ^

B.S: MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

Keene State College, Keene, NH

Granite State College (formerly CLL) - Required coursework for B.S.Accounting

^  AFFILIATIONS

•  International Society of Research Administrators (SRA)

• National Council of University Research Administrators (NCURA)

• Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM)

^  SOFTWARE

ComputerEase

Oracle Business Intelligence

Hyperion Reporting

CODA Financials

Timberline

AccPac/Norming fixed assets

ADP Payroll

Kronos Timekeeping

EPay Business Solutions

AccuFund

Paychex Flex



Stephanie A. Gould

LCMHC.M.Ed

August 2018- Present Genesis Behavioral Health ("LRMHO New Hampshire
Hospital Liaison
• Conducts aftercare and discharge planning for individuals (both Adult Services and Child and
Family Services) discharging form inpatient psychiatric facilities to LRMHC catchment area per
state regulations and required time frames.
• Provides clinical consultation, case review, and coordination of care with attending medical
staff, treatment team, discharging hospitals, and family supports..
• Tracks and facilitates transfer an assumption of probate documentation for patients on
conditional discharge from slate hospital.

Sen 2015- April 2018 Granite State College (USNH) New Hampshire
Academic Advisor

• Advises student through all stages of the student lifecycle on admissions, enrollment, academic
program policies, and degree completion planning.
• Applies Appreciative Advising theory to coach students in identifying their strengths, academic
and career interests, and guides students in achieving their set goals.
• Monitors the academic progress and enrolfment of all students assigned in caseload and
preforms retention tasks according to advising outreach calendar.
• Participates in inter-department training(s) to continuously gain more in-depth curriculum
knowledge, increase advisor and faculty collaboration, and provide continued exposure to career-
specific requirements and trends.
• Provides information on transfer-ability of college-level learning and prior learning
opportunities and process.
• Provides face-to-face, telephone, and web-based support to assist students with applying to the
college, registering for classes, setting up accounts, and accessing student support services.
• Provides initial stage of career guidance, directing students to Career Services for more in-
depth counseling and support.
• Provides initial guidance on disability services options, directing them to Disability Services
for assistance with accommodation plans.
• Provides students with information on.Student Counseling Services for non-academic hardships
support.

• Responsible providing "gold standard'' customer service.
• Responsible for the function of coordinating and supervising of our work study.
• Assist in the general needs of the campus and be responsive and welcoming to all customers
that enter

• Daily usage of college wide technology platforms to access student data: email client
(Outlook), system of record database (BANNER), degree evaluation software (GPS), and
reporting platfonns (APEXAVebl).
• Mentor and cross train with other advisors to share best practices and promote consistency to
improve the overall student experience.
• Attend special events to represent advising and participate on institutional committees as
needed.



Nov 2012- Aug 2015 MKN Government Services New Hampshire
Military and Family Life Consultant (MFLC)
•Provide JFSAP Military and Family Life Consultant services in the form of face to face non-
medical, solution focused counseling to service members and their families throughout the state
of New Hampshire.
•Provide psycho-educational presentations and briefings for military (as requested by command)
and for service members/families throughout the deployment cycle at Yellow Ribbon Events.
•Conduct efforts to establish partnerships and inform civilian, community based service on
military culture, referral sources, and common issues that military families face.
•Utilize clinical skills to screen for and make appropriate referrals for individuals that
demonstrate a clinical need.

For full role see www.mhngs.com/app/programsandservices/mflc_program.content

Jan. 2011-Nov. 2012 S. Gould Counseling Services Plymouth. NH
•Contract with MHNGS (40 hours per week) to.provide New Hampshire JFSAP Military and
Family Life Consultant services to all branches of New Hampshire based eligible service
members (and their families).
See MFLC role as highlighted above.

*

August 2010- Nov 2012 Northern Human Services Conwav. NH
Clinical Director

• Manage, develop, and maintain contracts with community organizations.
• Provide clinical supervision to 8 clinicians, implement agency policy, provide Emergency
Services.

• Integrate and manage best clinical practices across multiple teams/disciplines.
• Provide support and.training for technical and clinical skill development to support
documentation.

• Collaborate with Management Team to improve fiscal outcomes and resilience.
• Track, anal>'ze, and address productivity issues.
• Serve on technology related committees and workgroups dedicated to the implementation of an
electronic medical record.

March 2009-Jan. 2010 The Oavenpoi-t School Jefferson. NH
Clinical Coordinator

•Provide individual and group counseling to court adjudicated youth in intensive residential
treatment program for adolescent girls.
•Work with Department of Juvenile Justice, The Division for Children, Youth and Families,
legal representatives and court representatives to provide, determine, and implement clinical
services to youth and families.
•Provide education and clinical supeiwision to direct care staff and family workers.
•Research and develop assessment and reporting systems that measure consumer needs and
treatment results while satisfying best treatment practices and payer/funding source reporting
requirements.



August 2008-March 2009 LifeShare Management. Inc. Manchester. NH

Regional Director, North
•Responsible for ail facets of program implementation and development, including the hiring and
supervision of staff, budget, obtaining referrals and tracking program efficacy.
•Be aware of and implement state and federal regulatory guidelines to include Medicaid billing
practices and service quality/best practices.
•Provide clinical supervision and some direct care, including emergency ser\'ices.
•Meet monthly documentation deadlines and maintain clinical records in accordance with HIPPA
standards.

t

April 2001-July 2008 Genesis Behavioral Health Plymouth. NH
Clinical Coordinator, Plymouth
•Provide clinical and administrative supervision to up to 10 clinicians and employees.
•Track caseloads, documentation and staff productivity.
•Work with the Director to allocate resources to maximize revenue generation.
•Work with Quality Assurance to interpret and implement practices that conform to Federal and
State regulations pertaining to community mental health service delivery.
•Conduct regular audits of clinical documentation.
•Work under significant pressure: evaluate and develop dispositions for psychiatric emergencies.
•Work with the interdisciplinary team to develop, monitor, and implement psychotherapeutic and
psychopharmacological intervention

Dec. 2003-Jan. 2007 North Woods Counseling. L.L.C. Campton. NH

Partner/ Clinician

•Manage and organize all office activities relevant to supporting and running a private clinical
mental health practice including accounts receivable, account tracking, budget development and
management, and technology needs.
•Develop and maintain community relationships to develop healthy referral base as well as
produce print marketing media.

Dec. 2002- Nov. 2003 Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc. Franklin. NH

Child and Family Therapist
•Provide clinical assessment, psychotherapy, and case management ser\'ices to children (and
their families) experiencing symptoms of mental illness.
•Work effectively in an interdisciplinary team approach.

Sept. 2001-Nov. 2002 Plymouth State University Plymouth. NH
Director of Women's Services and Gender Resources

•Structure, maintain and account for department budget.
•Redesign mission and priorities for'direct services and education.
•Secured S20,000 budget increase for Center in year 2002 and obtained reclassification of
position to "Director" status.
•Supervise and provide guidance to staff.
•Organize, conduct and arrange for media coverage and conduct community outreach to support
delivery of educational messages.



•Design and implement multi-faceted educational and informational campaigns, including
production of revised web site and print material.
•Plan and execute flindraising events/campaigns

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts in General Studies, Concentration in Advertising
Texas Tech University Lubbock, TX May 1994

Master of Education: Mental Health Counseling
Plymouth State University Plymouth, NH May 2001

CERTIFICATIONS/LICENSURES

Licensed Mental Health Counselor, Slate of NH #541

r

RELATED EXPERIENCE

-Trained and served as a provider for the NH Attorney General's Victim Assistance Provider
Net\\'ork

-Trained volunteer for NH DBHRT (Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team)



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

TBD CEO $125,000.00 10.0% . - $12,500.00

Robert Thompson Program Director $77,415.52 10.0% $7,741.55

Stephanie Gould Program Coordinator $65,718.12 50.0% $32,859.06

Cathy Roy Director of Finance $86,912.50 7.25% $6,301.16

Annie Patoine Program Support $44,109.63 10.0% ,$4,410.96

April Mottram Director of Programs $81,818.41 5.0% $4,090.92



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

•>1

State of New Hampshire ——
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2nd Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of,Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAU #6 Ciaremont School, District,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 165 Broad St'
Ciaremont. NH 03102.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 5. 2018, (Item #21). as amended on August 28, 2019 (Item #13) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified;-and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.4, Contractor Address, to read:

165 Broad Street. Ciaremont, NH 03743.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$109,440.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to. read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
"grades 9 through 12 in the spring of 2021.

5.' Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15., to read:

2.15. Reserved.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1.. to read:

6.1. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 In the spring of 2021.

7. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6,, Deliverables, Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

8. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-l, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

SAU #6 - ciaremont School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-01-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date_£(X?A^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

9. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SAU #6 - Claremoht School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

88-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-01-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

(3'

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

(o
Date Name:

a.

SAU #6 - Claremont School District

Date Name: A t C..
Title: ^ _

V: A O (

SAU # 6- Claremont School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDe-Ol.A02 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■ limp in onof)

me;Date
t;h«-

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment y/as approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

-•N

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:

Title:

SAD # 6- Clafemont School District Amendment #2

88-2019-BDAS-02-StupE-01-A02 Page 4 of 4

6^
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■li.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I ftimtSpnMW.hefe&Y certify tMt

1  I a di/y drrtml rr^f^monf SchootDistrM School Softf

2 Tfwft^lovAngisotruocopy do vote lakmai a meeting oI the Boord of Oroct0fs/«h3rohoi0ef«. duly cased and .
Md on *«*v A M?0- ct wtvcn a quorum of the OtroctorWihareholders vitte preeenl and voting

rffrfrr* SupcHnfondem it <h<v authonzed on behalf of aarxttnont School Distrfct to
enter in» contracts or agreements with the Slate of Now Hampthiro and any of its agencies or Oepanments and
further is auOwrtzed to execute ony and aO documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modfcaSons thereto, wt^ may in NVfwr [udgment be dasirabie or necessary to effea the purpose of
thisvote-. •

I  •

3 I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed end renains in luO force and effect as of the
ds» of the eontracUoontract amendrnent to which tha certificsta is attact^. This authority remains valid for
thirty (M) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further certify that it is understood tha) the State of
New HampsTi^e will rcfy on tfM certificate as ovidenoe that the personfs) listed above currently occupy the
potcionfs} intfcated and that they have full authority to M the corporation. To the extent that there are any
trrtfs on the authority of any ksted indtviduai to bind the coroofation in ̂ tracts with the State of New Hampshire.
89 such fcmitat«ns are expressly staled herein

Dated 1 j^O^O
actSignature I

Na7>e:Fr _
Title; Qaromont School District School Board Chair

.'x,

'^'•03#02V2020 ;■ ■ ; ^ - ■ ..-w

-W



Primex'
NK Public Risl Monageni«nt Exchange CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex^) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex^ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition. Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex'. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a nratter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does r>ot amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number:

Claremont School District 909

SAU #6

165 Broad Street

Claremont. NH 03743

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage Effective Dete

(mm/dd/ww)

Expiration Date
/mm/dd/ww)

Limits ■ NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2020 7/1/2021
Each Occurrence $ 5.000,000

General Aggregate $5,000,000

D mST O Occurrence
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X At

De

tomobile Liability
ductible Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

7/1/2020 7/1/2021
Combined Single Limit
(Each Acddani)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2020 7/1/2021
X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee . $2,000,000

Disease - Policy Umit

X Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Deductible:

$1,000

Description: Proof of Primex [yiember coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex'-NH Public Risk Management Exchange

0y; Sefl

Date: 5/19/2020 tdenver(a)nhDrimex.orQState of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St

Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



SAU #6

School Administrative UnitU6

Sen'ing Clarcmont and Unity, NH
165 Broad Street Claremont, NH 03743

Phone: 603-543-4200

Fax: 603-543-4244

tVebsile: ii'tni- xmifi ni o

Claremont School Board
May 21, 2020

Frank Sprague
Claremont School Board Member Chair

fsprague@sau6.org

Jason Benware

Claremont School Board Member

jbenware@sau6.org

Robert Lovett, Jr.

Claremont School Board Member

rlovett@sau6.org

Michael Petrin

Claremont School Board Member

mpethn@sau6.org

Jane Hunter

Claremont School Board Treasurer

Tracy Pope
Claremont School Board Moderator

Heather Whitney
Claremont School Board Vice Chair

hwhitney@sau6.org

Rebecca Zullo

Claremont School Board Member

rzullo@sau6.org

Carolyn Towie
Claremont School Board

ctowle@sau6.org

Mary Woodman
Claremont School Board Clerk

Michael Tempesta, Superintendent Donna Magoon, Assistant Superintendent

SAU #6 Vi.sion Statement; SAU #6 inspires self-driven excellence for all siakcholders through rigorous curricula
and effective homc-school-community partnerships, emphasizing individual strengths and goals in a safe and
supportive environment where all students will learn, grow, and become contributing members of our society.

Adopted by the SAU #6 Board on 9-30-l,0



DOUGLAS S.PILCHER

Education

Upper Valley Educators Institute September 2014-June 2015
Masters of Arts in Teaching
Vermont & New Hampshire Teaching License Social Studies

Northeastern University, Boston, MA September 2001—May 2004
Bachelor of Arts in Journalism

Dean College, Franklin, MA September 1999 — May 2001
Associates Degree in Humanities

Relevant Experience

Second Growth, White River Junction, VT October 2018 — present
Counselor^ Student Assistance P' rogram

•  Student Assistance Program Counselor- provide the evidence-based best pracdce
curriculum of the Student Assistance Program and counseling scr\'iccs to students between
the ages of 12 and 21. Conduct assessments and provide early-inter\'ention supports,
prevention education, and • behavioral supports. Refer students to outside providers as
needed. Conduct presentations to students on the subjects of substance use prevention,
bullying prevention, or other topics as needed. Support the work of school guidance
counselors, teachers, school nurse, and others. Facilitate a variety of groups as needed.

The Aloha Foundation, Fairlee, VT 1994 — present
Program Director, Unit Head, Department Head, Certification Coordinator, Head of
Counselor in Training Program.

•  Leader of Counselor in Training program- mentoring 16-17 year old age group to
develop the knowledge and skills to transition successfully into counselor roles including
training in teaching methodolog)', managing behaviors, meeting the needs of a diverse
populadon alongside professional accountabiiit)- and ownership.

•  Facilitator/Trainer- Leading counselor training sessions including theoretical and practical
implementadon of choice theor)' and Success Counseling, communit}- cohesiveness and
collaboradon and fostering the agency philosophy. Leading sessions on teaching
methodology, differendadon and the vision, goals and outcomes of outdoor programming.

•  Program director- Responsible for overseeing all departments, staff and programming at a
large and successful outdoor summer camp. Leading and evaluating department head team
ensuring dynamic, varied and high quality program acdvides in line with organizadon's
mission and values.

•  Program development- Working alongside Director and Assistant Director to create and
implement short and long term visions for programming including consideradon of fiscal
responsibility, risk management, best practices, policy and procedure and staff and
pardcipant needs and wants.

•  Certification Coordinator- Responsible for overall super\'ision and deliver)' of certification
training programs to staff including Designated Trip Leader, Wilderness First Aid, Water
Safety Instructor and American Red Cross Lifeguarding.

•  Unit Head- Super\'isor to a large staff populadon in an outdoor, residential setdng. Leader



in meeting the behavioral, social, emotional and educational needs of camper population.
Department Head- Supervisor of departmental staff ensuring liigh qualit)', safe and
challenging yet enjoyable programming to meet the individual learning and recreational
needs of children aged 8-15 years.

Rivendell Interstate School District, Orford, NH 2016-Present
Social Studies Teacher, Varsity Soccer Coach, Advisory Team Leader

•  Developed and implemented an integrated 7''' and S''* grade humanities curriculum in
collaboration wdth teachers from other disciplines.

•  Advisory program leader- gtiiding and supporting other staff members through the
Advisor)' curriculum. Delivering advisory program to student population.

•  Utilized project-based learning.

• Worked as a member of an inter-disciplinar)' team to support the needs of a diverse student
population using differentiation to maximize student potential.

•  Coach for the Varsity Soccer Team through their season of training and inevitable
successes and losses utilizing sports as a vehicle to teach teamwork, self-discipline and
.positive motivation.

Warren School SAU 23, Warren, NH 2015-2016
Social Studies Teacher, Leader of Student Council

•  Developed and implemented a dynamic and engaging humanities curriculum for grades 4-8.
•  Supported children and families to access education in a laigh need district.
• Worked closely with behavioral health professionals, occupational therapists, guidance team

and other professionals to ensure the diverse learning, behavioral and social needs of the
student population were met.

•  Served as Teacher Leader of the Student Council supporting an elected group of students to
plan, develop and implement extra-curricular activities for the school communit)'.

Hulbert Outdoor Center, Fairlee, VT Seasonal 2012-2014
Seasonal Program Director

•  Facilitator of staff training sessions including the delivery of Success Counseling sessions
focused on teaching staff how to utilize choice theory and success counseling model to
address a variety of behaviors and social/emotional needs.

•  Developed and implemented programming for summer and winter family camps providing
outdoor recreational opportunities that promoted learning of new skills from basic
knowledge to advanced expertise for a diverse population.

•  Consideration of risk management and fiscal aspects of programming alongside existing
organizational j5olicy and procedure.

• Worked closely with Hulbert Program Director to superxdse staff, complete scheduling
responsibilities and adapt program to meet the needs of individual program participants.

•  Created strong individual connections with staff members and program pardcipants to foster
opportunity for growth and enjoyment that was inclusive of all ages and needs.

Spurwink Services, Pordand, ME 2011 - 2012
Behavioral Health Interventionist <& Therapeutic Foster Parent
•  Facilitated daily residendal and educadonal programming for children aged 10-21 years

experiencing significant psychiatric and behavioral disorders.



•  Prepared and delivered classes as a lead teacher in Histor)' and English, successfully adapting
and maintaining a productive educational environment that was flexible to the individual
needs of students and their behavioral demands.

•  Supervised residential staff and managed residential programming.

• Worked cohesively with a multi-professional team alongside children and their families to
provide exceptional, individualized service designed to meet each child's learning, behavioral
and emotional needs.

•  Foster Parent for children exiting inpatient psychiatric care.

Lagoon Lodge Backpackers Hostel, Motueka, New Zealand 2009 — 2010
Hostel Manager, Outdoor KecreationfTrip coordinator

•  Collaborated with school and college groups to provide outdoor recreation/trip co
ordination and execution that met the learning and recreation goals of each educational

■  group.

•  Responsible for the daily management of all aspects of the hostel and adventure
programming business including financial aspects, staffing, programming and problem
solving to ensure participants, guests and the business thrived in a competitive market.

• Marketing and development of the Hostel and external adventure based programs.
•  Completed all scheduling responsibilities.

Killington Mountain School, Killington, VT 2008-2010
English Teacher!yDorm Supervisor

•  Adapted core teaching skills to provide comprehensive English curriculum to students in
grade 8-10 in a non-traditional educational setting.

•  Provided residential supervision, emotional, educational and behavioral support to children
living in a boarding school environment.

• Worked within a multi-professional team to ensure qualit}' education alongside extra
curricular programming within a diverse, residential school community'.

Hartford School District, Hartford, VT 2004-2005

Residential Case Worker

•  Contracted through the government agency Healthcare Rehabilitation Services (HCRS),
worked as a class mentor for the Wilder School, an alternative school for students with

behavioral and emotional difficulties.

•  Created behavior and education plans for students in both one-on-one and group
environments.

Valley News Newspaper, Lebanon, NH . 2004-2005
Journalist

•  Published daily columnist in the sports section of popular local publication.

Other Experience

•  Rivendell Trails Association — 2017-2018



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Doug Pilcher Student Assistance Program
Counselor

S42,650.00 100% . 542,650.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department, of Heaith and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Schooi Administrative Unit #18 Frankiln School
District, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 119 Central
Street. Frankiln, NH 03235.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September13. 2017, (item #16). as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upori written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$382,286.

3. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B^l, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

School Administrative Unit #18 Franklin School District

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-02-A02 Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date /)^l ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written betow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

Date

Name:

School Administrative Unit #18 Franklin iSchool District

Name: y ^ , . .
Title: r

School Administrative Unit FranMIn School District

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-02.A02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

.lunp in

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

, Date Name:

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

School Administrative Unit #18 Franklin School District

RFA.2018-BDAS-02.STUDE-02-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Bt^gal Requnl for Student AesManee Program

Budget Parted: July 1. 20Z»-Jtma M, 2«21

UnaJtam.

1. Totat SalsfyiWatiaa
2. Emptoyaa Benefits

3. CoRsularts

<, Eqttpnortt:

Rental

Repair and Maintananca
P

S. Suppfea:
urchaae/Depraclation

EducaUonel

Lab

Pharmacy
Me<*cal

Otlica

6. Tiavrt

Occupancy
a. Citfrent Etgtenaea

Telepftona
Posaga
Sti>acr1ptiocw
Audit and Legal

Insu-anco

Board Expentaa
9. - Software

tai Program.Coal

10. Marttatlno/Communicatlofa
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Z Sut>contracta/i
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taia mandatory):
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58.S56.64

38.769.70

5.000.00

102.338.34

1.603.41

1.137.04

2.740.45

57?

60.172.05

39.906.74

5.000.00

^ Oiracti
Contractor. Shara /.Watch

6,845.64

2.091.02

5.000.00

105,078.79 13,936.66

liKflract- - Total

6.645.64

2,091.02

S.000.00

13.936.66

Puttdadby.DHHS corttract ahafa
^ Otract- Indlraet

51.723.00

36.678.68

i  U,4d-I.U

-.Total.
1.603.41

1.137.04

Twn?

53.326.41

37.815.72

1.142.13 I
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Timothy Dow , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected CleiVSecretary/Officer of the Franklin School District ^ .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 20 , 20 20 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

Q3iAlg,\ (may list more than oneVOTED: That the Superintendent of Schools

person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Franklin School District to enter into contracts or agreenients with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments', revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that, they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: ̂ 'dO''90
Signature,i^t^l|Cted Officer
Namer77,Yt(5lKv

5c!do6/--Soartli

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex
NH Public Risk Manog«m«ni Excbonga CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Managemenl Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
nrianagement programs estabiished for the benefit of poliUcal subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth tielow, In addition, Primex^ may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies arxl procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex^. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Uability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only, Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a memtter in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Managemenl Exchange. The coverage provided rhay.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out beiow accurateiy reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage.year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information onty and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does r>ot amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.'

Participating Member; Member Number:

Franklin School District 716

SAU#18

119 Central Street

Franklin. NH 03235

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange • Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage
Effective Date

fmm/dd/ww)

Expiration Date
(mm/dd/ww)

Limits' NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Each Occurrence $ 5.000.000

General Aggregate $ 5.000.000

□ MadT D Occurrence
Fire Danrage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Au
De

tomoblle Liability
ductible Comp and Coll:

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Accident)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Emptoyee S2.000.000.

Disease-Policy Unit

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex^ - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

Qy; Sdi "PtttuU.

Date: 4/13/2020 mourcell(5)nhprimex.orgState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Tim Dow, Chairperson

Jeff Savary, Vice Chairperson

Deborah L Brown, Treasurer

Scott Burns

Susan Hallett-Cook

Cecile Cormier

Delaney Carrier

Chris Kneeland

Paul Doucette

Franklin School District

School Board Members



Christo^ Emml.
Phone Number:

F.ducarion

Master's of Sodnl WorK 2012

■ Bodieloi of Sdence, 2008 ,
Cancovtrttion: Hunum Services

ROCHESTER MTODLE SCHOOL. Rochestct, ^ ̂

. tap^S'pi^SUCCE^^ools Usii^ Coordinated Community Efforts to
Strengthen Students) model

• Meet with students individually and in groups (COSAP. Newcomers. PPP)
.  Educate parents and community members on the risks involved with adolescent

substance misuse

•  EducnlesrfioQlstaffinwamingsignsandhow.toreferstudehlstoSAPservices
•  Input all data entry in the state's WITS database
•  Adviser to the RK6 Youth 2 Youth after school drug prevention program

HOMELESS CENTER OF STRAFFORD COUNTY. Rochester, ̂
Case Manager. 2015 - 2016
A seasonal homeless shelter providing safety, support and self-sufficiency to women, children
and fiuruHes. -

•  Implement policies and procedures for homeless shdtcr residents and transitional
housing including program rules and shdter expectations

• Dcvel^ and implonmt individualized case plans for residents including personal
development, household management ond financial management

• Connect residents to partner agencies for support services including but not limited
to: employment, health care, legal services, job training, cducatiort. counseling and
chUdcarc

VVESTBRIDGE. Manchester. NH
Admissions Counselor, 2014 - 2015

A private, non-proSt organisation providing integrated dual diagnosis troatment to individuals
v.ith severe and persistent mental illness and substance use dLsorders
. ̂ducting a<Wi^ screenings, intake assessments and providing referrals to

individuals and familiea seeking treatment snaerraisto
.  Attending clinical team meetings and documentation of clinical
•  ̂'rovidingn high level of internal and external customer cn ■

event planning, marketing strategies and referral develo^T



ProfewLlonni Eyperience Cont ■

0 u t hj
Soda) Worko; 2011-2015,
A i>Qn-profit orgnniiadon lhat provides non-nKHJIcnt homo caro.scrvlccs to ihe elderly and
individuals with sc\'cni ond'pcfeistmt nKryu|lltoes&**,i^^*

• Conducted intake oss^smcnts
clicnfs needs

• SchcduUnR hoo^emnkcra to serve clicnte.wUhln thcj
• Oversaw t^ Adult In-Homo Coro Progmn>
•  Pcrforadhg outrcodv ossessmentrmd evaluation for oU active clients within

Rockiixgham Count)'
♦

PROSPECT MOUNTAIN HIGH SCHOO^ Alton, NH
Assistant Spcdtl Education Teacher, 200S-2010,

. Prodded ifeslstance' to sp^al cducntion students In the Learning Center
V  Incorp^te spcdiU learning strategic for leoming tiisabled students cncompassinR

self-<pjcstiamng. rehearsal and review/cognitive behavior tnodificntioa
organization, menvcMy strategies and modeling

'  ITogroms.wtlin aiidoad ol

'  "h-denl-s

Intern shi erience

vc-

piay

COMMUNITY PARTNERS, Rochester, NH
Advanced QiiOcal Ihtcm ~ 2au • 2012

,  therapies..Ccllnboratal« . team wio, „a,er prare.ssic,nak
hHODLE SCHOPU PWstow NH

Prcnided imiiwdual^JdXp ^•  Counseled odolcscmtsliviniiti A



School Administrative Unit #18

Student Assistance Program
April 13, 2020

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Christina LaMaitre SACP $60,100. 100 $60,100



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire ^
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2nd Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Deprartment of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Departmenf) and School Administrative Unit #30 Laconla School
District, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a munlclpallty with a place of business at 39 Harvard
Street, Laconla, NH 03264.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 13, 2017, (Item #16), as amended on June 19, 2019. (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specifed in the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P^7, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7; Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$399,980.

3. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement,, and shall be In accordance with the approved line Item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

School Administrative Unll #30 Laconla School District Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-03-A02 Page! of3 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Ail terms artd conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health apdHuman Services

Date

Title:

Date

School Administrative Unit #30 Leconla School District

Name:

Title:

School Admlnlstrativs Urdt #30 Laconia School District

RFA-201SBDAS'02-STUDE-03-A02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

iMnMn,?n?n
Date , ji^me:

"Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Coundi of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

School Administrative Unit #30 Lacorto School District

RFA-201B-BDAS-02-STUDE-03-A02 Page 3 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

bafel C\?.(t
(Namd of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot bbe

hereby certify thai:
 contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerkySecretary/Offioer of | (.[ | | C(^1a(V>1
(Cb7pferation/Lrc Name)

2. The follQmna is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on \ , 20 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

^  \ (Die)

VOTED: That ^fyf Tvfr VdV
(Name and Tide of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

i

. (may list more than one person)

ter Into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, atid any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(8) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) indicated and that, they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature pr Elected Officer
Name:

C\£/1C

?  COMWSSOH ^
=  EXPn^S = :

i  l-U MJOUSTB. i
'  2023 i

%

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex'
NH Public Risk Manog«ment Excheng*' CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a noh-rrtember is subject to ail of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex^ including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex^ Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the.Memljer's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A {Personal Injury Liability) arrd Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C {Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D {Unfair Employment Practices). E {Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liatxiity Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The t>elow named enUty is a memljer in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Psrticlpsting Membsf: Member Number:

Laconia School District 729

SAU #30

39 Harvard Street

PO Box 309

Laconia, NH 03246

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage
Effecltve Date

(mm/dd/vwvi

Expiration Date .

(mm/ddfvYWI
Limits • NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Each Occurrence $5,000,000 ^

General Aggregate $5,000,000

□  =
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X Au
De

tomobile Liability
ductibie Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Combined Single Limit
(Eacn Accident)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000

Disease - Policy Umlt

X Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blanket Limll, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:

$1,0()0

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; Seti 'Puwd

Date: 4/6/2020 mpurcelltSinhorimex.orqState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to;
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



4/4/2020 LaconiaSchoolBoard-NEWHAMPSHIRESCHCXDL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT30

School AdminlstratlvB 30 Offices • Suporintendont Steve Tucker 39 Harvard Street Leconlo, NH 03246 Phorte; 803-524-5710 Pax;

NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL

ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT 30

LACONIA SCHOOL DISTRICT CVRSCHCOLl RtVOVE UApfiitHQ HBeoUflCEfl

Ol'frCt or tK rililDRD lltAFfWJl'Q ttORl.

All regular Laconia School Board meetings are held the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month at 6:30 P.M.
at the Leconia School District Administrative Building, 39 Harvard Street.

The next regular School Board meeting Is scheduled for April 4, 2020 at 4:00 P.M.

School Board Meeting Agenda

School Board Meeting Posting
The aganda la posted the before Friday each school board ntealing by 5PM

2019*2020 Laconia School Board Members

fBOARQSO^DOL

ia-

a

Ward at4erge

Robert ChampRn

bchampBn^laeerdaschoolt.org

Ward «1

Mai Murray

mmurray&aconlaaehoola.org

Ward M2

Laura Dunn

ldunnQlaeonlaachools.org

Ward #4

Dawn Johnaot)

dawnfohnsonQlaconlaaehools.org

Ward «S

Stacle SIrola

sslrolsQlaconlaaehoola.org

Ward»

Haathor Lourtsbury (Chalrperaon)

hlounsburyQlaeenlaachools.org

https://www.laconia$choola.org/laconla-6Chool-board.htjDl 1/2



4/4/2020 Laconia School Board - NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT 30

WirdfS

Aaron Kayward (VIca-Ctiairparson) wlMtvl
a/wywardQtecon/atcnoo/a. ors

Ensuring success with every student, every dey, In every way

R0glna Tfttbfj/e

:  \

https://www.laconiaschool9.org/l8conia-6chool-bosrd.html 2/2



I Employment 2015 - present Laconia School District Laconia, NH
Training and Marketing Coordinator - Safe Schools/Healthy Students

•  Marketing for Safe Schools/Healthy Students program Including press releases, newsletters, flyers

•  Extensive computer skills - Microsoft Word, Publisher, One Note, Outlook, Office 365

•  Schedule and organize training sessions for staff members including logistics and travel plans, if

necessary

•  Maintain the programs brand and visual identity with respect to its philosophy and programs

on the website, social media, and other electronic communications

2009 - 2015 Laconia School District

Administrative Assistant to Superintendent of Schools

.Laconia, NH

•  Administrative Assistant duties including answering telephones, secretarial support to

Superintendent of Schools, greeting public

•  Extensive computer skills - Microsoft Word, Publisher, One Note, Outlook, Office 365

•  Schedule and organize training sessions for staff members including travel plans, if necessary

•  Independently manage updates to the school website, including writing and developing new

content, creating new web pages and taking/uploading/embedding photos and video

•  Maintain the school's brand and visual identity with respect to its philosophy and programs

on the website, social media, and other electronic communications

•  Attend and/or participate in school events, classes, activities, and programs to seek out

• compelling news and feature stories, and cultivate positive relationships with the school's
. faculty, staff, and parents to advance Its marketing and enrollment goals

•  Manage a weekly electronic newsletter to Laconia School District families that includes news'
stories, photos, videos, and calendar information

•  Competency in independent thinking, strong problem-solving, technical and
communications skills, and demonstrated proficiency in writing, editing, video

production, social media, and website managerhent.

1997-2009 Laconia School District Laconia, NH

Administrative Assistant - Woodland Heights Elementary School

•  Performed a variety of office secretarial, bookkeeping and administrative duties which required

a broad knowledge of both secretarial and clerical practices and procedures.

•  Served as secretary to the school principal and staff. The position required a thorough

knowledge of all school functions, procedures, building facilities, and applicable district

and school rules, regulations and policies.

•  Exercised considerable discretion in the protection and release of confidential information and in

the interpretation and administration of policies and procedures within guidelines set by the ,
administrator.

•  Responsible for attendance, enrollment and transfer records, ordering school supplies for teaching



staff and arrangements for building maintenance and security.

^ Malone, Lard & Oirubbo P.C. Laconia, NH1995 -1997

Administrative Assistant

•  Administrative assistant duties to support office function

•  Secretarial support for 4 accountants

•  Extensive computer use including Microsoft Office Suite

•  Basic accounting using accounting software

1990-1995 NH Dept. of Health & Human Services Laconia, NH

Case Aide

•  Interviewed clients and determined eligibility for Medicaid

•  Data entry and word processing

• ' Compiled reports for state agency

1988-1990 Multiple DWI Offender Program Laconia, NH

Administrative Assistant

•  Data entry, word processing, compiling statistical reports

•  Administrative assistant support including answering telephones, greeting public

•  Liaison with District Courts and Department of Corrections

Education

Volunteer

I experien^

1974 -1988 Laconia State School

Secretary/Account Qerk

•  Basic secretarial skills

•  Data entry and word processing

•  Payroll and time keeping for staff

1968 -1972 Pt. Loma High School

High School Diploma

•  General Education/College Prep

Laconia, NH

San Diego, CA

Former Secretary and Board Member - Lakes Region Scholarship Foundation

Board member - Santa Fund of the Greater Lakes Region

Member of Laconia School District Health and Wellness Council and Academy

Got Lunch Laconia Volunteer



LCMHC. MLADC CPS

Education

❖ Master of Science in Mental Health Counseling, December 2010
■  New England College, Henniker, NH

❖ Bachelor of Science In Psychology with a concentration In mental health, May 2008
■  Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

❖ Licensure/Certifications

■  Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (LCMHC)
■  Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC)

■  Certified Prevention Specialist (CPS)

Experience

<* Student Assistance Program Coordinator/Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Laconia School
District: January 2015 to present

■  Provide drug and alcohol counseling to students within the schools

■  Implement aspects of the Project SUCCESS: Classroom education, prevention
groups and school wide awareness activities.

■  Provide support to students in crisis or those impacted by someone else's
substance use

■  Support students experiencing mental health issues such as anxiety and
depression

❖ Clinician, Child and Family Services: Family Counseling and Substance Abuse Treatment
Programs, March 2011 to December 2018

,  ■ Provided individual, group and family counseling for people experiencing mental
health, substance misuse or family problems.

■  Addressed issues such as anxiety, depression, communication, anger
management, trauma, relationship problems and addiction.

.  ■ Completed assessments, created treatment plans and maintained client records.

❖ Family Therapist, Child and Family Services: Integrated Home-Based (IHB) Program,
August 2012 to November 2012 (per diem)

■  Completed family assessments, treatment plans, monthly reports, and
collaborated with the case worker assigned to each case and worked together
with the JPPO/CPSW or other referral sources

■  Provided family counseling, and occasional individual counseling, as needed in
each case



■  Attended case specific meetings and appointments to include, but not limited to:
court dates, team meetings, lEP meetings, etc.

❖ Direct Support Professional, Independent Services Network, August 2007 to March
2011

■  Provided direct support for individual's with developmental disabilities
■  Assisted clients with activities of daily living, brought clients out into the

community,.and helped clients achieve greater independence
■  Participated in developing and implementing client's Individual Service Plans

1

❖ Clinical Intern, Child and Family Services: Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment

Program, September 2009 to June 2010

■  Provided individual counseling to adolescents who were abusing or dependent

on drugs or alcohol

■  Used the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs'(GAIN) to assess clients
■ Wrote treatment plans with clients and assisted them in achieving their goals

Trainings

Project SUCCESS

Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT)
NAMI NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Program

Adolescent Community Reinforcement Approach (ACRA)
Global Appraisal of Individual Needs (GAIN)



McKenzie Harrington-Bacote

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH Anticipated 2019
Certificate of Advanced Graduate Studies, Educational Leadership/PATH/OATH

Mindful Schools February 2018

Mindfulness Fundamentals and Mindful Educators Essentials

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH May 2009
Master of Education, Self-designed program, Concentration in Anthropology

James Madison University, Harrisonburg,VA May 2002

Bachelor of Science, Cultural Anthropology

Minors: Geology and Religion

Professional & Leadership Experience ^

Administrator, Laconia School District, Office of School Wellness April 2014 - present

Direct and Oversee the following federal and state grants that support students, staff and families in
promoting social, emotional, physical, mental and behavioral health in early childhood through high
school graduation:

(1) Safe Schools/Healthy Students federal grant awarded by the US DHHS, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration [SAMHSA). This is an $8.6 million four-yeargrant supporting the promotion of early
childhood social and emotional learning and development, promotion of mental, emotional and behavioral health,
connecting families, schools and communities, preventing behavioral health problems, including substance use,
and creating safe and violence-free schools.

(2) School Climate Transformation grant awarded to the Laconia School District by the US Department of Education
(US DOE). This is a $1.01 million five-year grant to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Interventions
and Supports (PBIS) in all schools.

(3) Project AWARE grant to Laconia by SAMHSA. This is a $100,000 two-year grant that supports the
implementation of the evidence-based Youth Mental Health First Aid across the district and community.
(4) System ofCare FAST FORWARD 2020 federal grant awarded by the US DHHS SAMHSA. This is $12 million four-
year grant supporting expansion and sustainability of a state level system of care (SOC) for children, youth, and
their families.

(5) McKinney-Vento ActSubgrantawarded by the NHDOE to support implementation and build district capacity to
ensure that children, youth, and their families who are experiencing hbmelessness are provided necessary
supports and services to be successful.

(6) Generating Resilience, Outcomes, and Wellness (GROW) Grant awarded by the NHDOE. This is a four-year project
to develop trauma-sensitive school systems.
(7) Dropout Prevention Grant awarded by the NHDOE to support the development an alternative high school. This
is a two-year $120,000 grant.

(8) Student Assistance Program Grant awarded by NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services to support substance
use prevention and intervention at the middle and high school levels. This is a two-year $200,000 grant.
(9) Pyramid Model Readiness Project awarded through SPARK NH to support the development and implementation
of the Pyramid Model in Laconia public preschools.



o Responsibilities include: Fiscal management and oversight of roughly $1.5 million annual budget; Creation
and implementation of multiple vendor contracts supporting five schools, Pre-K - 12''' grade; Staff

development, including hiring, evaluation, and supervision; Federal reporting; Oversight of ongoing
Workforce Development and Professional Development across all schools in the district, including

implementation of Cultural and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) Standards in education, and;
Oversight and provision of the following Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: Positive Behavior Interventions
and Supports (PBIS), Interconnected Systems Framework (ISF), and Trauma-Sensitive Schools (TSS)
through a vertically aligned, district-wide program of implementation,

o Grant proposal writer for federal and state RFP and RFA opportunities
o  Liaison with state and federal partners

o  Leader of PBIS District Leadership Team and District Core Management Team

o  Conduct trainings as a certified instructor in Youth Mental Health First Aid and Diversity and Cultural
Competence

o  Leader of Community Relations District Strategic Planning Committee

Education Consultant, NHDOE, Bureau of Special Education September 2009-April 2014
o  Responsibilities: direct, manage, and coordinate various projects, grants, and compliance monitoring

activities. This requires research, writing, data retrieval and analysis, fiscal oversight and budget
development, educational information dissemination, staff supervision, and excellent customer service.

6  Project Director, Safe Schools and Healthy Students State Planning Grant: $8.6 million grant awarded by the
U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) to work with three local school
districts and the N.H. Bureau of Behavioral Health to decrease student exposure to violence, increase
positive school culture and climate, increase access to behavioral and mental health services, increase early
childhood screening, decrease incidents of suspension and expulsion, and ensure cultural and linguistic
competence.

o Grant proposal writer of Requests for Proposals (RFPs) and Requests for Applications (RFAs) to US
Departments.

o  Create and develop RFPs for NHDOE expenditure of state and federal discretionary funding; RFP proposal
reviewing; Grant management and fiscal oversight of federal and state grants,

o  Project Consultant, Next Steps NH: College, Career, and Life Readiness: a $3.6 million State Performance
Development Grant from the US Department of Education,

o Responsible for Governor & Council processes for contract/grant approvals and fund expenditure,
o Oversight of NH district's IDEA/Preschool federal entitlement grants & American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grants,
o  Provide technical assistance and direct support to NH school districts and parents of students with

disabilities.

o Represent NHDOE at NH legislative hearings and committee meetings regarding House and Senate bills
that affect the education of students with disabilities, including verbal and written testimony and fiscal
note development.

o  Policy and Data responsibilities: Collect, analyze and interpret data and policies; use data to inform
decision making; Develop and submit reports for US Department of Education, Office of Special Education
Programs.

o  Conduct educational program reviews and evaluations to ensure compliance with federal and state
regulations through onsite visits to schools to monitor educational standards and practice, including
preparing written reports, recommending approval actions, corrective action plans, and suggesting
program improvements.

o Oversight of the Translation Services project that provides translated special education and other
documents for parents and families in NH whose first language is other than English,

o Represent NHDOE on various statewide committees.
o  Liaison for all NH County Departments of Correction, the state prison's Granite State High School, and NH

school districts regarding the population of special education students, age 17-21, who are incarcerated,
o Oversight and coordination of NHDOE's Indicator 13 - Secondary Transition efforts for NH's State

Performance Plan for Special Education. Responsibilities include training of NH administrators and staff.



federal compliance monitoring and evaluating of NH school districts' implementation of Transition lEPs,
and research in best practices,

o Responsible for federal reporting of Indicator 1: Graduation & Indicator 2: Dropout for NH's State
Performance Plan for Special Education,

o  Supervision of support staff and NHDOE contracted vendors

Program Specialist 111, NHDOE, Bureau of Special Education December 2007-September 2009
o  Program Coordinator, Educational Surrogate Parent Program: Responsibilities include oversight,

coordination, marketing, recruitment, and ensuring compliance and regulation of the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and New Hampshire Rules for the Education of Children with Disabilities,
Ed. 1115 Surrogate Parents; liaison for school districts, area agencies, and Division of Children, Youth, and
Family (DCYF) workers; oversight of 300 NH volunteers,

o Management of the Master Surrogate Parent Program: Responsibilities include management and
supervision of five Master Surrogate Parents annually; reviewing their applications, interviewing
candidates, and awarding contracts; assigning and evaluating their work,

o  Program Coordinator, Technical Assistance.Consultants (TAC): project that provides technical assistance,
corrective action, trainings and workshops to districts, parents, communities, and volunteers.
Responsibilities include management and supervision of up to five TACs annually; reviewing applications,
interviewing candidates, and awarding contracts; assigning and evaluating their work,

o  Program Coordinator, lEP Facilitation Program: program that provides facilitators to school districts for
lEP team meetings.

o  Project Director: Achievement for Dropout Prevention and Excellence III (APEX 111), a NH DOE funded
project awarded to UNH's Institute on Disability (lOD) targeting at-risk students with disabilities in six NH
high schools, following the model set forth in APEX I and APEX II.

Program Specialist II, NHDOE, Bureau of Special Education |une 2006-December 2007
Achievement/or Dropout Prevention and Excellence II (APEX II], Federal grant during 9/2005 - 9/2009:
Responsibilities include APEX II grant oversight; management of budget, financial expenditures, and Governors
Council processes; development, coordination, and marketing of conferences and events; liaison work with UNH,
National Center for Dropout Prevention at Clemson University, Alliance for Community Supports, Inc., and New
Hampshire Center for Effective Behavioral interventions and Supports; intensive work with high schools
(administration, staff and'students) involved in the project; evaluation and calculation of district data for the
Bureau and all other assigned tasks.

Teaching Experience ^ ^

Science Teacher, Waterville Valley Academy November 2005-April 2006

I

Graduate Assistant, Teaching Fellowship, Plymouth State University September 2003-June 2005

Field Naturalist, Orange County Department of Education, California January 2003-August 2003

Teacher Assistant, James Madison University, Geology Department August 2000-May 2002

Research Experience

•  o Master Thesis: The Rise of Females in Education and the Labor Force: Transitions in American Culture
o Graduate Ethnographic Fieldwork: Italy, Cultural Emersion Program,
o  Undergraduate Ethnographic Fieldwork, JMU Anthropology Department, Researched role of prayer and

ritual in local Islamic Community via emersion In local mosque



o  Invertebrate Paleontologist Lab Technician, Virginia Museum of Natural History. NSF Grant, Researched,
sorted & identified Invertebrate species from samples along the east coast of the United States for
documentation of species' numbers and geologic time span for collections' records

Professional Activities and Memberships

o  2018 State of the Union Guest of Senator Maggie Hassan

o  NHDOE's New Hampshire Comprehensive School Services ESSA Advisory (April 2016 - present]
o  School Social Worker Association of America Member [2016 - present)
o Association for Positive Behavior Support Member (2016 - present)
o Diversity and Cultural Competence Instructor (January 2016)
o Youth Mental Health First Aid Instructor (January 2015)

o  NHDOE's Early Learning Workgroup (January 2015 - April 2015)
o Winnipesaukee Public Health Council Member (June 2014 - present)
o Assessment/PACE Committee Member (September 2017 -present)
o  Project EXTRA Advisory Committee Member (June 2014-presenj)
o  Laconia Health and Wellness Academy Committee Member (June 2014 - present)
o  Stand Up Laconia Executive Committee Member (2014-present)
o  State Management Team, Office of Student Wellness, NHDOE (2014-present)
o  NH Children's Behavioral Health Community of Practice (2014-present)
o  Leadership Institute Series, NH School Administrators Association (2010) '
o  Recipientof Graduate Teaching Fellowship {2003-2Q05]-
o NH National Guard Scholarship Committee Member
o NH Children's Behavioral Health Steering Committee Member
o  NH DCYF System of Care Leadership Team Member
o New Hampshire Association of Special Education Administrators (NHASEA)

Professional Presentations ^

o  13th Annual New England PBIS Conference (November 2017) ~ Presenter,
o NH Educator's Summit (August 2017) - Presenter
o  2016 National PBIS Leadership Forum (October 2016) ~ Presenter
o  NH Governor's.Summit on Substance Use - Presenter (May 2016)

o  11^'' Annual New England Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports Forum (November 2015)
o NAMI NH Mental Health & School Conference presenter (2013)
q Governor's 3"^ Annual High School Graduation Summit ~ Panel Presenter
o  NHASEA ~ Presenter - Indicator 13/Secondary Transition, Educational Surrogate Parent Program, Summer

Academy Lead for NHDOE

o UNH's Institute on Disability's Transition Series ~ Panel Presenter
o NH Family Support Conference 2012 ̂  Panel Presenter
o  NH Vocational Rehabilitation Transition Internship Presenter



Lacbnia School District

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Jessica Conrad SAP Coordinator $50,985.00 100% $50,985.00

Janet Brough Training/Marketing
Coordinator

$59,730.00 31% $18,577.00

McKenzie

HarrinKton-Bacote

Administrator $92,000.00 0% $0.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"" Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and School Administrative Unit #33 Raymond
School District, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 43
Harriman Hill Road, Raymond, NH 03077.

WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 13, 2017 (Item #16), June 19, 2019, (Item #29A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant-to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the.term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: .

June 30.2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$399,935.

3. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2. Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit B-2,. Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

School Administrative Unit #33 Raymond School District

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-05-A02 Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials,.

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent witti this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services.

Date ^
Tttle: ^ •

School Administrative Unit #33 Raymond School District

Date Name:
Title: 6up(J?^ cf Sc hools

School Admlnlstralive Unll«33 Raymond School Dislrid

RFA.2018-BDAS-02.STUDE-05-A02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, arxj
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY O'eNERAL

June 10, 2020

Date N^e:
Title-Assistant Attorney General

.1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title;

School Administrative Unit #33 Raymond School District

RFA.201 B-BDAS-02-STUDE-05-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-2. Amendment (3

2. Eti'iDicjiae Benefit*
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Joseph Saulnier hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Raymond School District
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 1, 2020^ , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That _Tlna McCoy. Superintendent of Schools.
-  (Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of _Raymond School District to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To.the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:. LtnJ}. k i
ature of Elected Officer

Name: 'Zou'-fi ̂  . .V
Title.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Rockingham

The.fo.rgdiriglnstrumeri.t yyas.acknowleclged before roe'this day of. 2020.

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires

(Notary Public/Jueticd of the P^ce

RONALD A. BRICKETT
Notary Public - New Harnpahlre

My CornrnMpn ExplTM SepUrnbor 16,2020
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NH PuUlc Riik Menegenwii bchongt CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex* is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs ̂ tablished for the benefit of pofilical subdivisions in the Slate of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member Is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex®. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shell reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and £)eclar8tlons. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Uability coverage Is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage 8 (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officiate Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any lime by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate Is issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established (or the current coverage year.

This Certificate Is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Uvr^r: Utmbtr Numbv:

Raymond School District 933
SAU #33
43 Harrlman Hill Road
Raymond. NH 03077

Comptny Aftordlng Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Broc^ Place
46 Donovan Street
Concord, NH 03301-2624

' (EfT^hm Dsiti
i/mmfddArmi-.

i:£i^in(/on^par*' .L/mf(3yNH.Statutbjy^Lli^^^^ ff-Not;,
X General Liability (Occurrence Form)

Professional Liability (describe)
7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Each Occurrence $ 5,000.000

General Aggregate $ 5.000.000
r—1 Claims f—1 _U Made LJ Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one

fire)
Med Exp (Any one person)

X Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll: S1.000

Any auto

7/1/2019 .7/1/2020 Combined Single Limit
(Each Acdda/M]

Aggregate

SS.000.000

55.000.000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 ° X Statutory

Each Accident 52,000.000

Disease - EkH EnvlovM 52.000,000

Disease-PoteyLMi

X  1 Properly (Special Risk includea Fire end theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blankel Limit. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Deductible;
51.000

Desciiption: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: ' TXaty Sad P»te4S

Date: 3(26/2020 mtxjrcelltStnhorimex.oraState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2641 phone
603-226-3633 fax



4/3/2020 Board Members / Board Members

Raymond School Board Members

Email: schoaiboafd^vFsu'Vi.coin

Please use this email to send a message to the full School Board. Note that emails sent using this email address are
considered public.

Click on the names below to find individual contact information.

Joseph Saulnler
School Board Chair

Janice Arsenauit
School Board Vice Chair

Beth Paris
School Board Secretary

Anthony Clements
School Board Member

IVIelissa Sytek
School Board Member

isabella daSilva
Student Representative to the School Board

The Raymond School Board recognizes the value of having a non-voting student representative to the Board as a means
of improving communications between students and the School Board. The representative is elected by the Raymond
High School student body. The representative will be seated for a one-year term to commence concurrent with the term of
the newly elected Board.

http8://www.sau33.com/Page/401 1/1



Jessica Caroo, LICSW

ObJec(K-e: Dedicated social worker with significant professional experience seeking a leadership role working
with ehildren and families which will make use of self-^ircction, organizational and leadership
skills.

Cdncatioo: Springfield CoDcge Springfield MA
MSW Degree CPA 3.77 Graduation Date: August 2009

Western New England College Springfield MA
BSW Degree CPA 3.70 Gradiuuioh Date: February 2008

Professional Experience:
Lahe)'Health Behoviorftl Services
Director of Operations: Child Behavioral Health Services (CBHl) May 2017- current

• Assess administrative and management needs of (he CBHl and youth ser>'iccs; do'clop. Implement,
onluate and manage all clinical and non-clinical program elements, provide consuliatjon,
odministraiive support and resource development and allocation.

• Assist VP of Ambulatory Services in establishing policies and procedtires, including participation in
budget preparation, mohltoty contracts and productivity.

•  Supervision of program directors, c^ing out such responsibilities in accordance with the
orgoaizations policies and applicable laws.

• Maintain effective working relationships with internal, c.xten)al providers as uxll as other regulator)'
bodies.

• Responsible for ov^ght of program budgets ond pr^iictivit)' in collaboration wth program
directors.

•  Ensure odhCTcnce and tracing of staff trainings as required 8y regulatory bodies wthin the CBHl
and youth services.

•  . Responsible for proposal and grant uiiting, project pltuuiing and implementation for initiatives^
relevant to CBHl and youth services.

Program Director Community Service Agency- Hoverhill May 2016- May 2017
•  Provide oversight to the adequacy, appropriatene^, fiscal viability and quality of clinical and

opcrelional program as well as Implement orientation, supervision and sutITperformance activities to
ensure high standardis of client and organization results.

■ Monitor v.'orkcrs' productivit)*, implemem multidisciplinaiy team meetings, high risk cose revievs's,
and supervision and staff evaluations.

• Develop and Introduce approved slaiKlards and guidelines for the Community Service Agency.
• Build and maintain efTcctivc working relationships wi\h intemai, external providers as well as other

regulatory bodies.
• Ensure adherence to the principals and values of the Child Bcharioral Health Initiative.
• Acting as odministraloron-coil for staff with 1 hour maximum response time to nil staff between the

hours of 8 AM and 8 PM 7 days a week.
Program Director Flc.xible Supports July 2014-May 2016

•  Provide oversight of 3 progi^s including Individual and Family Flexible Support Services (Flex),
Substance Use Narigation Project (SUN), ̂  Student Assistance Program (SAP).



• Develop, implement, monitor and ro'iew operating budgets for each program. Ensure thai internal
reports are produced and reviewed in a timely fasWon. Support grant writing eJTons for grant funded
programs.

• Resi»nsible for the oversight ofcHnical programming and continuoiLsly evaluate the effectiveness of
the programming, making rwmmeitdations and changes when needed. Support ntanagcment staff
■in malninining a trauma mformed care model within the organization and with youth and families
served.

•' Continuous quality improvement for Flex scrv'tccs through dm-clopmcnt of procedures, manuals,
training materials, paiticipaiion in trainings, best practiced, using staffand the research liicralure as
resources.

• Acting 05 odministrnlor on-call for staff with I hour maximum response time to all staff bctwcCT the
hours of 8 AM and 8 PM 7. days a week.

•  Build and maintain dTcciivc working relationships with Internal, external prondcrs, as vvcll as odtcr
regutoiory bodies. These relationships include funders for each program, including the Department
of Mental Health (Flex); United Way (SAP); and the Tower Foundation (SUN).

Therapeutic Memoring Coordinator July 2012- July 2014
• Manager for Thcrapeidc Mentoring Dcparimem consisting of 67 mentors sciS-icing over 200 youth.

Ensure youth referred meet medical necessity for the wrNnce.
•  .Responsible for hiring, training, performance management and monthly TM meeting for all mentors.
•  Direct supervision with assigned supervisees including therapeutic mentors, lnicnsi%x Care

Coordinators ond BSW level interns.
•  Responsible for assuring quality of clinical records, assessing progress towards quarterly

benchmarks and staff adherence lb performance spcciGcations.
•  Acting as administrator on-call for Therapeutic Mentoring vrith 1 hour maximum response lime to

all mentors between the hours of 8 AM and 8 PM 7 days a week.
Intensive Core Coordinator July 2010-July 2012

•  Engage youth and family in Wraparound process. Support family in development of care plan team
for youth under 21 wih a serious emotional disturbance.

•  Complete assessments and tools wih in benchmarks in order to support family in idctiiifying
Intensive Care Plan goals, needs, and strengths.

•  Facilitate Care Plan Team meeting to develop a sustainable comprehensive plan, monitor progrws,
and increase accountability to support youth and families in mcedng their identified goals.

•  Supervisory duties including direct supervision as well as evaluating the wraparound procw for
ICCs on a scittdulcd basis to ensure fidelity to wrap around.

Clinical & Support Options Springfield, MA
In Homc.Thcrupy Clinician August 2009-July 2010

• Outreach crisis stabilization services to a onload of appiro.ximatcly 12 childrcn ond their families.
Provide short-tenn psycho-educational and clinical iniervcntlons to reach identified goals.

•  Coordination with Family Support Worker as well as outside providers as needed.
•  Determine level of risk and need for children and their families, arid make appropriate clinical

referrals.
Psychiatric Crisis Services Clinician September 2009-July 2010

•  Immediate support over the phone for individuals in crisis as well as facc-to-face evaluations
(including Mobile Crisis Interventions) when needed.

•  .Assess level of risk, safety planning and level of care, refer individuals accordingly for services.
Oulpaiierit Clinician August 2009 - July 2010

«  Individual and fornily therapy to children and their fomilics.
«  Provide comprehensive assessments, safety plans as well as treatment plans.
•  Corfaciliiaiion of "Healthy Relationship" Adolescent female therapeutic group.



Family Sup})oh Wortcet/Community Support Program Worker August 2007-Augusi 2009
•  fjiiM management of approximately 12-15 clients (including referrals lo eligible services) with

qualifying DSM IV Diagnoses
•  Collatorate with Family StabiUzatian Team clinician to provide. Psycho education; I: I social skills,

parenting skills and conflict intervention.

Assoelation for Commanlty Lfving Springfield, MA
Supervisor 1 of Direct Core Staff Jime 2005-October 2006

• Monitor Direct Care Staff lo ensure that clients' medical and social needs ore met in a residence for
adults with significant medical and devcloixncntal needs.

• Organize Direct Cart Staff for shift assignments as nvcII as outings and in-bousc cv^ts..
•  Advocate and plan for clients' preferred activities.
•  Provide direct care to clients when needed.

Computer Skills: Proficient in Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, Excel, and Internet Research Skills
AnHiotlons arid CertiTicatloos

•  Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW)
•  Certified Child & Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) Aisessor
•  Certificate of Completion: Trauma Focu^- Cognitive Behavior Therapy (TF-CBT) online

training
• References'available upon request.



Raymond School District

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Open Position SAP Counselor $50,000
Budgeted

100% $50,000 Budgeted

Jessica Caron Director of Student

Behavioral Health (SAP
Counselor Supervisor)

$83,000,
Annual FY20

0% $0

*



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAU 54 - Rochester School District,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 150 Wakefield St,
Suite 8. Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item it23), as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #29A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3,. the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Fonn P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$300,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 In the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15. to read:

2.15. Reserved.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1., to read:

6.1. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with studentis in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

7. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6. Subsection
6.1 to read:

6.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillmerit of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit 8-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

SAU 54 - Rochester School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-09-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

SAU 54 - Rodiester School District

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-09-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date 4-1/'2>' T/^



New Hampshire Department of H^lth and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and ef^. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council spprovaL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date vmltten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date iNsme:

Title:

SAU 54 - Rochester School District

Date Name:
Title:

Ackrwwiedgement of Contractor's signature:

SAU 54 - Rochester School Distrfct Amencinieot#2

SS-2019>B0AS-02>STUDE-0e^2 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June1Q.2Q2Q. .

Date N^me:
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SAU 54 - Rochester School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-09-A02 Page 4 of 4



BMM AMntfwal#a

•! Hwfch 4n4 Hum—

W—i tAUM- lleeeeMw lehe*#OWW

iMipM Pm^t Mr t, )e. fVI

iaS

a
■ra" iM-tM :ss:

sKim -gm«
30M0»

p—

B»dE—^

li^

Wf*l "vnas
TRT

M MMMV MM OMM
81-a»tM6M#<.SlV0€4»iW

iU



VOTED

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. p.g.u A L.vi'nCh ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of KOC{ \.i'^ 5-T<.^.r" Sci^Pol RoAJ^id
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ."TTAjrvi? 20 lip . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date),

: That tPulg- ( . 'St f i (may list more than one person)
(N^ime and Title of Cohtraot Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Rofi^i? s-fg/"vSrhcioi Tjisfto enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements arxJ other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the per$on(s) listed above currently occupy the.
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the e^ent that there; are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contrac%,vwtb:thrttale of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated;±y:2>Ll3? •
Signature.of Elected Officer
Name: / C vy v. K ,
Title: Q-j

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex"
NH Public Risk ManoQamanC Exchanga CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Mar^agement Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex® is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex® is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, polides and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex®, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Tnjstees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
Uierefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange, The coverage provided may,
however, t>e revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the dale this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate Is issued as a matter of Infomnation only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Pariicipeting Member: Member Number:

Rochester School District 901

SAU #54

150 Wakefield Street, Suite 8
Rochester. NH 03867

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624
1

Typo of Covorege
Effective Date

(mm/<i<t/vvw)

Expiration Date
(mm/dd/wwi

Limits - NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Each Occurrence $ 5,000.000

General Aggregate S 5,000,000

□ Mair □ Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X Au
De

tomobiie Liability
ductible Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Combined Single Limit
(Each Accident)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  .Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000

Disease - PoKcy umii

X Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blanket Limit. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible: .

$1,000

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex® - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; TXate PmueH

Date: 5/16/2019 mpurcelKSJnhorimex.orQState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to;
Primex® Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Rochester School Board Members

January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2021

Mr. Matthew Beaulieu

Brian Nicholson

Mr. Nathaniel Byrne

Mr. David Camire

Mrs. AnneGrassie

Mr. Paul Lynch, Chair

Mr. Matthew Munn

Mr. Matthew S. Pappas, Vice>Chair

Mrs. Sarah Harrington

Mrs. Audrey Stevens

Mrs. Karen Stokes

Mr. Thomas O'Connor

Mr. Robert Watson



Resume: Superintendent of Schools

Experience: Rochester School Department, Rochester, NH
Superintendent of Schools July 2019 to present
Assistant Superintendent July 2016 to 2019

Epping High School, Epping, NH
Principal July 2014 to 2016

Epping Middle School & Epping High School, Epping, NH
Pn'rtc/pfl/July 2010 to June 2014

Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment
□ Planned and facilitated professional development and faculty, meetings aligned to district goals
Q Supervised and evaluated fifty teachCTS yearly
□ Collaborated on the creation of district-wide departmental competencies
□ Guided the high school and middle school facilities to create grading and reporting guidelines
□ Implemented and supervise a competency-based grading and reporting system at the high school
□ Assisted the central office in the development, implementation, evaluation, and revision of curriculum
□ Co-created a course syllabi and unit plan template for the district
□ Supervised the teaching and learning process and instructional model
□ Assisted in the revision of the teacher evaluation system to better align to the school's instructional
model

□ Participated in theNHDOE's Quality Performance Assessment Network series

Climate and Culture
□ Attended school-sponsored activities and events to support and recognize student achievement
□ Helped align student leadership groups to enhance student choice and voice in their schools
□ Established and support an annual student-led community service day
□ Collaborated with student government and student leadership group on school related issues
□ Participated in student/faculty competitions, trips, clubs, and activities
□ Monitored guidelines for proper and courteous student conduct
□ Supported a respectful learning environment
□ Established building leadership teams to promote a collaborative and democratic leadership model
□ Maintained active and positive relationships with students, teachers, and parents

Management/Finance
□ Responsible for the recruitment of school building personnel
□ Recommend finalist candidates to the Superintendent in all personnel matters
□ Welcome, orient, and train newly hired staff members and assist in their development
□ Inform the Superintendent of events and activities related to the orderly operation of the school
□ Know and follow appropriate New Hampshire Law, school policies, and administrative procedures
relative to personnel, instructional programs, pupil attendance and safety
□ Planned, collaborated with faculty, and approved the master teaching schedule
□ Led our school's decennial NEASC accreditation process - Spring of 2015
□ Participated in the collective bargaining process during contract negotiations
□ Assisted the district office in planning and maintaining the school's operational budget



□ Prepared and submitted the school's budgetary requests, order instructional supplies and equipment,
and monitor the expenditure of funds

Technology/Communication
□ Member of the District Technology Committee
□ Helped revise district policies to allow for the use of social media in the teaching and learning process
□ Promoted and implemented Google Apps for Education in support of the teaching and learning process
□ Created a Principal/Parent Advisory group

Epping Middle School, Epping, NH
Dean ofStudents July 2006 to 2010
D Administered the student discipline process and intervention services
□ Assisted principal with staff orientation, professional development and classroom observations
□ Managed the district's student information system
□ Created student and teacher schedules in PowerSchool
□ Directed NECAP and NWEA testing, administration and data disaggregation
□ Coordinated all 504 plans
□ Served as a liaison with law enforcement, DCYS, and court staff
□ Facilitated faculty learning on curriculum mapping and state assigned software
□ Managed and maintained school website
□ Established and mentored student initiated interested-based clubs and activities

Dover High School, Dover, NH
English Literature Teacher Grades 9-10 September 2003 to 2006
□ Taught five English classes and was Team Leader of the Garrison Freshman Academy
□ Curriculum Committee Liaison during NEASC Accreditation
□ Participated as a member of the Teaching & Learning Team member responsible for Breaking Ranks 11
□ Assisted as a member of the Curriculum Planning and Adoption Council
□ Coached freshman soccer

Xaverian Brothers High School, Westwood, MA
English Literature Teacher Grades 9-11 September 2000 to 2003
□ Prepared and administered daily English literature lessons to four sections of students
□ Participated in campus ministry and community outreach programs
D Coached Soccer and Hockey for three years

Certifications:
D New Hampshire Assistant Superintendent, Principal & English Experienced Educator (5-12)

Professional Memberships 4&Presentations;
D NH School Administrators Association
□ 2017 iNACOL: Fostering Leadership Capacity to Support Competency-Based Learning Systems in

* "Schools: Voices From the Field: Colby, Repucci, Stack
□ 2015 iNACOL Blended and Online Symposium, Orlando, FLA, Leading your school through the transition

\  from Traditional to Competency Education & Policy, Pillars, and Practice: New Hampshire's New
Accountability 2.0 System
□ 2014 Michigan Innovative Schools Conference, Lansing, MI, Philosophy V5. Reality: Making the
Jump to Competency Based Grading



Education: Merrimack College, North Andover, MA University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Bachelor of Arts Master ofEducation
Major: English Literature Major: Administration and Supervision Minor: Secondary Education

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
EdS.

Major: Educational Administration and Supervision i

Skills

□ Instructional leader, effective manager of programs, and communicator with individuals and groups.

Summary:
□ I am an experienced, successful, and dedicated professional educator. I am grounded in the realities
and challenges of the classroom, but guided by a vision for excellence for teachers, students, and
community.



Grant Director Resume

TEAM PLAYER SELF MOTIVATED LEADER VISIONARY

EDUCATION;

Principal Certification, Plymouth State, License: 51311 June 201 1

Master's Education, University of New England July 2004
NH Teaching Certificate (General Special Education) Notre Dame, License: 51311 July 1995
NH Teaching Certificate (Elementary Education), License: 51311 September 1993
English as a Second Language Specialist, University of Toronto July 1991
Primary Education Specialist. York University July 1989
Concurrent BA in Child Studies/Bachelor of Education, Teaching Certificate, Brock University May 1987

EXPERIENCE:

•  Career and Technical Education Director and Co-Wellness Facilitator July2016-Prcsent
•  Rochester School District, Rochester, New Hampshire

o  Oversee 16 CTE programs
o  Financial and operational administration of Perkins and local grant
o  Oversee Critical Incident Response TeanVVouth Mental Health First Aid Instructor

•  NH Communities for Children: Safe Schools/Healthy Students Grant Director - July 2014 - June 2016
Rochester School District, Rochester, New Hampshire

o  Financial and operational administration of a $2,000,000.00 grant at the LEA Level.
o Work collaboratively at the state level with the NH Department of Education, NH Health and Human Services Bureau, Concord and

Laconia LEA's.

•  Early Childhood Learning Center Principal September 2011-July 2014
Barrington School District, Barrington, New Hampshire

o  Oversee 140 students and 30 staff at ECLC; evaluations of teachers and Para-educators; manage and operate the daily running of the
ECLC; oversee budget.

•  Assistant Director of Student Services September 2004-July 2014
Barrington School District, Barrington, New Hampshire

o  Preschool and Child Find Coordinator; Elementary/Middle School Life Skill Coordinator; Out of District Case-manager; LEA;
Coordinate building and district level SPED Meetings; Prepare budgets for Life Skill Programs and Preschool Program; Evaluate staff.

•  (ntegrative Special Education Specialist/ ESOL Teacher and Consultant September 2000 - August 2004
Barrington School District, Barrington, New Hampshire

o  Develop and implement indivndualized programs for students in the Life Skill Program; coordinate community and recreational
activities for students; administer formal/infonnal screening tools; diagnostic tests; consult with outside specialists, parents, teachers,
para-educators.

•  Reading Recovery Teacher September 1997 - June 2000
Barrington School District, Barrington, New Hampshire.

o  Evaluate at risk students in first grade; implement individualized lessons on literacy acquisition; consultation with teachers.

•  Assistant to the Principal/Student Services Coordinator/Resource Teacher February 1994-June 1997
Barrington School District, Barrington. New Hampshire

o  Handle issues when Principal is out of the building
o  Help to coordinate NHElAP; weekly Child Study schedule; special education preschool annual reviews; oversee Medicaid policy and

procedures, HHESSl equipment; coordinate para-educator workshops; administer fonnal/informal screening tools; diagnostic tests;
develop and implement individualized program for students; consult with teachers and para-educators; UNH Host Teacher.

•  Speeial Education Teacher-Grades 6-8; Our Lady of Victory School; Metro Separate School Board, Toronto. Ontario 1992 - 1993

•  Teacher-Our Lady of Victory; Metro Separate School Board, Toronto. Ontario. Grade 2:1987 - 1989 Grade 3; 1989 - 1992

I

LEADERSHIP SKILLS:



EDUCATIONAL LEADERSHIP:

o  Implemented grant activities with 2426 participants over a 2 year period; created a sustainability Plan for SS/HS Grant to include in-
kind support, braiding resources, internal leadership; revised School Cpunselor Job Description; Updated Suicide Protocol: Created
Transgender Policy.

o  Committee Chairperson for "Early Childhood 1-carning Center" school; contributing member of Special Education Philosophy; Grant
Writer; Created Family Resource Center at ECLC; created and wrote program approval for Life Skill Program (K - 8) and On-Track
Program (5 -8).

STUDENT LEARNING & STAFF PROFESSIONAL GROWTH:

o  Implemented Drug Prevention Programs in all school levels: Multi-tiered systems of support; Tier II and Tier III'Interventions,
o  Oficrcd training opportunities to students, staff and families, for a total of 1.263 participants.
o  Prepared workshops for the ECLC and Special,Education Staff (PK -8); oversee all Para-educator professional development in the

district {PK -8); Oversee Preschool Outcome Measurement System (POMS); analyze student progress with staff; oversee Alt 4

process within the district: Completed Teacher and Para-e'ducator evaluations at the ECLC and the Life Skill Program.

MANAGEMENT OF THE ORGANIZATION:

o Manage two million dollar SS/HS grant; $200,000.00 SAP grant and $40,000.00 Of Grant: Contracts; MOA's; Evidence-based
Curriculum, staff.

o Worked closely with Administration and stafl'to implement programs.

o  Create schedules to maximize student learning; oversee preschool and Life Skill budget; Emergency planning; problem solve with
parents and staff.

COLLABORATING WITH FACULTY, COMMUNITY MEMBERS AND RESOURCE;
o  Collaboration with over 30 Rochester Community Agencies; Bridging the Gaps Coalition Representative; YMCA Advisory Board

Representative and State Sub-committees - Mental Health and Drug Prevention Sub-committcc; ESSA Workgroups,
o  Create SS/HS brochures, calendars, notepads, monthly newsletters, manage Face Book, Twitter and website,
o  Barrington Chairperson for Jump Start to Literacy program; Work collaboratively with local mental health center, police, doctors,

specialist, daycare providers

ACTING WITH INTEGRITY, FAIRNESS AND IN AN ETHNICAL MANNER:
o  Follow district policies. Union requests and contractual obligations.

CULTURAL CONTEXT:

o  Diversity and Cultural Awareness Trainer
o  Oversee and manage Mentor Program for new Administrators, Teachers and Para-educators in Barrington School District,
o  State Preschool Mentor,

o  ESOL Consultant.

ADDITIONAL OUALIFICATIONS:

Group Crisis Intervention-Critical Incident Response Team Member April 2016
Diversity and Cultural Competence Trainer January 2016
Youth Mental Health First Aid Trainer January 2015
Safe Schools/Healthy Students GPRA Training August 2014
US Department of Justice Community Relations Serxicc Cultural Professionalism Inclusion and Competency September 2014
Academy for Experienced Special Education Administrators Level 1 2005-2006. Level 11,2007-2008; 2006-2007
New Hampshire School Administrators Association Leadership Institute January-March 2005

AWARDS/RECOGNITION:

•  Grant Writer- Received $200,000.00 SAP Grant; ING Grant and Verizon Grant to create a Family Resource Center.

•  Program Approval Writer- Awarded approval for the SNAPS Program and the On-Track Program Educational Excellence Award (2005-
2006) througli the Barrington School Foundation.

•  Nominated for Teacher of Year (May 2003 and April 2007).
•  Ccrtificateof Excellence-Thc Niagara Chapter of the Canadian College of Teachers, May 1987.

REFERENCES - Upon Request



Kaitlin E. Calculator, MSW

Education

Bridgewater State University School of Social Work May 2016
MS in Social Work (3 9 GPA)

University of New Hampshire May 2010
BS In Social Work

Professional Experience

Rochester Middle School, Rochester NH 03/2018 - Present
Student Assistance Program Coordinator

Help at-rlsk students with various issues through one-on-one and group intervention, most commonly associated with
but not limited to: substance misuse, mental health issues, bullying, dating violence, and peer pressure
Teach the Prevention Education Series focusing on alcohol, tobacco, and other drug prevention to 6^^ graders through
co-facilitation with the School Resource Office (SRC)
Organize monthly school-wide activities with student and staff participation to increase awareness on various issues
Collaborate during monthly meetings with community stakeholders, including but not limited to: Community
Management Team, Prevention Leadership Team, Peer Collaboration Team

Child and Family Services of NH, Dover NH 10/2017 - 02/2018
Case Manager/Family Therapist

Provided case management through a high intensity, multi-faceted service designed to connect at-risk youth to
various therapeutic, social and community-based resources
Developed and implemented a client/family centered treatment plan, focusing on the following objectives:
Individual/family counselling. Respite care. Crisis intervention/stabilization. Substance abuse assessment &
treatment. Parenting education and in-home support, Foster home support. Transitional services for older
adolescents. Job readiness assistance for parents and older adolescents, and Monitoring
Worked to support the family in restoring a safe, stable, positive home environment

McLean Hospital, Middleboro MA 09/2016 - 09/2017
Per Diem Clinical Social Worker

Provided case management to adult patients in the partial hospital program (PHP)
Completed psychosocial assessment and assigned QMS V diagnosis
Facilitated family meetings, individual and group psychotherapy/psychoeducatiqn
Engaged in collaborative treatment planning with an interdisciplinary treatment team (PsyD, RN, psychiatrist, and
psychotherapy group leaders)
Prepared patients for discharge with aftercare supports to support continuity of care

Child and Family Services, Hyannls MA 06/2016 - 09/2017
In-home Family Therapy Clinician

Practiced cultural relevance to support assessment and clinical understanding
Completed Comprehensive Assessment and CANS, and assigned DMS V diagnosis
Completed Risk Assessment and Safety Planning to reduce risk of psychiatric hospitalization
Engaged in collaborative treatment/intervention planning to address youths' mental, behavioral, socioemotional
needs



Facilitated intensive therapeutic intervention, care coordination, and collateral collaboration

Provided support to the family system regarding family relationships, communication, and dynamics

McLean Hospital, Middleboro MA 09/2015-OS/2016
Case Manager (600-hour MSW advanced year internship)

Provided case management to inpatient and partial level patients in collaboration with the hospital social worker and
Interdisciplinary treatment team

Conducted initial interviews and completed psychosocial assessment

Facilitated family meetings and lead psychoeducationai treatment groups

Coordinated aftercare plans upon discharge

Negotiated treatment and authorization with multiple insurance companies

Participated in policy reform at the inpatient level

Sandwich High School, Sandwich MA 04/2015 - 07/2015

Interim Behaviorlst

Facilitated five social skills groups per week

Collected and analyzed student data, based on classroom observations, to.measure progress and comply with lEP; Co-
facilitated quarterly lEP review meetings

Met with students one-on-one for individual academic and socioemotional support

Forestdale School, Sandwich MA 09/2014 - 04/2015
School Social Worker (450 hour MSW first year internship)

Collaborated with the school social worker to provide both lEP-mandated and voluntary services to students

Facilitated small groups and classroom lessons focusing on positive peer interaction, social thinking, and coping skills
Met with students one-on-one for individual academic and socioemotional support

Child and Family Services, Hyannis MA 11/2013-08/2014
Therapeutic Training and Support Clinician

Collaborated with Master's level clinician to assist in implementing therapeutic objectives of the treatment plan to
address a youth's mental, behavioral, and emotional needs; Provided therapeutic support to the family system

Child and Family Services, Hyannis MA 04/2012 - 11/2013
Therapeutic Mentor

Provided community-based, structured, one-to-one, therapeutic support services to diverse youth ages 4-21;
Addressed daily living, interpersonal, coping, and transitional skills

South Bay Mental Health, South Yarmouth MA 10/2011-04/2012
Family Support Provider

Provided in-home, strengths-based therapeutic services to children with serious emotional disturbances in an effort
to prevent hospitalization and to further support the family system

CHANCES, Farmlngton NH 01/2010 • 08/2010
Case Manager (BSW advanced year internship)

Provided case management for adjudicated youth undergoing court diversion in an effort to reduce relapse and
recidivism

Friends In Action, Portsmouth NH 1/2008-03/2008
Mentor (BSWfirst year internship)

Supported individuals with developmental disabilities by organizing and co-facilitating social events



CONTRACTOR NAME: Rochester School District

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kyle Repucci Superintendent of Schools 0 0 0

Michele Halligan-
Foley

Grant Director/Administrator 0 0 0

Kaitlin Calculator Middle School - SAP 100% $71,000.00

Total
•  .

$71,000.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2'*' Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and School Administrative Unit #61 Farmington
School District, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor), a municipality with a place of business at 60
Charles Street, Farmington, NH 03835.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on September 13, 2017, Item (#16), as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideratbn of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Ger>eral Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of thee services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$400,000.

3. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreemerit, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified In Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit 8-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

School Administrative Unit #61 Farmington School District Contractor Initial

RFA-20.18-BDAS-02-STUDE-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All tenms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendn^ent #2
remain In full foroe and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

M\yfw
Date Name;/\YlKLihM^

Title:

School Administrative Unit #81 Fanmlngton School District

Date ' ' NaMeiqWfcSlen
Title: 9*^i\

School Adminislrative Urrit #61 Farminglon School District

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-01-A02 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

SK

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020 -

Date Name;

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

School Administrative Unit #61 Farmington School District

RFA-2018-BDAS-02-STUDE-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Charlie Kino , hereby certify that:
(Name of Ihe elecied Officer of the Corporation/LLC; canrioi be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Farminoton School Board
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 26. 2020 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Ruth Ellen Vauohn. Superintendent (may list more than one person)
(Name atid Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The Farminoton School Board to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation./LLCj

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to,effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the dale of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed ^ve oOTrently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts wltK'tnp^ta'te of New jHanipshire,
all such limitations ar&expressly stated herein. /y'

J6 JiODated:
Signature of ̂ lect
Name:

Title:

cer

Rev. 03/24/20



Primex'
NH Public Ri*l Monogemcnt Exchang* CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire PubJic Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire,

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex', including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), 0 (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Mombar:

Farmington School District
35 School St.

Farmington. NH 03835

Member Number: Company AffordS^g Coverage:

NH Public Risk fvlanagement Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Type of Coverage Effective Date

(mm/ddArvw)

Expiration Date
(mm/dd/ww)

Limits • NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000

General Aggregate $ 5,000,000

□ MadT D Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Combined Single Limit
{Each Acddant)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employaa $2,000,000

Disease - p<xicy lmi

X  1 Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise slated) Deductible;

$1,000

Description; Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' — NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: Stti iDuueit

Date: 4/1/2020 mpurcelKajnhprimex.oroState of.New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



School Administrative Unit Ml
35 School Street

Farmington, NH 03835
Tel. 603-755-2627 Fax 603-755-9334

Ruth Ellen Vaughn Janna Mellon Misty McBrierty Diana DeNitto
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator Dir. of Curriculum & Instruction Dir. ofStudent Services

SAU 61 SCHOOL BOARD 2020-2021

Charlie King, Chair
Joel Chagnon, Vice Chair
Tim Brown

Stan Freeda

Joshua Whitehouse

Ruth Ellen Vaugh, Superintendent

The mission of the Farrhington School District Is to develop and prepare every Individual for
lifelong learning and participation in a global society through quality education.

The Farmington School District Is a supportive learning environment for students, school staff, families,
and the greater community.



MARCY CURTIS, MSVV

EDUCATION

• University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH May 2007
Masters in Social Work

• University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH May 2003
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology

•  Integrated Behavioral Health Certificate (UMass) . 2011
• Trained in Motivationallnterviewing

SOCIAL WORK AND HUMAN SERVICES EXPERIENCE

Community Outreach & Educator January 2014 - 2016

Families First Community Health Center, Portsmouth, NH

•  Provided community outreach and education via presentations regarding the Affordable Care Act
•  Educated individuals and families in regards to the insurance laws, eligibility and enrollment processes

Health Center Social Worker February 2008- January 2014

Families First Community Health Center, Portsmouth, NH

Participated in the development, implementation and evaluation of patient's health care plans
Provided direct services such as crisis management, behavioral modification and parenting education
Worked in collaboration with other area human service providers
Provided education and community outreach to various area agencies, i.e., local high schools
Provided outreach and education on various health management and policy issues to local communities

Adjunct Instructor September
2009-2012

Hesser College, Portsmouth, NH

• Taught undCTgraduate courses in psychology and sociology
•  Participated in college committees and department meetings
• Designed, implemented, and evaluated new lesson plans into the Colleges curriculum

Educational Grant Project Assistant May 2007-February 2008

University of New Hampshire- Institute on Disability, Durham, NH

• Attended to the oversight of daily grant activities.
•  Supervised/mentored other independent facilitators as needed.
•  Independently facilitated monthly team meetings with families.
• Maintained the project's research database.
•  Presented and educated communities in grant findings at various conferences.

Mental Health Case Manager March 2004- April 2005

Community Partners CMHC, Dover, NH

• Worked as part of a Community Support Program team assisting people with mental illnesses in acquiring and
maintaining the skills and resources necessary for management of their mental illness while also working toward
recovery.

• Developed, implemented and monitored individualized service plans.
•  Provided mental illness management services in the community.



Diana B. De Nitto

Work Experience

Farmington School District SAU #61, Farmington, NH
June 2013 to present
Director of Student Services

In collaboration with principals, coordinator, school board, and school staff, responsible for planning and administration of the
special education services in SAU #61. Maintains a system of special education services, capably staffed to provide quality
educational and supportive offerings. Responsible for the recruitment and supervision of special education staff, related services
personnel, and programs. Determines professional development needs and arranges those offerings. Organizes community
presentations regarding issues such as the drug crisis, ADHD, and anxiety. Develops and implements procedures to achieve these
objectives within the financial allotments of local, stale and federal sources. Prepares IDEA grant and special education budget.
Represents SAU 61 at court proceedings and beginning in 2016 assumed role of truancy officer including the filing of CHINS
petitions.

Farmington High School SAU #61, Farmington, NH
November 2013 to June 2013

Special Education Coordinator

Coordinated and supervised the special education programs within the school, attended referral, evaluation and lEP meetings as the
LEA representative or reassigned LEA role to other qualified staff. Oversaw lEP development, authorized final lEPs, and
monitored student. Ensured that all procedures and related timelines were met regarding lEP development, evaluations, and
determination of eligibility. Assisted school administration with placement of special education students in regular education.
Organized, designed, and delivered in-service training for regular education teachers, special education teachers and support staff
regarding special education services, lEP implementation, and other related issues. Attended court proceedings as district
representative for special education students. Participated as a member of the Pupil Assistance Team. Coordinated recruitment,
screening, hiring, training, and assignment of special education personnel. Supcr\'ised and evaluated special education staff in
collaboration with the building principal. Provided case management for a portion of the out of district students. Ensured
compliance as it related to the Medicaid to Schools.Program.

Henry Wilson Memorial School SAU #61, Farmington, NH
August 2010-November 2013
Special Education Teacher / Case Manager

Taught grades four through six in a resource room setting and managed a case load of up to 25 students. Disabilities of the
population range from OHl for anxiety and ADHD to students who are severely impacted by Autism. Modify regular classroom
assignments to allow for greater independence for students with special needs. Collaborate with area community organizations to
fulfill family needs. Collaborate with educational consultants to meet the needs of students on the Autism spectrum. Coordinate
efforts to continue to develop a life skills program.

Prospect Mountain High School SAU #301, Alton, NH
August 2007-June 2010
English teacher grades 9, 10, 11 and summer school

Instructed classes ofjuniors at the general, college preparatory, honors levels and sophomores and freshmen at the general level. In
order to update our courses' literature, previewed novels, filled out purchase orders and created activities and curriculum to support
the new works. Incorporated technology into my classes using PowerPoint and Windows MovieMaker. Co-wrote and secured a
Title 11 D Technology Integration Grant from the state of New Hampshire. The grant award aided the school in purchasing 25 new
Acer notebooks. Summer School Coordinator: recruited students, developed budget, hired summer school staff, interfaced with
parents, school administration and support ser\'ices, taught English. Extra assignments: freshmen class co-advisor, co-editor of the
school's NEASC narrative report, co-writer of the school-wide writing rubric.

Kennett High School SAU #9 Conway, NH



September 2006-June 2007
English teacher grade 9

Instructed heterogeneously grouped ninth grade English students. In addition, had one honors group of ninth graders. All of these
classes were prepared in collaboration with other ninth^de English teachers in a professional learning community (PLC). We
collectively planned and individually taught the following units: personal narrative, To Kill a Mockingbird, literature based essay,
and a multi-genre unit.

Lake Placid Middle / High School Lake Placid, NY
September 2004-June 2005
English teacher grade 11 & AP Literature and Composition

Prepared juniors to take and pass the New York State English Regents. Composed primarily of American literature, juniors were
taught to read various genres of literature with an eye toward e.xtracting common themes. For a research assignment, English 11
students conducted primary research to compose a biography about a relative. AP students read American and world literature in
preparation for the AP Literature e.xam in May. With the aim of discovering a work's meaning students were required to read and
write critically. Attended two AP workshops at Vermont's St. Johnsbury Academy, one in the summer of 2004 for the literature
program and the other in the summer of 2005 for the language program. Wrote the curriculum for the AP Language class in
preparation for the class's introduction to the 2004-2005 schedule.

Plattsburgh High School Plattsburgh, NY
September 2000-June 2004
English teacher grades 9,10 & alternative education

In addition to the curriculum outlined below for Chazy Central, in Plattsburgh also instructed at-risk students (alternative
education). The alternative education students were juniors, in a self-contained setting, preparing to take the New York Slate
Regents exam in English.

/

Chaz>' Central School Chazy, NY
September 1993-June 2000
English teacher grades 10 & 12

Taught heterogeneous groups of students taking New York Stale Regents level courses. Students were instructed how to analyze
and discuss a work of literature in relation to literature terms. Analytical literature based essays, research papers, and creative
genres of writing were stressed. Basic grammar, spelling and vocabulary were also incorporated into the class. Students were
instructed on how to work effectively as individuals and in group settings.

Mountain Lake Public Broadcasting Plattsburgh, NY
September 1989-February 1993
Programming Assistant

Was responsible for the acquisition and booking of programs for on-air presentation. Shot and edited small segments of
promotional videos for on-air use, and ran a studio camera for in-house, local productions. Worked as a reporter for short news
clips, directed an in-studio dramatic piece, recorded voice-overs for local productions, and worked as on-camera talent for fund-
raising drives.

Education

University of New Hampshire at Durham



Special Education Administration Certificate Program
August 2013

Special Education Certification Program
August 2011

Stale University of New York at Plattsburgh

Master ofScience in Teaching
August 1993

Syracuse University Syracuse, NY

S.l. Newhouse School of Public Communications
Bachelor of Science Television Production
May 1989



Ashley Sheedy

EDUCATION

Lesley University, Cambridge, MA

Master of Arts in Clinical Mental Health Counseling; specialization of Art Therapy 2018

Bachelorof Science in Art Therapy 2016

EXPERIENCE

Live Free Recovery Consultants, Newton, NH (Counselor) 2017 - Present

Provide therapeutic support on-site for adolescents through expressive arts groups and individual

sessions, as well as classroom interventions. Activities focus on substance abuse prevention,

coping strategies, interpersonal skills, and developing personal and educational goals.

Dover High School Alternative Program, Dover, NH (Graduate Intern) 2016 - 2017

Provided therapeutic support on-site through expressive arts groups and individual sessions.

_Assisted students and staff in meeting lEP requirements and goals.

Bay Cove: Supported Employment, Charleslown, MA (Graduate Intern) 2015 - 2016

Provided therapeutic support on-site through expressive arts groups and individual sessions.

Activities focused on enhancing daily living skills, such as: health, safety, community

integration, problem-solving, self-regulation, and socialization. Clients experienced a range of

developmental and psychiatric disorders.

Communit}' Art Center, Cambridge, MA (Undergraduate Intern) 2015

Served as a Teacher's Assistant for staff in a variety of art modalities: visual art, dance, theater,

and technology. Supervised during meals, open studio, aftercare, and field trips. Participated in
/

staff meetings regarding overall educational themes, personal goals, and family/child/community

supportive services.

MuckyKids Art Studio, Cambridge, MA (Undergraduate Intern) 2014

Assisted children and caregivers during structured classes and open studio. Maintained a clean

and safe studio space, prepared various art materials, participated in group planning of art

projects and activities.

The Works: Health & Fitness Center, Somersworth, NH (Art Director) 2012 - 2014

Responsible for classes of up to 35 children at once, age range 3 to 15. Organized art projects,

sports, games, and activities focused on a weekly theme. Lifeguard for lessons and field trips.

SKILLS

Certified in CPR, AED, First Aid 2009 - Present

Conversant in American Sign Language



Sarah Holman Gould

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire. Durham. NH
M.Ed Counseling, May, 2012
Honors: CPA 3.9

Bridgewater State College. Bridgewater. MA
B.S. Psychology, May, 2003
Minor: Management
Honors: Dean's List, CPA 3.1

CERTIFICATIONS

K-i2 Guidance Counselor certification

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Jennie D. Blake School. Hill. NH. 2014-present
School Counselor

Counsel students in a variety of settings
Lead the 504 process for all applicable students from referral to implementation and ensuring compliance
Serve as a member of the lEP team for all students referred for Special Education Services
Act as a consultant to classroom teachers

Develop and direct counseling groups on various topics
Communicate regularly with parents and staff regarding needs of students on caseload
Design and implement classroom Guidance curriculum for all classrooms weekly
Collaborated with local Community Mental Health Agency to establish a school based therapy program
Coordinated and executed Career Day for all classrooms

Strafford School. Strafford. NH. March - June. 2016

Interim School Counselor

Integrated seamlessly into the school in the middle of the year
Counseled students in a variety of settings; including Special Education students with behavioral goals
Quickly built relationships with Special Education grade level teams and related service providers in order to
provide responsive and preventative services to all students
Designed and implemented a comprehensive bullying curriculum in fifth and sixth grade classrooms as a
result of an informal social needs assessment

Communicated regularly with families

Nottingham School. Nottingham. NH. 2011-2012 _
Counseling Intern

Independently designed and implemented classroom guidance curriculum for Kindergarten classrooms
•  . Facilitated Child Study Team meetings for individual students referred by classroom teachers
•  . Collaborated with fourth grade teaching team and supervisor to create a grade-wide behavior plan utilizing the

Response to Intervention Model
Developed and directed counseling groups on various topics including attention and anxiety

^  ♦ Counseled individuals and groups of students addressing goals specified on their Individual Education Plans

Belknap-Merrimack Head Start. 2010-2014
Family and Community Services Manager (promoted)

Supervised a team of five Home Visitors: Conducted monthly individual supervisions, facilitated monthly
staff meetings, conducted annual evaluations of staff members and developed and tracked professional
development goals for all staff

•  Built and maintained relationships with local agencies in order to provide seamless service to children and
families

•  Implemented agency recruitment plan! to ensure full enrollment and adequate waitlists at each site



•  Coordinated and conducted quarterly staffing with local Early Intervention program
•  Conducted Child Abuse and Neglect Training for all new staff
•  Regularly monitored Family Service, Education and Disabilities data in ChildPlus for Home Based Program

to ensure compliance with program regulations and Head Start Performance Standards
•  Coached staff in order to build their capacity to elicit meaningful change in the families served

Home Visitor

Supported low income families as they moved toward fulfillment of their parenting goals through weekly
home visits

Worked cooperatively with the local school district to guide families through the lEP process
Educated families on the Positive Behavior Intervention Systems behavior program, so they are able to
support their child's behavior at home
Facilitated weekly Socializations with parents and children
Familiarized families with available community and agency resources
Served on the Self Assessment Team in the areas of Education and Disabilities

Strafford County Head Start. 2007-2010

Infant Teacher

Worked collaboratively with co-teacher to contribute to the overall growth of infants
Communicated with families on a regular basis informally at pick up and formally through established written
procedures
Screened children in all areas of development according to Head Start policy
Provided multiple sensory activities for children daily

School Age Teacher
Developed and implemented developmentally appropriate activities for children ranging from 5-12 years

• ■ Created an atmosphere that balanced individual choice with structure
Ensured that children's social and emotional needs were met

Communicated with parents on a regular basis including informally at pick up and through a monthly
newsletter



Farmington School District

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Diana DeNitto Director of Student Seryices 87,102.90 0 0

Sarah Gould Guidance Counselor 45,021.65' 0 0

Ashely Sheedy SAP Counselor 39,976.88 100 39,976.88
Marcy Curtis Social Worker 75,442.97 100 75,442.97

(social worker is contracted
service)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter refemed to as the "State" or "Department") and Second Start, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation with a place of business at 17 Knight Street Concord NH
03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item #23) as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain ̂ ms specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set foilh herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$577,991.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirely with Exhibit A, Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Exhibit B. Amendment #1. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4. Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Ameridment #2.

5. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Second Start Amendment#2 Contractorlnilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
CoundJ approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

(0

State of New Hampshire
OeDaxtment of Health and Human Services

Date Name: f

\t>0^
Title:

Second Start

Nam» I

Second Start Amendment#2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been revievi^ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020

Date Name:
Title; Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Second Start Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment ̂2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance

therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be Identified as a subrecipient,
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Student Assistance Programming to address prevention

of underage drinking among person aged 12 to 20, and prevention and reduction of
high-risk drinking, prescription dmg misuse including opioids and Illicit opiold among

persons aged 12-to 25 In the school district that have been identified as "high need,
high risk" communities as follows; Merrimack Valley Middle School, Merrimack Valley

High School, Pittsfield Middle School, Pittsfield High School, Concord High School,
Second Start Altemative High School, and Rundlett Middle School.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall utilize an evidence-based screening tool, as approved by the

Department, to screen all students referred for services.

2.2. The Contractor shall refer students to appropriate school-based service or community

providers, as indicated by the Individual screening results.

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the schools to maintain a protocol for referrals to

the appropriate provider.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct Individual Support Sessions for the purpose of crisis

intervention and to determine a student's motivation to participate in Project Success

groups, which are:

2.4.1. Endorsed by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
as an Evidenced-Based prevention program.

2.4.2. Implemented by specially trained student assistance counselors who are
located in schools 2-5 days a week.

2.4.3. Research-based programs that utilize interventions that are effective in
reducing risk factors and enhancing protective factors.

2.5. The Contractor shall conduct Individual Support Sessions, as needed, to assist

students with actions that include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Identifying and resisting social and situational pressures to use substances.

2.5.2. Correcting misperceptions about the prevalence and acceptability of
substance use.

2.5.3. Focusing on the personal consequences of substance use.

Second Start Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.5.4. Learning and practicing resistance and coping skills.

2.5.5. identifying barriers to using the newly developed skills or adopting healthy
attitudes.

2.6. The Contractor shall conduct group sessions that are modeled after Project Success
including, but not limited to:

2.6.1. Newcomers Group.

2.6.2. Children of Substance Abusing Parents Group.

2.6.3. Seniors Group.

2.6.4. Alcohol and other Drug Assessment Education Group.

2.6.5. Sibling Group.

2.6.6. Non-Users Group.

2.6.7. Parents, Peers, and Partying Group.

2.6.8. Users Group.

2.6.9. Users/Children of Substance Abusing Parents Group.

2.6.10. Recovery Group.

2.7. The Contractor shall conduct Group Support Sessions ensuring confidentiality and
boundaries are addressed and clarified during the first session of each group. The
Contractor shall ensure Group Sessions Include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Assisting students with identifying and resisting social and srtuatlonal
pressures to use substances.

2.7.2. Providing information that corrects mlsperceptions relative to the prevalence
and acceptability of substance use.

2.7.3. Providing students an opportunity to focus on the personal consequences of
use.

2.7.4. Teaching and providing opportunities to practice resistance and coping skills.

2.7.5. Identifying barriers to using new skills or adopting healthy attitudes.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide parent education about misuse of prescription drugs and
underage drinking and binge drinking, ensuring topics include, but are not limited to::

2.8.1. How the use of substances such as alcohol or other drugs affect the
adolescent brain.

2.8.2. Youth access to substances.

2.8.3. How perception of parental disapproval impacts drug and alcohol use.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure, parent education provided enhances current parent

education services offered at the school-and local levels.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide prevention education services during transitional years

of the 7^ and 9^ grades, ensuring topics include, but are not limited to:

Second Start Exhibit A Contractor Initiats
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.10.1. Being an adolescent.

2.10.2. Alcohol, tobacco and other drug Information.

2.10.3. Family dynamics and pressures.

2.10.4. Skills for coping with stress and life pressure.

2.11. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) school and/or community

centered environmental strategies each year of funding, which may include utilizing
and enhancing existing groups and programs.

2.12. The Contractor shall enhance sen/ices through the utilization of marketing and media
tools In conjunction with work at the state level and the local level with community
partners, which may include, but Is not limited to:

2.12.1. The Regional Public Health Network.

2.12.2. Drug-Free Coalitions.

2.12.3. Other local organizations.

2.13. The Contractor shall participate in evaluation efforts conducted by the Department in
order to use data to drive continuous quality improvement.

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in

grades 9 through 12 in the spring of 2021.

2.15. The Contractor shall conduct an assessment by comparing current school policies
related to the use of alcohol and other drugs against the Model School Policy that was
developed by the Governor's commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse. Prevention.
Intervention and Treatment.

2.16. The Contractor shall Implement best practices in the school's policies related to the
use of alcohol and other drugs according to the Model School Policy in Section 2.15.

2.17. The Contractor shall participate in all required meetings and trainings which include,
but are not limited to:

2.17.1. Student Assistance Program Community of Practice.

2.17.2. Learning Collaborative Meetings.

2.17.3. Mandatory trainings.
•v

2.17.4. Group Programmatic Consultation for Student Assistance Program
counselors with a Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor with a
Certification as a Prevention Specialist.

2.18. The Contractor shall provide one full-time equivalent staff person to every one-
thousarid (1,000) students. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.18.1. The position is pro-rated if the school serves less than 1,000 students.

2.18.2. The staff person is available a minimum of two (2) days per week if the school
serves less than 1,000 students.

2.18.3. The staff person does not serve more than two buildings or campusey

Second Start Exhibit A Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.19. The Contractor shall allow a Department-approved team to conduct quarterly site

reviews, ensuring the team includes, but is not limited to;

2.19.1. Student Assistance Counselor(s).

2.19.2. Contractor or designee.

2.19.3. Department designees.

2.19.4. Representative of t^e New Hampshire Center for Excellence, if appropriate.

2.20. The Contractor shall ensure the site visit access includes, but is not limited to:

,2.20.1.1. Review of sy^ems of governance.

2.20.1.2. Administration.

2.20.1.3. Data collection and submission.

2.20.1.4. Policies for ensuring student confidentiality.

2.20.1.5. Financial management In order to ensure systems are adequate to
provide the contracted services.

2.21. The Contractor shall take corrective actions, as advised by the review team.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Student Assistance counselor who is a Master
Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor who shall obtain Certified Prevention Specialist

(CPS) status within one (1) year of hire.

^3.2. The Contractor shall maintain the Prevention Specialist Certification status through
• recertification every two (2) years.

3.3. The Contractor shall allocate the appropriate funding for certification or recertification

as a Prevention Specialist for one (1) Student Assistance Counselor within the relevant

fiscal year budget.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit a plan of corrective action to the Department if staffing

requirements are not met.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall enter and complete monthly data reporting in the New Hampshire

Prevention.Web Information Technology System (P-WITS) within twenty (20) working
days of the end of each month.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly expenditure reports by the twentieth (20"^)
business day following the month for reimbursement of costs for contracted services
in the previous month.

4.3. The Contractor shall cooperate with, and answer all questions of, representatives of

the Department conducting any periodic or special review of the performance of the
Contractor or any inspection of the facilities.

Second Start Exhibit a Conlraclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humaii Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

4.4. The Contractor shall provide any periodic or specialty reports as requested by the
Department.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure participants report a decrease in past 30-day use of
alcohol and non-medical prescription drugs including opioids and illicit opioids. .

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure participants report a decrease in binge drinking over the

past 30 days.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure participants report an increase in parental and peer

disapproval of alcohol and non-medical prescription drug misuse.

5.4. The Contractor shall ensure participants report an increase in a perception of risk/harm
of use of alcohol and non-medical prescription drug misuse.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure participants report an increase in family communication
around alcohol and drug misuse.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students In

grades 9 through 12 in the spring of 2021.

6.2. . The Contractor shall provide the results of the assessment in Section 2.15 to the
Department in an electronic format within thirty (30) days of the completion of each
contract year.

7 Statewide Consultation Services

7.1. The Contractor shall provide statewide services to the Department's Student

r  Assistant Program Contractors that includes, but is not limited to:

7.1.1. Programmatic consultation, which Includes, but is not limited to:

7.1.1.1. Delivering monthly regional group programmatic consultation
to identify:

7.1.1.1.1. Programmatic Concerns;

7.1.1.1.2. Gaps in Scope of Services; and

7.1.1.1.3. Proper Licensure.

7.1.1.2. Providing individual consultation, as needed, in person or by
telephone.

7.1.2. Programmatic consultation that includes, but Is not limited to:

7.1.2.1. Delivering monthly regional group programmatic consultation
to address:

7.1.2.1.1. PrografTimatic Concerns

Second Start Exhibit A Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

7.1.2.1.2. Gaps in Scope of Services

7.1.2.1.3. Proper Licensure

7.1.2.2. Providing individual consultation as needed. .

7.1.3. Managing and reinforcing the Department's information Security

Requirements as outlined in Exhibit K.

7.1.4. Submitting quarterly reports developed by the Department that reflect
activities performed in the previous quarter.

Second Start Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Sccrctar>' of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thaiSliCOND START is a New

Hampshire Nonprolil Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 03, 1971. 1 further certify that

all fees and documcnLs required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business 10: 65173

Certificate Number: 0004879169

y
tiu

C*i>

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOr.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretarv of Stale



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Nat Morse, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Second Start

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors,
duly called and held on June 9, 2020, at which a quorum of the Executive Committee were present and voting.

VOTED: That James Snodgrass Executive Director and/or Matt Nadeau President

are duly authorized on behalf of Second Start to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New
Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 9, 2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Nat Morse

Title: Secretary Second Start

Rev. 03/24/20
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Granite State Healthcare

and Human Service Trust

PO Box 4197
Concord, NH 03302-4197

Issue Date 03/30/2020

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This
certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER
Certificate Of Insurance

Bureau of Department of Health and Human
Services, State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Companies Affording Coverage
COMPANY

LETTER A
The Granite State Healthcare And Human

Services Self-Insured Group Trust
COMPANY

LETTER B Midwest Employers Casualty Corp.

This policy is effective on 2/1/2020 12:00 AM, and will expire on 2/1/2021 12:00 AM. This policy will automatically be
renewed unless notified by either party by October 1st of any fund year.

COVERAGES

This is to certify that the Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance has been issued to the insured

named above for the policy period indicated, not withstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract or
other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies
described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies.

Type of
Insurance/Carrier Policy Number

Policy
Effective

Policy
Expiration

LIMITS

Workers' Compensation

& Employer's Liability

The Granite State Healthcare

And Human Services Self-

Insured Group Trust

HCHS20200000250 2/1/202012:00 AM 2/1/202112:00 AM

W/C Statutory Limits

E.L. Each Accident

E.L. Disease rPol Limit

E.L. Disease - Each Emp

$1,000,000

S),000,000

Si,000,000

Excess Insurance

Midwest Employers Casualty Corj EWC009477 2/1/2020 u:oo AM 2/1/202112:00 AM

Workers' Compensation

Employer's Liability

Statutory

$1,000,000

Description of Operations:

Covering operations of the insured during the policy term. Per NH Law, additional insured

and waiver of subrogation are not allowed on workers' comp. COIs.

Q Excluded Officer

MEMBER . KV . ̂

Second Start "

17 Knight Street
Concord, NH 03301

<- • V V

•• • - ~ \ ^

CANCELLATION _ , ^

Should any of the above described policies be'canceled

before.the expiration date thereof,The issuing company'will
endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate

^ holder named to the left, but failure to mail such notice shall

impose no , obligation or liability of any kind upon the
•  company, its agents of'representatives.

-•> i;

03/30/2020

Authorized Representative Date J



AC^Ro' certificate OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

03/30/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. '

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

Eleanor Spinazzola

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

A^RESS' £leanorsplnazzola@eslnsurance.nei
iNSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC *

INSURER A - AmTrust Financial Services, inc.
INSURED

Second Start

17 Knight Street

Concord NH 03301 .

INSURER B :

INSURER C:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2020 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

TOOTsnBir
ms

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY)

POnCY EXP
(MWOO/YYYYI LIMITS.

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOe X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DALUGE TO REMTEO
PREMISES (Ea occufrencel

MEO EXP (Any one person)

TPP123981101 12/31/2019 12/31/2020
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

,VAicui«THi «rruic»r

LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1,000.000

1,000.000

20.000

1,000.000

3,000.000

3,000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea «ccl(l«nt>

1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par penon)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

TPP123981101 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 BODILY INJURY (Pef KcideAt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acckMnU

Uninsured motorist 1:000,000

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

eac'iTocc'urrIi^e' 2.000.000

WUM168853201 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 2.000,000

X RETENTION $ 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
ir yes. descrlbo under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

( t II

□ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, mey be attached 11 more apace It required)

Certificate Holder is an additional Insured (CGL) as required by signed contract with the named Insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Bureau of Department of Health and Human Services.
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Mission Statement

Adopted 6/19/00

Second Start is committed to improving the economic and educational
well being of New Hampshire residents. Our goal is to help people
become more productive workers, family members and community
citizens.

We provide supportive, affordable and effective educational programs
including but not limited to; Adult Basic Education, Job Training and
Career Counseling/Education and Training for al-risk Youth, and Child
Care Services.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To Ihc Board of Directors of

Second Start

Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Second Start (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise thc siatcmcnts of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, arid the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible fbr the preparation and fair presentation of Uicse financial stotcmcnts in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and inaitucnancc of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements arc free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intcmal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cfTcctivcncss
of the cntit>''s internal control. Accordingly, wc express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by managcfncnt, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Wc believe that the au^dit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In .our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Second Start as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for (he years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United Slates of America.

NUMBERS TALK. WE TRANSLATE.



Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The schedules of support and revenues, expenses and changes in net assets on pages 17 and 18 arc
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the informatioji is fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Very truly yours.

MASON + RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants

September 16, 2019



SECOND START

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents i  419,052 $ 237.398

Accounts Receivable 49.637 54.800

Grants Receivable 113,563 198,950

Unconditional Promises to Give 20,000 23,000

Prepaid Expenses 12.286 43.563

Total Current Assets 614.538 557,711

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and Equipment 3,291,348 3,236,950

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,676,433) (1,601,727)

Net Properly and Equipment 1.614,915 1,635,223

TOTAL ASSETS 2.229.453 2.192,934

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LfA BILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

58036 $

188.814

33.545

24.362

171.164

8.310

TOTAL LIABILITIES 280,595 .  203.836

NETASSETS

Net Assets Without Donor Rcsu-lctions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

1,907,814

41,044

1,937,598

51,500

TOTAL NETASSETS 1,948.858 1,989,098

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,229,453 S 2.192,934

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
• Page 3 -



SECOND START

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Cranis from Governmental Agencies
Private Fees

Fees from Govcmmcnial Agencies .
Miscellaneous Income

Contributions

United Way

Interest Incontc

$  1,146.636

922.240

919,901

44,868

16,912
12,034

122

S  1.076.256

915.953

861,902

25,021

8,376
12,159

39

Total Support and Revenue 3.062,713 2.899.706

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Solisfnction of Program Restrictions
Expjraiion of Time Restrictions
Total NdAsxefs Released Front Restrictions

29,956

23,000

•  52,956

20,000

30.000

50,000

TOTAL SUPPORT. REVENUE, AND OTHER NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 3,115.669 2.949,706

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Functional Expenses
Program Services
Management and General
Total Functional Expenses

2,745,743

397,596

3.143,339

2,666,379
372,812

3,039.191

Other Expenses
Loss on Disposal of Property and lEquipmcnt 2,114 -

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSED AND LOSSES 3,145,453 3.039,191

DECREASE IN NETASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (29.784) (89,485)

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Donor Restricted Support and Revenue
Net Assets Released from Restrictions

42,500

(52.9561

.  51,500

(50.000)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR
DONOR RESTRICTIONS (10.456) 1.500

DECREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS (40.240) (87.985)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEA R 1,989,098 2.077.083

NETASSETS.ENDOFYEAR S  1.948.858 $  1.989.098

Ihc Accompanyin}' {^'oics arc on Integral Part of 'Hiese Finoncial Slalcmenis
• Page •) -



SECOND START

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

. Program

Services

Management
and Genera! Fundraising Total

Advertising Expense $  4,774 S  330 $ $  5,104

Conference and Meeting Expenses 30,17! • 30,17!

Depreciation Expense 85,262 38,202 123,464

Dues and Subscriptions 8.192 6,160 .  14,352

Employee Benefits 206.931 25.723 232,654

Information Technology 14,508 6.487 20,995

Instructional Materials 6,741 • 6.741

Insurance Expense 36,463 3,143 39,606

Miscellaneous Expense 9.624 184 9,808

Occupancy Expense 82,803 27,131 109,934

Office Expense 8,558 4,182 12,740

Payroll Taxes 137,913 8.296 156,209

Professional Fees 128,789 15,385 144,174

Salaries and Wages 1.829,843 249.569 2,079,412

Staff Development 8,1 12 • 8,1 12

Stipends and Discounts .  8,767 - 8,767

Supplies Expense 108,531 2,602 - 111,133

Travel Expense 29,761 202 • 29,963

Total Functional Expenses $ 2,745.743 $  397,596 5 $ 3,143,339

77ie Accompanying S'oies arc an Integral I'art oJIIksc, hinancia! Statements
• Page 5 ■



SECOND START

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Management
Services • ant! General Fundraising Total

Advertising Expense $  8,203 $  25 S S  8.228

Conference and Meeting Expenses .  22.030 • 22,030

Depreciation Expense 82,852 38,090 120,942

Dues and Subscriptions I2,48'l 5,162 17,646
Employee Benefits 195,781 23,289 219,070

Information Technology 15,636 7,632 23,268

Instructional Materials 16,021 • 16,021

Insurance Expense 33,607 2,913 36,520

Interest Expense 459 459

Legal Fees • 5,000 5,000

Miscellaneous Expense 11,680 2,107 13,787

Occupancy Expense 90,010 29,789 119,799

OITicc Expense 8,448 3.167 1 1,615

PayrolJ Taxes 128,426 15,105 143,531

Professional Fees 152.928 14.958 167,886

Salaries and Wages 1,748,481 221,633 1,970,114

SialT Development 5,297 172 5,469

Stipends and Discounts 12,877 '  • 12,877

Supplies Expense 92,963 3,268 96,231

Travel Expense 28,655 43 28,698

Total Functional Expenses S 2.666,379 S  372.812 s $3,039,191

77it' Accompanying, Sates arc an Integral Part oJThcsc h'inancial Slaicincnis
■ Page 6



SECOND START

STATEMENTS OF CASI! FLOWS

FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITICS

Decrease in Net Assets $  (40,240) $ (87,985)

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities;
Depreciation Expense 123,464 120,942

Loss on Disiiosal of Property 2,114 -

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable 5,162 19,809

Grants Receivable 85,388 (76,347)

Unconditional Promises to Give 3,000 • 7,000

Prepaid Expenses 31,277 (15,587)

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities;
Accounts Payable 33,874 (29.147)

Accrued Expenses 17,650 17,208

Deferred Revenue 25,235 (6.045)

Total Adjustments 327,164 37.833

NetCash Provided by (Usediri) Operating Activities 286,924 (50.152)

CASH FLOWS FROM INFESTING ACrtyiTIES

Purchase of Property tmd Equipment (105,2701 (31.101)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long-Tcrm Debt
—

(42,339)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 181.654 (i23.592)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 237,398 ,360.990

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year S  419.052 S 237.398

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid During the Year For:

Interest 1

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part ofDte.se Financial Statements
■Page 7 -



SECOND START
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Second Slart (ihc "Organizallon") Is a private nonprofit education corporation which has been in
existence since 1970. Second Start is committed to improving the economic and educational wellbeing
of New Hampshire residents. Its goal is to help people become more productive workers, family
members, and community citizens. Within these opportunities, the Organization offers a variety of
programs, each serving participants in ways that meet their needs..

The programs available at Second Start arc as follows:

Special Education - The Special Education Program was established in 1979 and accounts for the
proceeds of an education program that serves coded special needs students ages 14-21 from local school
districts in the greater Concord area.

Transitional Employment Training Program (TET) - The TET Program was established in 1984 and
accounts for proceeds and expenses used to provide a vocationally oriented program designed to
develop personal and social resppnsibilit>', workforce readiness, and provide cxperieritial training and
courscwork for adolescents.

Alternative High School-The Alternative High School Program was established in 1976 and accounts
for the proceeds and expenses of an alternative academic program for adolescents previously
unsuccessful in public high school programs. Students arc not coded for special education services.

Student Assistance Program (SAP) - Tlic Student Assistance Program is a drug education, prevention,
and early identification program designed for public school students. The Student Assistance Program
was started in 1984 and accounts for the proceeds and expenses associated with the student assistance
services for the local school districts as well as programs for the Second Start Allemalivc High School
and special education students.

Adult Basic Education (ABE) - The Adult Basic Education Program was established in 1971 and
accounts for the proceeds and expenses for providing remedial academic programs for adults from the
most basic levels through preparation for tlic High School Equivalency Exam (HiSET) as well as
English as a second language classes. The program also includes academic and vocational counseling
for students. The program includes fees and expenses for providing HISET Testing services and
administering staff development for ABE/IHSL teachers statewide.

Adult Learner Services (ALS) - Tlie Adult Learner Ser\'ices Program, formerly the Adult Tutorial
Prograrn, was established in 1983 ahd accounts for proceeds and expenses used to help adults increase
their reading and math skills through the aid of volunteer tutors. This program also includes services to
foreign-speaking and refugee students to increase their English skills.

Day Care Program - The Day Care Program was established in 1973 and accounts for proceeds and
expenses used to care for children (ages 6 weeks to 12 years) of the general community while their
parents arc in classes, training programs, or working during the day. This program also includes services
to protective custody referrals from the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.

(Conlinucd on nc.xt page)
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SECOND START
NOTES TO THE FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Welcoming Concord - The Welcoming Concord program was established in 2015 and accounts for
proceeds and expenses used to increase social inclusion and integration of immigrants and refugees in
targeted New Hampshire communities.

B I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding these financial statements. 'ITie financial statements and notes are the representations of
the Organization's management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies confirm to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis ofA ccounling
The Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting in its financial statements. Under this basis,
revenue is recognized when earned rather than when payment is received, and expenses and purchases
of assets are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when the cash is disbursed.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
experienced by the Organi^tion may differ from management's estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash oh hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of private fees due from the daycare program and revenue from school
districts for various programs. Accounts receivable iare stated at the amount m^agcmeni expects to
collect from outstanding balances. Management considers accounts to be delinquent based on the date
of unpaid invoices. Past due receivables arc written off at management's discretion using the direct
write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States because of the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance, method, All accounts arc considered to be collectible. Tlie Organization docs not accrue
interest on past due accounts receivable.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are amounts due for reimbursement from various grant agencies. No allowance is
recorded because all amounts arc expected to be fully reimbursed by the federal and state governments.
Interest is not allowed and is not accrued on any past due grants receivable balances.

(Coniiniicd on nesi page)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UncondUional Pledges Receivable
Unconditional promises to give arc stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management evaluates the collcctabilit>' of customer accounts by considering
factors such as historical experience, the age of tiic promise to give, and current econotnlc conditions
that may afTect a customer's ability to pay. Past due promises to give arc written off at management's
discretion using the direct write off metliod; this is not considered a departure from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stales because the effects of the direct write off method
approximate those of the allowance method. The Organization docs not charge interest on past due
promises to give.

Property and Equipment

The Organization's property and equipment policy is to capitalize individual purchases, renewals and
betterments in excess ofSl.OOO. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals arc charged to expense as
incurred. Periodically, management evaluates property and equipment for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
When items of propchy and equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation
arc removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in the statement of income. These items
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Furniture and Equipment 5 years

Leasehold Improvements 5-30 years

Building 40 years

Net Assets

The Organization reports its net assets as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. Under ASU 2016-14, the Organization is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities accounting to the following.classes:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. Descriptions of the.net asset
categories included in tlic Organization's financial statements are as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions include revenues and expenses and contributions which
arc not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net assets can Ix designated by
the Board of Directors for special projects and expenditures.

Net assets with donor restrictions include contributions for which time restrictions or donor-

imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions arc rcclassificd to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restriction. Net assets with donor restrictions also

include gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and
only the income or portion therefore (excluding gains restricted by state statute) be made
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributions and Promises to Give

Contributions received are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor

rwtrictions depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions arc recognized
when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the Organization. Contributions that arc
restricted by the donor arc reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction
expires in the fiscal year in which the contributions arc recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions arc reported as increases with net assets with donor restrictions depending on the nature
of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses
The costs of providing the Oi^anization's.program and other activities have Ijcen summarized on the
functional basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries and related expenses are allocated to
the various program and supporting services based on actual or estimated time employees spend on
each function. The remaining expenses are specifically allocated whenever practical, and depreciation
is allocated based on space utilization. General administrative expenses arc allocated to each program
based on the direct expenses incurred for each program or estimated usage based on time spcnt on each
function of the stafT.

Donated Materials and Services

Contributed goods and services are reported at their fair value if such goods or services create or
enhance non-financial assets, or would have been purchased if not provided by contribution, and for
services which are provided by individuals possessing specialized skills. A number of volunteers have
made contributions of their time and talent, or contributed goods to develop the Organization's
programs. However, these services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services and,
therefore, are not reflected in the financial statements.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at fair value at the date ofdonation. If donors stipulate
how long the assets must be used, the contributions arc recorded as restricted support. In the absence
of such stipulation, contributions of property and equipment arc recorded as unrestricted support. The
Organization received no cohtributcd property for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.,

Advertising
The Organization conducts rion-direcl response advertising. These costs arc expensed as incurred.
Advertising costs was $5,104 and $8,228 for the year ended Jiinc 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Income Taxes

Management evaluates its tax position in accordance with FASR Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) lA0-\0, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax rctum and also provides guidance on various related matters such as dc-
recognition, interest, penalties, and disclosures required. The Organization's policy is to recognize
interest and penalties related to unrecognized lax benefits as tax expense.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C| CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

On August 18, 2016 FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profil Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of its
financial statements accordingly, applying the changes retrospectively to the comparative period
presented. The new standards change the following aspects of the Organization's financial statements;

•  The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted ticl asset classes have been combined
into a single net asset class called net assets with donor restrictions.

•  The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without donor restrictions.

•  The financial statements include a new disclosure about liquidity and availability of financial
assets (Note K).

The clianges have the following effect on net assets at June 30,2018:

Net Asset Class

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

As Originally
Presented

After Adoption
of ASU 2016-14

$ 1,937,598

51,500

S 1-989.098

1 ,937.598

51.500

b| PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

Building and Impt^ovemenls

Leasehold Improvements

Land

Furniture and Equipment

Total Property and Equipment

Less Acciimulatcd Depreciation

Net.Property and Equipment

2019 2018

S 1,663,349 $ 1,623,459

964,675 948,353

210,000 210,000

453.324 455.138

3,291,348 3,236,950

n.676.4331 (1.601.7271

S-L614.915 5LJL635.223

Depreciation expense was $123,464 and $120,942 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

(Continued on ne.xt page)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO TI-!E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E I LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization maintains a revolving line of credit agreement with a local bank, which provides that
it rnay borrow up to $600,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018. The interest rate formula is based at 0.50%
over the Wall Street Journal prime rate, which was 6.00% and 5.00% at June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The agreement is collatcralized by all business assets of the Organization. The
Organization had no outstanding balance as of June 30,2019 and 2018.

F| corporate ORGANIZATION

The Corporation is a voluntar>' organization under Chapter 292 of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated and therefore has no capital slock.

G | NET ASSETS

The total net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2019 consisted of United Way
funding for 2020 in the amount of $20,000 and other private grants of $21,044. Additionally, there were
$61,010 of Board Designated Funds set aside for capital ajtd other repairs and maintenance projects'at
June 30, 2019.

The total net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of United Way
funding for 2019 in the amount of $23,000 and other private grants of$28,500. Additionally, there were
$85,888 of Board Designated Funds set aside for capital and other repairs and maintenance projects at
June 30, 2018.

H I LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Organization has entered into a long-term lease agreement for propcrt>' located at 450 North State
Street whereby the Organization has use of the building in return for its upkeep and maintenance. The
improvements were capitalized with a five to thirty-year depreciable life. Depreciation expense was
$9,823 and $9,165 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

I  I INCOME TAXES

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 (a) of the IntcriVal Revenue Code
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as an entity
that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for^ deductible
contributions.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START
NOTES. ro THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, management has evaluated its lax position in accordance
with FASB ASC 740-10 and does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been recognized. Additionally,
the Organization did not recognize interest or penalties resulting from tax liabilities associated with
recognizing uncertain lax positions for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The Organization is a non-profit organization, as a result it files a federal Fonn 990, Retitm of
Organization Exemptfrom Income Tax, and a New Hampshire Annual Report. In the normal course of
business, the OrganiMtibn Is subject to examination by taxing authorities. With limited exceptions, the
Organization is no longer subject to federal or Stale of New Hampshire examinations for their federal
Form 990 or New Hampshire Annual Report for the years before 2015.

J I RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan under the Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) for its
employees through a third party. Eligible participants over twenty-one years of age and working more
than 1.000 hours per year may elect to make a voluntary pre-tax salary defcrral cach year, not to exceed
the maximum allowed by law. The Organization may contribute to the employee's retirement fund at
the Board's discretion. There were no contributions paid by the Organization for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018.

K I LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITV OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization's financial assets available within one year from the staicment of financial position
date for general operating expenses arc as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 419,052

Accounts Receivable 49,637

Grants Receivable 113,563

Unconditional Promises to Give 20,000

Prepaid Expenses 12.286

Financial assets, at year end 614,538

Less those unavailable for general expenditures withiti

one year due to:

Donor-imposed restrictions (41,044)

Board designated funds 161.0101

Financial assets available to meet cash.needs for general

expenditures within one year ^12.484

(Coniinucii on next pa^)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Organization has financial assets on hand equal to approximately 2 months of operating expenses,
which totaled approximately $3,145,450 for the year ended June 30, 2019. At times, the Board of
Directors may designate a portion of any operating surplus to its liquidity reserve for I\jture
expenditures. At June 30,2019, there was S61,010 of Board Designated Funds set aside for capital and
other repairs and maintenance projcc^. A significant portion of the Organization's funding is derived
from cost reimbursement grants from federal and stale agencies, therefore, the Organization believes
its liquid financial assets are sufficient to fund unanticipated liquidit>' needs that may arise.
Additionally, the Organization has a line of credit which allows for borrowings up to $600,000.

L I commitments and contingencies

Energy Efficiency fnftiative
In fiscal year 2010, the Organization began an initiative to improve the energy cITicicncy of both 450
North State Street and the 17 Knight Street building in Concord, New Hampshire. The initiative
includes energy improvements, including insulation, new windows, new daycarc ceilings, venlilatipn
and lighting, boiler replacement, conversion to electronic thermostats, and appliance replacement at an
estimated total cost ofS6Sl,265.

Financial support for the energy efficiency initiative included a Community Development Finance
Authority (CDFA) grant of $343,000. Additional funding was obtained from a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $313,265 through the City of Concord, New
Hampshire and $15,000 In cash donations. These grants were completed in 201 1. Both grants are
restricted to the Organization's energy efficiency initiative. Additionally, in the event the Organization
ceases to use the buildings in providing services to low to moderate income populations, both grants
will require repayment of a portion of the proceeds. This contingency continues through 2020 and 2030
for the CDFA and CDBG grants, respectively.

Grant Compliance
The Organization received funds under various grants. Under the terms of the grants the Organization
is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by governing laws and
regulations. Ifexpenditurcs were found not to have been made in compliance with laws and regulations,
the Organization might be required to repay the funds.

Contingencies
In fiscal year 2016, the Count)' of Mcrrimack awarded the Organization a CDDG grant in the amount
of $300,000 to be used for building improvcrncnus at the Garrison facility. The improvements Include
roof replacement, exterior fafade mortar repairs, c.xterior painting, solar panels, and additional
insulation at its 17 Knight Street, Concord, New Hampshire facility. The grant requires that at least
77% of the persons served by the project be low and riiodcrale income. In the event of default, the grant
may require repayment of the funds already distributed. This contingency continues through the year
2036.

(Continued on next page)
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SECOND START

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M| CONCENTRATIONS of risk

The Organization maintains cash balances at a local financial institution that, at times, may exceed the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) secured limit ofSZSO.OOO. At June 30, 2019 and 2018,
the Organization had uninsured balances ofS 191,607 and $40,481, respectively.

N I RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the 20)8 financial statements have been reclassificd to conform to the 2019
presentation. TItcsc reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of previously reported net
assets.

O I SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 16,2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and has not evaluated subsequent events after that date. The
Organization did not identify any subsequent events that would require disclosure in the financial
statements.

- Page 16 ■



SECOi\'D START

SO Il-DLTLK OF SUPPORT AND REVHNUE5. EXPENSES AND CHANGES I>J NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019
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SECOND START

SOninULE OF support AMD revenues. E.VPENSES ANO OlASTiES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE MAR ENDED JUNE 30.2018
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Second Start Board of Directors

January 2020

Matt Nadeau

Tom Palnchaud

Ashley Kinville

Nat Morse

Frank Lemay

Helmut Koch

Will Brunkhorst

Maria del Mar Acebron

Dodd Griffith

Andrew Grosvenor

Caroline Brown

Joseph Shoemaker

Clement Kigugu

Betsey Peabody

CPA

Senior Management Distribution

CPA

Attorney

President Construction

Retired

Software Consultant

Banking

Attorney

Attorney

Attorney

Division Director State of NH

Executive Director Nonprofit

Education Guidance

President

Vice President

Treasurer

Secretary



Aimee Young Tucker

10/16 to Present

04/14 to 10/16

09/15 to 08/16

09/13 to 04/14

6/10 to 9/13

05/08 to 05/10

EMPLOYMENT

Student Assistance Program Counselor

Second Start, Concord NH

Clinical Case Manager Windsor County DUI Treatment Docket

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services

of Southeastern Vermont, Bellows Falls VT

Clinical Mental Health Counselor Intern

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services

of Southeastern Vermont, Bellows Falls VT

AMHAS Case Manager

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services

of Southeastern Vermont, Bellows Falls VT

Child and Familv Case Manager

Health Care and Rehabilitation Services

of Southeastern Vermont, Bellows Falls VT

Social Worker on Med/Sure and Newport Health Center
New London Hospital Association, New London NH

2016

1998

EDUCATION

Master of Science in Clinical Mental Health Counseling,
New England College, Henniker, NH

Bachelor of Science Degree in Social Work,
University of Vermont, Burlington, VT

2016

2014

CERTIFICATION

Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) Certification

AAP Certification

REFERENCES

Available on Request



Amanda E Senecal

EDUCATION:

University of New Hampshire

Master of Social Work

Keene State College

Major: Psychology, Minor: Criminal Justice

LICENSE:

New Hampshire Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

License #: 905

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Second Start

SAP Counselor

Riverbend Counseling Associates
Emergency Ser\'ices Clinician

Chrysalis Recovery Center
Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Concord Metro Treatment Center

Substance Abuse Counselor

Genesis Behavioral Health

2011

Adult Case Manager

INTERNSHIP EXPERIENCE:

Riverbend Counseling Associates
Emergency Sen'ices Clinician

Child and Family Services
Group Home Residential Counselor

Child and Family Services

Street Outreach

August 2011 -May 2014

August 2006-December 2009

August 2015-Current

July 2014-CuiTent

January 2014-2015

August 2010-March

September 2013-May 2014

August 2012-May 2013

August 2009-December 2009

REFERENCES:

Available on Request



Brian Daniels

EXPERIENCE

Second Start Concord, NH
Student Assistance Program Counselor August 2019-present

Avenues Extended Care Concord, NH
Group Facilitator May 2018-August 2019

Famum Center Manchester, NH
NHTIIntem Spring 2017

New Freedom Academy Canterbury, NH
NHTIIntem Fall 2016

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology with a concentration in Addiction Counseling,
Southern Ne\v Hampshii-e University, Manchester, NH

ASSOCIATIONS

CCAR- Coruiecticut Community for Addiction Recovery: Certified Recovery Coach

CCAR- Trained in Etliical Considerations/HIV Trends & Treatment/Suicide Post-Vention

NAADAC- National Association for Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors

REFERENCES

Available on request.



Elizabeth Pellegrini

Work Experience

Second Start

Student Assistance Counselor

July 2018 - Present

Chrysalis Counseling Center and IDCMP

LADC

2015-July2018

Chrysalis Recovery Center

Instructor

201S-July2018

Merrimack County Diversion Center

Case Manager/Instructor

2012-2016

NFI North Contoocook School

Certified Para-professional II

Easter Seals Treatment Facility

Residential Instructor

2012-2013.

2008-2010

Sununu Youth Services Center

Youth Counselor

2004 - 2008

Education

Southern Nev\/ Hampshire University - MS

Franklin Pierce University-SSCr/m/no/^usf/ce

NHTI - Associates Addiction Studies/CriminalJustice

2013

2008

2004

References

Available upon Request



05/75 to Present

09/74 to 05/75

01/72 to 06/73

JAMES B. SNODGRASS

EMPLOYMENT

Executive Director

Second Start, Concord, NH

Resident Counselor

Franklin Pierce College,
Rindge, NH

Teacher

Services for Education and

Rehabilitation in Addiction

1065 University Avenue .
Bronx, NY

1973 to 1974

1967 to 1971

EDUCATION

Antioch Graduate School, 1 Elm Street, Keene,

NH, M. Ed. Administration

Assistant to Director of Admissions and Work

Study Coordinator

Miami University, Oxford, Ohio
B.S. in Education, Major in Political Science

CERTIFICATION

Social Studies Teacher, Grades 7-12, State of New Hampshire

Administration and Supervision, State of New Hampshire

REFERENCES

Available on Request



Kimberly B. Haley, MSW, LADAC

EMPLOYMENT

08/06 to Present

08/88 to 08/06

Student Assistance Program Coordinator

Second Start, Concord NH

Student Assistance Program Counselor

Second Start, Concord, NH

09/97-1998 MSW Intern

NH Catholic Charities, Laconia, NH

09/86-10/87 Youth Counselor at Anna Philbrook Ctr.

NH Department of Health & Human Services,
Division for Children, Youth & Families,
Concord, NH

J

Expires 09/2020
Expires 06/2021

Certifications

Certified Prevention Specialist
New Hampshire Master Licensed Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Counselor (MLADC)

EDUCATION

1986 Bachelor of Science Degree in Home Economics,
Keene State College, Keene, NH

1999 University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Masters in Social Work

Available on Request
REFERENCES



Kimberly Shepard

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Second Start Alternative High School, Concord NH

Student Assistance Program Counselor

Self-Employed, Concord NH

Consultant

Hope for NH Recovery, Manchester NH
Recovery Center Manager Concord/Franklin

Child and Family Services, Concord NH

Family Counselor/Case Manager, May 2015-June 2016
Day Treatment Caseworker. March 2013-May 2015

Work Ready NH Manchester Community College, Manchester NH
Subcontracted Soft Skills Facilitator Position

Second Start Alternative High School, Concord NH

Subcontracted Transitional Coordinator/Choices Teacher

Southern NH Services, Manchester NH

Community Action Manager, Workplace Success Program

Familystrength, Concord NH

Director of Job Readiness

January 2019-present

March 2017-January 2019

August 2016-February 2017

March 2013-June 2016

January 2013-April 2013

August 2012-November 2012

October 2006-August 2009

October 1998-October 2006

EDUCATION

BA Sociology/minor Parent Education, Denver CO

CRSW (Certified Recovery Support Worker)

Metropolitan State College of Denver

Clinical Trainings: Solution Focused Therapy, Clinical Assessment, Service Planning, Motivational
Training, Interviewing Safety Planning, Stages of Change, Addiction Interventions, Dysfunctional Family
Systems, Family Violence/Safety Planning

REFERENCES

Available on Request.



Second Start

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Jim Snodgrass Executiye Director 112320' 2% 2430
Kim Haley Superyisor 79936 98% 78699
Brian Daniels SAP Counselor 47520 20% 9504

Amanda Seneca! SAP Counselor 18720 50% 9360

Aimee Tucker SAP Counselor 48600 20% 9720

Kimberly Shepard SAP Counselor 48960 60% 29376
Liz Pellegrini SAP Counselor 47520 40% 19008



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

Stats of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

I  Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2'^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Seacoast Youth Services, (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation with a place of business at 867 Lafayette Rd
Seabrook. NH 03874. #

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
, on September 20. 2018. (item #23). as amended on July 10, 2019, (item #15) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specked in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph X the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; ar>d

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued deilvety of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$280,000.

3. Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment Section 6, Subsection 6.1 to read:

6.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit B-2. Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

, 5. Add Exhibit B-3. Amendment #2. attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

SascoBst Youth Ser^^ces Amendment #2 Contractor Inltiels —

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-11-A02 Papal of3 Dale 5^2-^



N«w Hampshire Depaitment of Heafth and Human Servlcea
Student Aaalatance Prooram

All terms and oimditiom of the Contract and prior amendments not Incoraietent wtth this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. Thb ameridmerrt shall be effecttve upon the dete of Governor and Executive
Coundl approval.

IN WfTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

0^

State of New HampsMre
: of Heeith endifuman Services

Tltte:

Seaooast Youth Services

Title:

Oeecoatt Youth SwvioM Amonftnent 92

SS-20t»aOA&O2-aTUDe-t1-A02 P«oe2or3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human ̂rvlces
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10,2020 ,

Date ' !|)^^ Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Seacoast YooUi Services Amendment #2
SS-2019-BDAS^2-STUDE-11-A02 Pa8« 3 of 3
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardricr, Secrctaiy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SEACOAST YOUTH

SERVICES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on December 19, 2001.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 393797

CertiCcate Number: 0004885808

%

u;

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 h«-eto set ray hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

cptaey hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of SejCcLO(jJ^ Vgo-Hy
(Corpofatlon/LLC Name)' •

2. The follqv^ ts a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ft- 20aO. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That ^^Lor\£,\j . (may list more than one person)
(Name and Tide of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of to enter Into contracts or agreentents with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments arxl further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirabie or necessary to ef^ the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority romains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authodty. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the pereon(s) listed above currently occupy the
position($) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire;
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:. s-hiho
^^nature of EtectedGOfficer
Name: T/^i^ ^ * a
Title: Chny^p<f'^^i t)

Rev; 03/025/2020



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMmorrryv)

IHib CbkllHuA/cis li^UbDASAMAI ibR OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTinCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTHHCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER- vkiacu

AO^rnONAL INSURED, tha pollcy(la8) must havo ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba endorsad
W SUBRC^TION IS WAIVED. sub)oct to tha tarms and condMorta of tha policy, certain policies may require an andorsamant A statemant on
this cartlflcata does not confer rishts to tha cardflcata holder In llau of euch endorsomant(B)

PttOOUCBt

Tobey & Merrfll Insurance

20 High Street

Hampton NH 03642-2214

nJuS^* Edward Jackson Ml

EK.™. (603)628-7655 (603)926.2135
Aflwess: 4<fwardOtobeymeml].com

SrSURERraiAFFORDtNO COVEKAOe NAICf

INSUR01A: HISCOXUSA
IN8URSD

Seacoest Youth Services Irto

PO Box 1381

Seabrook . nh 03674

INSURES s: ̂ *chnology Insurarwe 42376

INSURER c: ARCH Insurance

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER f:

T

IN

Cl

E

CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
'^0™'"""®TANDING any REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR kAAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AllTHE TERMS
KCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMIT8 SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS l O ALLTHE TERMS,

LTR TYKOFMSURANCe POLICY NUMBER UMHS ]

A

COMUeRCtALOE

"Ol

rCRALUASaJTY

€ 1 1 OCCUR
ability

ME0161312619 10/17/2019 10117/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000,000
ClAAmtAC tiAKlAut lUHtNitu

PRCMISfiSfFeoeaeienMl 1

PERSONN. A ADV INJURY

Q0

d

TUAOQREOAT6 UMITAppues PER:

POLCY n JECT n LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AOOREQATF , 3,000,000

PROOOCTS. COMWOP AGO s

Defense of Licensing a 10,000
AU1rOUOBB-E UASturv coMBMEo cwOt&Uekf-

(EaaeRMenO a

ANT AUlU

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HtREO
AUTOS ONLY

—

SCKEOULEO
AUTOS

NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

BODtLY INJURY (Pw pemn) a

BODILY INJURY (Per Mddeni) a

^NO^RTYDAMAdE
/Per eeddanil a

a

UMBREUAUAB

EXCESS UAB [
OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE a

AOOREQATE s

1 OEO 1 1 RETENTION X

B

IWORXERS COftlPeNSAnON

AND EMPLOYERS'UABtLrry

ANYPROPRIETORffARTN6R«3CCUTIVE j 1
OFFICERMEMBER EXCUJOED?
(Uandttaty In NH) ■ '
nyM,ducA«ifl3dar
DESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS below

HIA TWC3848442 02/27/2020 02/27/2021

^njTE I
E.LEACHACCIOENT , 500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE( 500,000

S 500.000

C 0

NFP0128762-01 10/17/2019 10/17/2020

DESCRIPnON OF OPeRATIONS / t0CAT)0N8 / VewCLEB (ACOR0101, AMWenal Rtmacks Sch^, may U tflMhwl V mm ION* U nquind)

Dept of Heslth & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED P0UCIE8 BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTfCE WILL BE DEUVEREO W
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

Concord

1

NH 03301

AUTHOROED REPftSSENIATIVE

—'

ACORD 25 (2016/03) Th« ACORO namo and loga are rcglatared marks of ACORD



Seacoast Youth Services
Es9iS<a] T«rih « httilie • UaaaiHd

MISSION STATEMENT:

Our mission is to engage youth through positive youth development and evidence-based practices;,

strengthen families through education and therapeutic support; and build communities by fostering

resilience and positive social engagement.



^ r\ Seacoast
Youth
Services

"Whatever It Takes"

April 16,2020

Attention: NIkkl Gauthler

OHHS

This is to confirm that the financial reports attached to this note accurately reflect the financial standing

Sin^tely,

Tina Carey, Chairpg?bn Seacoast Youth Services

Seacoast Youth Se.ices • PO Box 138, • 867 Layfayehe Road ■ SeabrooK NH 03874 • 603-474-3332 ■ www.saacoastyouthse.ices.org



10:21 AM

04/16/20

Accrual Basis

Seacoast Youth Services, Inc

Summary Balance Sheet
As Of December 31,2018

Dec 31,18

ASSETS

Current Assets

Chocidns/Savlngs
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIUTIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Credit Cards

Other Currerrt Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liat>ilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

102.027.86

26.556.60

128.584.46

24,487.71

153,072.17

1,335.32
15,000.00

16.335.32

1,084.24

17,419.56

135.652.61

163,072.17
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Revenues, Gatns and Other Support

Contrlbi/tlons

Program Service Fen

Other Revenue

Seacoast youth Setvtces

Statement of Activities and Changes In Net Assets
Year Ended December 31,2018

$208,614
$749,030

$0

Total Revenues, Oalns and Other Support

Expenses

Prograrh Services

Supporting Services
Management and General

Fund Raking

Total Expenses

Change In Net Assets

Net Assets st the Beginning of the Year

Net Assets at the End of the Year

$957.644

$804,466

$72,993

$21,458

$898:917

$58,727

$63,606

$1U333



10:19 AM Seacoast Youth Services, Inc

04/16/20 Statement of Cash Flows
Januaiy through December 2018

Jan - D«c 18

OPERATING ACnVTTIES
Adjustments to recondie Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

Due from Insurance Compenies *4,996.97
Duo from Patient -4.280.77
Due from Medicald -17,278.66
Credit Card Payable 1,335.32
Accrued Payroll 15,000.00

Net cash provided t>y Operating Activities *10,221.28

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed Assets:Flxed Assets -43.546.71
Fixed As8et8:Accumulated Depreciation 19,059.00

Net cash provided by Investing Actlvltias -24,487.71

FINANCING AcnvrriES

Other Liabilities 1,084.24
Net Assets Unrestricted 135,652.61

Net cash provided by Financing Activities 136,736.85

Net cash Increase for period 102,027.86

Cash at end of period 102,027.86

\

Page 1



SYS Board of Directors 2020

Tina Carey, Chairperson Stephen Cogliano

Catherine Golas, Secretary Manoj Pamidlmukkala

Bill Rothney, Treasurer Rick Aileva, Ed.D.

Jeanne Stem

Corey MacDonaid, Esq.

Kara Anne Rodenhlaer, Ph.D. Sarah Neilsbn

QndyJanik



Hay ley Parsons, M.Ed.

ProfcMlofKri Summary

Experienced professiona] with strong leadership and relationship building skills.

Core QuofWcofloni

Strong tntcrpcrsonsl and relationship building skills

excellent dine martagcmcnt and organizational skiUs

End^xrsiastic and self-motivated

Able to get along with many types of personalities

Expeftence

Scacoast Youth Services I Seabrook, NH

Student Assistance Counselor Augtist 2019'Present
•  Collaborate widi Seabrook Middle Scltool administration, faculty and parents to identify studcnb

that could benefit from SAP program
•  Provide short term individual and group counseling to students
•  Coordinate universal prevention education and activities throughout the school year
•  Collaborate with Seabnx>k Adventure Zone aftenKhool prognun to offer prevcnticm activities

and suppKirt to students.
•  Co-Advisor for Senbrook Middle Sduwl Youth 2 Youth program.

Endurance Behavioral Health I Seabrook, NH
Uterapiat July 2n7-]uly 2019
•  Part of an tnterdisdpUnaiy team that provides mental health treatment for adolescents ages 13 -

20.

•  Padlltatc group ihcmpy sessions
;  • Collaborate with adiool personnel to successfully transition students back to school
•  Develop and maintain dinical records including safety piaru^ treatment pUms and progress notes.
• Maintain ongoing communication with clientt ar>d theh families to discuss trajectory atKl

recommendations for treatment to ensure conlmulty of care.

Ufuvcrsity of New Hampshire I Durham, NH
Event Managc^ Whlttemore Center Arena February 2013-July 2017
•  Responsible for every aspect oi facility operations for both university evenb arxl those contracted

ouisadc of the univ-ersity- concerts, show^ tradcshows, oonvocatiorrs etc
•  Negotiated eontracb and sgreemenb based on the needs of the individual dicnt and maximize '

net rtrvcnae for venue operation
•  Guided clients in preparation Of event by interpreting and explaining contract prorbions and

policies as wdl as uidvcrslty policies
•  Built cooperative relationships between vodous user groups, departments, dtenb and agcndes
• Maximized use of resources induding funding, personnel hidlities ai>d time.
•  Hired, trained, scheduled, supervised, and evaluated 75^ members of the event staff team



Haylcy Parsons, NLEd.

• • •

University of New Hampshire I Durham, NH
Assistant Event Manager-WKlttemore Center Arena Mardi 2011-February 2013

. • Assisted in planning, servicing and supervising events ta>d functions
•  Analyzed challenges, idcntiBed alternative solutions, and projected consequences of proposed

actions arKl implemented recommendations in support of organizational objectives
•  Established and maintained effective working relationships with staff, contractors, municipal

officials and fadlKy users
•  Recruited and trained event staff

•  Created work schedules for event, parking and security sta^ delegated assig;nments and
reviewed performance and results

•  Investigated and resolved event-related complaints in a professional manner ensuring customer
satisfoctiofi

State of New Hampshire I Portsmouth, NH
Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor February 200$-Mardi 2011
•  Provided counseling and guidance to peiscms with disabilities or injuries in order to maximize

emp]o>'inenl potential and personal independence.
• ^>taincd various reports regarding an individual's disability in order to assist in the

determination of eligibility and the development of a rehabilitation plan for eventual
employment

• Determined if diagnostic testing is needed and mode arrangements for lehing.
• MaintolfUKl a documented case file on each client.

• Maintained ongoing communications with area employers in order to make selective job
placcmetU of clients.

•  Determined appropriate rehabilitative services for promoting dient employability.
•  Coi\su}tcd with schools and facilities as part of a team in delivering better services to persons

vrith disabilities.

Winnacunnet High School I Hampton, NH
Educational Associate August 2006-February 2008
•  Paiaeducator for a self-contained program working with emotionally handicapped students.
•  Assisted teadwrs in preparing and organizing moterials to support teaching and learning.
•  Assisted Students in building effective study skills.

•  Utilized a variety of approadics to ntodi/y the learning environment according to each student's
TEP, to help manage Individual student's behavior.

•  Supported the instructional choices made for students.

•  Punctiorwd as o part of a team to fadlitate a positive learning envlronmenl.

Walter Haigh School 1 Salcm, NH
Interim School Counselor February 2006-April 2006
•  Interim school counselor for grades 1-5, for a counsclor on leave.

• Qzinseled students with famlHal, peer, academic and personal issues.

•  Participated In 504 and Student Assistant Team meetings.

•  PuIiUlcd 504 and tEP counseling goals.

Dover Middle School I Dover, NH

Interim School CovmscloT December 200S-February 2006



Hayley Parsoni, M.Ed.

• • ♦

•  3*^ grad« Interim school counselor for a counselor on leave.
•  Devcic^>cd and taught dassroom guidance lessons.

• Counseled students with familial, peer, academic and personal issues.

.• Facilitated S04 and Pupil Assistant Team meetings.

•  Case Managed all 5<'> grade 504 Accommodation Plans

Education

University of New Hampshire
2005 Master of Education in Counseling

University of New Hampshire

2003 Bachelor of Art in Psydiology

CertfficQtions

NH Certified School Counselor.

Referencei

1. Carrie Dudl^

2. Nio5lePoweU_

(

\

i

3. Alison Roy



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

HaVley Parsons Student Assistance Counselor 47,923 80 39,936



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student /^sistance Program

,  State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAD 17 Sanbom Regional School District,
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 17 Danville Rd.,
Kingston, NH 03848.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contract') approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item #23) as amended on June 19, 2019, (ltem#29A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section ̂3. the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$150,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 In the Spring of 2021 and administer a whole school survey with
students In grades 9 through 12 developed by the Department in the Spring of 2020.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15., to read:

2.15. Reserved.

5. Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1., to read:

6.1. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021 and administer a whole school survey with
students in grades 9 through 12 developed by the Department in the Spring of 2020.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

7. Exhibit B, Amendment #1. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6, Subsection
6.1 to read:

6.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified In Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2.

SAU 17 - Sanbom Regional School District Amendment #2 Contractor ImtTa^

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-10-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, hereto and incorporated by reference herein,

9. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2, hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SAU 17 - Sanbom Regional School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-10-A02 Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials A

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

Date /''
Title:

Date

SAU 17 - Sanbom Regional School District

Name: C.
S^ptri nj-en d^n. ̂

SAU 17 - Sanbom Regional School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BOAS-02-STUDE-10 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10. 2020 O
Date ^

Title;. Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive-Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SAD 17-Sanbom Regional School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-10 Page 4 of 4



Sludoni As«Manca Pregram
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Cantractar Hma: 3AU IT Sanbom fUglanil Setieet Otrtrtct

Budgal ftagoM (on Shidani Aaalatsneo Program

BudgatPartod: Ailr t. ZSZtkhina lO.MTI ■

Total PregramCeat Conlneter Saara f Mateli Fundad br PMH3 cool/aa aharaUna Barn CHrael ——-IndSaa TotH,-_— DIroa Total Okacl-x-. - Total i1 ■ Tom SabnrWaoei 431 431 38.44020 28.440.20 2S.MO,aOEmtSoy 28 jag 80
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S&MsM AsttOna Pregram
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Ceniiactor Nane: SAU17 Saitbeni Rtgtensi Seheei Otitrkt
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

, hereby certify that:
{Name of Ihs elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officerof

(C^oration/LLC

2. The foilowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 2Q^C . fet which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting
'  (Date)

VOTED: That — / lT list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) '

Is duly authorized on behalf o^Okhcff^ to enter into contracts or agreements vwth the State
(Name

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the personfs) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
alt such limitations are expressly stated herein. .

Dated: *
Si tare of Bected Officj^

Eie: Cht./n^

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex"
NH Public Risk Monogement Exchong* CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex^) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs, in accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex^ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below, In addition. Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exdusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex', including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Memljer's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member, General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded ̂ m this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the acbons of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Membar: Mamder Number:

Sanborn Regional School District 934
SAU#17

Room 346

17 Danville Road

Kinqston, NH 03848

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624

. Type or Coverage
Effective Date

tmm/dd/ww)

Expiration Date

{mm/ddfvvw)
Limits - NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2020 7/1/2021
Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000

General Aggregate $ 5,000,000

□ Mair □ Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Au
De

tomoblle Liability
ductibie Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Accident)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000

Disease - Policy Limit

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; "tHnVf "SerA

Date: 4/8/2020 mpurcelKSinhprimex.orQState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to; '
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax
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Brian M. Stack

Curricula Vitae

Education

Awards &

Recognitions

Certification &

Licensure

Employment &;
Experience

New England College
C.A.G.S in Educational Leadership: Superintendent Certification (currently
enrolled, anticipated completion May of 2021)

University of Massachusetts, Lowell MA
M.Ed, in Educational Administration (May of 2004)

Boston University, Boston MA
BA in Pure Mathematics (May 2001)
BS in Secondary Mathematics Education (May 2001)

Awards & Recognitions
•  As Principal, School Named Model PLC School by Solution Tree in 2019
•  As Principal, School Received the 2018 NH Excellence in Education Award

•  Received the 2017 New Hampshire Secondary School Principal of the Year
Award from the New Hampshire Association of School Principals

•  Received 2016 Impact Award from the New Hampshire School Library
Media Association

•  Named 201 5 Getting Smart "50+ Learning Leaders at #iNACOLl5"
•  Named the NH High School Principal of the Year "Runner Up" in 2013 by

the NH Association of School Principals
•  Named a Merrimack Valley "40 Under 40" award recipient for 2012 by the

Merrimack Valley Business Magazine / Eagle Tribune Publishing Co.
•  Named the NH Assistant Principal of the Year "Runner Up" in 2010 by the

NH Association of School Principals

Certification & Licensure

•  NH Certificate #86312: Principal and Mathematics Education 7-12, expires 2021.
• MA Certificate #370842: Principal and Mathematics Education 9-12, expires 2019.
• Member of NHASP: New Hampshire Association of School Principals
• Member of NASSP: National Association of Secondary School Principals
• Member of iNACOL: International Association for K-12 Online Learning
• Member of Learning Forward Organization

Principal: Sanborn Regional High School, Kingston, NH. (Jul '10 - Present)
•  Developed and implemented a school-wide personalized learning model

through a competency-based learning system
•  Oversaw the implementation a first-of-its-kind in the nation school

accountability model known as Performance Assessment of Competency
Education (PACE).

• Oversaw the organizational redesign of the high school into small learning
communities focused on student learning

Curricula Vitae Page 1 of 7



Brian M. Stack

Employment
(Continued)

•  Assisted in the development of a new teacher evaluation model for District
•  Responsible for all issues related to the 700 students and 100 staff members
•  Annually developed and monitored the operating budget for the school
•  Implemented several new initiatives designed to improve communication

with all stakeholders

•  Expanded college offerings by fostering partnerships with several area
colleges and universities in Massachusetts and New Hampshire

• Oversaw a complete review of the school's culture and climate in 2012
•  Implemented several credit and competency recover)' programs
•  Served on the Board of Directors for the local commerce exchange in an

effort to build community and school partnerships
•  Implemented a one-to-one technology initiative in the school in 2016.

School Redesign and Personalized Learning Specialist (2011-Present)
Owner / Partner: V&cS School Solutions, LLC, Plaistow NH.

Owner / Partner: Education Design Studios, LLP, Plaistow NH.
•  Experienced worbhop presenter, panelist, and facilitator in countless

conference presentations, webinars, conference calls, and Twitter chats on
school redesign and personalized learning at the state and national level.

•  Consultant/coach for a number of school districts and educational

organizations engaged in personalized learning work from coast to coast.
•  Former Nellie Mae Education Foundation Speaker's Bureau member

(2016-2018).

•  Under contract with Understood.org as a national expert on personalized
learning

•  Participated in polic)' work with the National Center for Learning
Disabilities in Washington DC on personalized learning Aug 20i5-Present.

•  School redesign consultant with 2Rcvolutions from 2013-Present.
• Organizer for multiple personalized learning conferences as large as 400

participants and 50 speakers/worbhop presenters.
• Writer for various publicanons (see below).
•  Speaker at various events (see below).

Asst Principal/Curriculum: Sanborn Reg. HS, Kingston, NH. (Aug *06 - Jun *10)
•  Responsible for all student affairs and discipline issues for 750 students
• Oversaw the development and implementation of all district-wide

curriculum documents and initiatives, focusing specifically in the areas of
math and science

•  Facilitated numerous professional development programs for faculty
including the implementation of Professional Learning Communities
(PLC's) in all district schools

•  Developed and managed budgets for various programs including
curriculum, instruction, assessment, and textbooks

• Orchestrated the teacher recruitment and hiring process for the school and

Curricula Vitne Page 2 of 7



Employment
(Continued)

Brian M. Stack

involved students; staff, and parents in each hiring committee
•  Supervised various curriculum grants for the school district
•  Helped school re-attain full accreditation by NEASC
• Oversaw the annual development and publication of the Student Handbook

and the Program of Studies
•  Chaired the Professional Development Committee for the District
• Oversaw all aspects of the administration of various school-wide

assessments including NECAP, NWEA, and NAEP
• Member of the District Strategic Planning Committee

Mathematics Teacher: Andovcr High School, Andover, MA. (Sep '01 — Aug '06)
• Taught a wide-range of math courses including honors Precalculus, honors

Calculus, Geometr)', Algebra II, Algebra HI, and an SAT prep course
•  Served on numerous school-wide committees, including the School

Improvement Council, the Small Schools Committee, the Advisory Steering
Committee, the Lesson Study Steering Committee, and the NEASC
Accreditation Sub-Committee

•  Served in the role of math department "teacher leader", responsible for the
day-to-day business operations of the department

School Board: Timbcrlanc Regional Schools, Plaistow NH. (Scp '01-Aug '06)
•  Chaired a committee that developed new use-of-facilities policies for the

entire school district

•  Served as the chairperson of the district's curriculum committee
•  Served as the Chairman of the SAU #55 School Board in 2005

•  Participated in numerous discussions involving policy, staff relations, budg
et, fecilities, and curriculum

Writing
Writer For Various Online and Print Educational Publications (2012-Prcscnt)
Please visit my blog at www.srhsprihcipalsblog.blogspot.com

• Coauthor Breaking from Tradition: Shifting to Competency Based
Learning, 2017 by Solution Tree.

•  Author of several blog articles on school redesign that have been published
and shared nationally by iNACOL on their blog
wN'nv.competencyworks.com

•  Author of several NASSP blogs that have been shared nationally.
• Writer of current educational topics for the website MultiBriefs Education
•  Author of a ten-part article series for Heinnemann Publishing of

Portsmouth NH on personalized learning and school redesign published on
their Digital Campus professional development website.

Curricula Vitae Page 3 of7



Brian M. Stack

Speaking
Engagements

«

Speaker/Presenter at the Following Workshops/Conferences

2019

October: INACGL 2019 Symposium, Palm Springs, CA; Workshop; Sharing
Learning From The Trenches: Developing a Successful Competency Based Learning
System in your School or District with CBL Practitioners
October: INACOL 2019 Symposium, Palm Springs, CA; Workshop; You can be
Standards-Based without being Competency-Based but you can't be Competency-
Based without being Standards-Based
September: iNACOL Webinar; Supporting Educators Transitioning to a Compe
tency-Based and Personalized Learning System
August: Competency Based Learning Design Studio; Concord, NH; Keynote;
Competency Based Learning: How, When, and What
August: Competency Based Learning Design Studio; Concord, NH; Workshop;
Grading and Reporting in a Competency Based Learning System
July: Kentucky School Leadership Forum on CBL; Louisville, KY; Several CBL
workshops based on my book. Breaking With Tradition.
June: Michigan School Leadership Forum on CBL; Detroit, MI; Several CBL
workshops based on my book. Breaking With Tradition.
January: New Hampshire Association of School Principals, Workshop, Learning to
Use Social Media Wisely and Well

2018

December: Learning Forward 2018 Annual Conference; Dallas,
TX; Workshop; Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learn
ing in PLCs at Work
October: iNACOL 2018 Symposium; Nashville, TN; Workshop; Leveraging Com
petency Education to Promote Equity for ALL Students by Prioritizing Academic
and Personal Competencies Supported by Effective Leadership, Personalization, and
PLCs.

October: iNACOL 2018 Symposium; Nashville, TN; Pre-Conference Ses
sion; Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs.
at Work

October: NEASC 2018 CPS Showcase; Westford, MA; Fostering an Effective
Competency Based Learning High School
August: School Administrators of Iowa Annual Conference 2018: Creating Capaci
ty; Des Moines, lA; Workshop; Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency
Based Learning in PLCs at Work
July: 2018 Competency Based Learning Design Studio; Manchester, NH; Work
shop; Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs
at Work

July: National Principal's Conference; Chicago IL; Workshop; Breaking With Tra
dition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at Work
June: Michigan School Leadership Forum on CBL; Detroit, MI; Several CBL
workshops based on my book. Breaking With Tradition.
April: Personalized Learning Summit; Portsmouth NH; Keynote; Breaking With
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Brian M. Stack

Speaking
Engagements
(Continued)

2m

Tradition: The Shift to Competenc)' Based Learning in PLCs at Work
April: Blended Learning Conference; Providence Rl; Workshop; Breaking With
Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at Work
March: ASCD Empower 2018 Conference; Boston, MA; Panelist; Grading in a
Personalized Learning Model
March: NESSC School Redesign in Action Conference; Providence RI, Workshop;
Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at
Work

March: SXSW EDU Conference; Austin TX; Panelist; Why I Won't Ask For Help:
Self-Advocacy for All
February: LearnLaunch Institute; Boston MA; Panelist; Lessons From Competency-
Based Education

December: Breaking With Tradition: UNH Personalizing for Students Conference;
Concord NH; Keynote; Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based
Learning in PLCs at Work
November: #LDChat Twitter Chat: Competency Based Learning; Hosted by Un
derstood.org (National Center for Learning Disabilities)
November: #atPLC Twitter Chat: Competent:)' Based Learning; Hosted by Solu
tion Tree

November: EdTech Specialists; Michigan; Webinar; Breaking With Tradition: The
Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at Work
October: iNACOL Symposium; Orlando FL; Workshop; Fostering Leadership Ca
pacity to Support Competency-Based Learning in Systems in Schools: Voices From
the Field

August: Convening on Personalized Learning and Self Advocacy; Washington DC;
Think Tank Participant; Sponsored by the National Center for Learning Disabili
ties

July: Competency Education Design Studio; Nashua NH; Keynote; Breaking With
Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at Work
July: Competency Education Design Studio; Nashua NH; Workshop; Policies,
Structures, and Grading in a Competency-Based Learning System
July: Competency Education Design Studio; Nashua NH; Wprkshop; Communi
cation and Branding
June: Kcene State College Southwest Curriculum Conference; Keenc NH; Breaking
With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at Work
June: 21st Annual SURN Leadership Conference; Williamsburg VA; Workshop;
Breaking With Tradition: The Shift to Competency Based Learning in PLCs at
Work

April: Enriching Students User Conference; Portsmouth NH; Workshop; Genius
Hour

April: Blended Learning Conference; Providence RI; Workshop; Performance Based
Learning Models: Practitioner Perspectives "
February: Nellie Mae Education Foundation Speaker Bureau Training; Boston MA;
Workshop; Building Your Digital Profile: Engaging Your Intended Audience

Curricula Vitae Page 5 of7



Brian M. Slack

Speaking
Engagements
(Continued)

2016

November: #satchat Twitter Chat: Competency Based Learning; Hosted by the
Nellie Mae Education Foundation

July: Understood.org; Washington DC; Weblnar; Common Back to School Mis
takes and How to Avoid Them

July: Sanborn Design Studio; Kingston NH; Workshop; Policies, Structures, and
Grading in a Competency-Based Learning System
June: Keene State College Southwest Curriculum Conference; Keene NH; Imple
menting a Competency Education Model In Your Classroom and School
June: NHASP Annual Principals Conference; Bretton Woods NH; Workshop; In
troduction to PACE: Performance Assessment for Competency Education
May: NH State Board of Education; Concord NH; Presentation; Building a Com
petency Education System
May: Personalized Learning Event for National Center for Learning Disabilities;
Washington DC; Panelist; Personalized Learning: Opportunities and Implications
for Students with Disabilities and English Learners
Aprlh #2Istedchat Twitter Chat: Competency Based Learning; Hosted by the Nel
lie Mae Education Foundation

April: Enriching Students User Conference; Portsmouth NH; Workshop; The Role
of Enriching Students as a Tool to Support a School-Based Competency Based Ed
ucation & Personalization Model

April: #NGLCchat Twitter Chat: Competency Based- Learning; Hosted by Next
Generation Learning Challenges
April: Blended Learning Conference; Providence Rl; Workshop; Personalized
Learning In a Competency Based Education School
March: Transform SC Conference; Columbia SC; Workshop; Competency Based
Education: How One Traditional School District Made the Change
January: NHASP Winter Principal Conference; Meredith NH; Workshop; Intro
duction to PACE: Performance Assessment for Competency Education

Ml
December: Transform SC Conference; Columbia SC; Workshop; Implementing a
Competency Based Approach: Multiple Perspectives from the Sanborn Regional
School District

November: INACOL Symposium; Orlando FL; Workshop; Loading Your School
Through the Transition to Competency Education
July: Sanborn Design Studio; Kingston NH; Workshop; Policies, Structures, and
Grading In a Competency-Based Learning System
July: Sanborn Design Studio; Kingston NH; Workshop; Support Structures for
Students

January: NHASP Winter Principal Conference; Meredith NH; Workshop; Sanborn
Regional School District: An Introduction to Developing a K-I2 Competency-
Based Grading and Reporting System

2014
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Brian M. Stack

Speaking
Engagements
(Continued)

November: iNACOL Symposium; Palm Springs CA; Workshop; Sanborn Regional
School District: How to Support a K-12 Competenc)'-Based Grading and
Reporting System
September: NH Best Practices CIA Conference; Concord NH; Workshop; Sanborn
Regional School District: Competency Grading Practices
June: Bainbridge Consulting Future of Learning Summit; San Diego CA; Panelist;
Competency Based Education
May: Digital Promise League of Innovative Schools CBE Summit; Washington
DC; Webinar; Sanborn Regional School District Competency-Based System
Overview

March: NESSC School Redesign in Action Conference; Norwood MA, Workshop;
Supporting a High School Competency-Based Grading & Reporting System
January: NHASP Winter Principal Conference; Meredith NH; Workshop;
Supporting a K-12 Competency-Based Grading &c Reporting System

201^

August: NH School Library Media Summer Camp; Stratham NH; Workshop;
Transforming Your School Library
June: NHASP Annual Principals Conference; Bretton Woods NH; Workshop;
Through Their Eyes: How the Transformation of our Schools into 21st Century
Models Shapes the Future of Our Students
March: Confederation of Oregon School Administrators Proficiency Conference;
Portland OR; Keynote; Embracing New Practices Student Centered Learning and
Assessment Sound Grading and Reporting
January: Alliance for Excellence Education; Washington DC; Webinar;
Competency Education: The NH Experience, Case Study on Sanborn Regional
High School

2012

October: NEASC Showcase of Model Programs; Boston MA; Workshop; SRHS
Freshman Learning Community

2011

July: Pinnacle Global Scholar User Conference; Chicago IL; Workshop;
Implementing a K-12 Competency-Based Grading and Reporting System: Lessons
Learned in our Journey
June: NHASP Annual Principals Conference; Bretton Woods NH; Workshop;
Implementing a K-12 Competency-Based Grading and Reporting System: Lessons
Learned in our Journey
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Experience
10/17-Present

Sanborn Regional School District

Kingston, NH
Director of Counseling

• Responsible for organizing, directing and supervising the counseling curriculum
for a district of 1600 students

• Directly supervise 3 school counselors, a special education counselor and a
student assistance counselor at the high school

• Coordinated all standardized and state testing including SAT, PSAT and AP
• Evaluated all Special Education case managers, para professionals and counselors
• Prepared and submitted an annual budget
• Facilitated faculty trainings on a variety of topics including mental health issues

and conflict resolution

• Prepared and presented parent nights as well as informational presentations for
the school board

8/09-10/17

Sanborn Regional School District
Kingston, NH
Special Education Guidance Counselor/Career Pathways Coordinator
•  Individual Counseling

o Responsible for developing and providing services to At-Risk students in
grades 9-12 to assist them in meeting/achieving their educational,
vocational, and personal-social needs and goals

o Provided a variety of guidance services to students including scheduling,
monitoring graduation progress, college search advising. Most students

. were first in their family high school graduates or the first in their family
to attend college

• Group Counseling

o Coordinated a social skills group for adolescent girls. Topics included
conflict resolution, image and identity issues, sexuality issues and
bullying.

• Vocational Counseling

o Completed comprehensive vocational assessments
• Career Pathwavs Coordination

o Coordinated school-wide internship program, supervised career pathways
supervisors and placed 25% of our senior class in internships,

o Built community partnerships to support a career speakers bureau as well
as job shadow and internship sites



o Responsible for maintaining all site approvals with the NH Departments of
Labor and Education

• Special Education and Section 504

o Assisted in the development of Individual Education Plans and all
collateral paperwork

3/07-06/09

Epping School District
Epping, NH
Adjustment Counselor/School to Career Coordinator
• Provided individual, group and crisis counseling to high school aged students in a

public school setting
• Coordinated behavioral intervention program using positive intervention services
• Conducted comprehensive vocational testing using a variety of formal and

informal assessments

• Active member of transition planning team for students leaving special education
programming

• Coordinated internship, job' shadow and student aide programs
• Provided behavioral and mental health diagnostic information for faculty and staff

to enhance their classroom management skills
• Building level 504 coordinator
• Building SSD coordinator for SAT/PSAT/AP testing
• Supervised Graduate level intems as well as Behavioral Coaches who ran the in

school suspension program

Brentwood, NH

1997-12/06

Scacoast Learning Collaborative

School Counselor

• Provided individual, group, crisis and family therapy to children and adolescents
(age 6-21) who are placed in an out of district placement educational setting. All
children are identified EH or OHI. Extensive experience in treating major mental
illnesses and assisting staff in providing educational services for these clients

• Developed and implemented School to Work program, recruited job sites and
acted as liaison between school and job site

• Acted as SSD/SAT coordinator for 1^' generation high school graduates
• Assisted in the development of the master schedule as well as coordinated

programming for students to meet a variety of sending schools graduation
requirements

1995-1997

Scacoast Mental Health Center

Portsmouth,NH



Outreach Family Therapist
Responsible for providing home-based family, individual and crisis therapy to a
caseload of 30-40 children aged 2-15 and their families
Coordinated all collateral contacts including courts and Department of Human
Services

Education

2010-2011 Rivier College
School Guidance Certification program

1992-1994 Assumption College
Worcester, MA

MA Counseling Psychology

Certifications Guidance Counselor K-12
Licensed Certified Mental Health Counselor, NH #437
Crisis Prevention Intervention Trainer



Amanda Fgeng^'. MSW

Edocarion Master of Social Work, May 2012
Unis-eiait)' of New Hampshire (UNH), Dxirhain, NH
Adx'aoce Standing Program, Honors, Phi Alpha Social Work Honor
Societx'

B.S. Social Work; May 2011
University of New Hampshire (UNH). Durham, NH
CPA 3.64, Phi Alpha Social >i\'ork Honor Societ}* (Treasarer)

Related Student Assistance Coanselor, Januarx* 2015- Present

Experience Sanborn Re^onal School District
Kingston, NH

«  Provide counseling and support services to at-risk students focusing
on areas such as school issues, family, tiiental health, substance use,
social skills and problem solving

•  Facilitate psycho-education groups regarding substance use, mental
illness, bull>'ing, self-esteem and interpersonal relationship skills

•  IVovide prevention, early identification, intervention and referral
services to students. Identify and assist in obtaining resources in the
area to further address concerns of mental health and substance abuse

•  Participate in school team mee^p and provide consultation on
appropriate interventions to address at-risk students and behaviors

t  Collaborate with other counselors and special education to develop
creative behavior intervention plans and programming for our Home
Base and Sldllz Program

• Develop curriculum and implement direct and universal prev*ention
activities to school and community arotmd mental heahh, substance
use, suicide prevention, bull)ing and healthy relationships

• ' Participate in regional and State coalitions/organizations for healthy
youth in order to build positive relationships and collaboratioxi with
the community

•  Provide io-service and community trainings and education
opportunities

• Assist in writing and implementing policy changes around substance
use, truancy and mental health

• Assist in managing a multi-year grant from the Department of Health
and Htiman Services and the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services;
meeting all performance indicators and expectations

Co- Director/Teacher, Jtma 2018-Preseot

Ssnborn Summer FIRE (Fun, Integrative, Recreational Education)
Program
• Co-facilitate a summer program with a mission statement of

encouraging ai-risk students to establish a strong sense of community
and build a positive support system

• Develop creative lesson plans and community trips focused on skill
building such as interpersonal skills, relationship building, conflict
resolution, coping skill development, and self-advocacy



• CoUaborate uith school coooselors acd ̂ cial education to identify
stodents and student goals

•' Collaborate viith various community agencies to find funding;
resources and support

• Manage a grant for funding, meeting all performance indicators and
e:q}ectations

Steering Committee, Jannan' 2015-Preseut
Southei^ Rockxngham Coalition for Healthy Youth
Rorkingbam County, NH
•  Collaborated with local agencies and school districts to implement

wious community activities that promote awareness and support
beahhy choices for children and families including
reduction/prevention of alcohol, marijuana, prescription and oth»
drug abtxse in NH, mental health wellness and other pre\'ention based
acti\aties.

•  Community outreach through educational evTnts and trainings

Outreach Clinician, May 2013-Sepiember 2017
Outreach and Tracking Case ̂^'orker, August 2012-May 2013
Key Program, Inc.
Salem, NH

•  Provided in-home and ccmmunit)' based therapy and interventions for
at-risk adolescents and families

• Desvloped and implemented comprehensive treatment and safety
plans to address mental health, substance abuse and behavioral needs

•  Performed bio-psycbosocial assessments, and comprehensive
behavioral assessments such as the Child and Adolescent Needs and

Strengths (CANS)
•  Facilitated weekly Dialectical Behavior Therapy.and psycho-

educational grottps at Key's residential programs
•  Provided de-escalation and crisis management, facilitating

coordination with emergency service providers as needed
• Advocated for clients to receive ̂ ^propiiate services and support in

school, court and other social agencies, assisting clients in getting their
needs met .

•  Facilitated and coordinated core plan team meetings to provide vvTap-
around smices, collaborating with various city social service
agencies, schools and therapeutic supports

•  Performed administrative tasks; individual session notes, case

management, authorizations, contact with collaterals
•  Participated tn on-call ader-boma rotation, providing supenision for

paxaprofessionals, case managers and clinical interns

Licenses and • NH DOE Certification- School Social Worker

Certifications • Massachusetts Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker

•  Certified administrator of the Child and Adolescent Needs and

Strengths (CANS) Assessment
•  C?I certified in Nonviolent Crisis Intervention

•  CPR and First Aid certified



Sanborn Regional School District

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from this

Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Brian Stack Principal, SRHS 125, 997.00 None None

Heidi Leavitt Director of

Counseling, SRHS

84, 399.00 None None

Amanda Fuller Outreach Clinician 54, 431.00 50% 27, 215.50



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Serviceis
Student Assistance Program

•  State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAU 52 - Portsmouth School District,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 1 Junkins Ave Suite
402, Portsmouth. NH 03801.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item #23) as amended on June 19. 2019, (Item #29A) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3., the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Lirtiitation, to read:

$280,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15., to read:

2.15. Reserved

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1., to read:

6.1 The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables. Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2 Reserved

7. Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment,, Section 4., Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2 and Exhibit 8-3,
Amendment #2. • . '

SAU 52 Portsmouth School District • Amendment #2 ' Contractor Initiak

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUpE-08-A02 ■ Page 1 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2. attached hereto ad incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2, attached hereto ad incorporated by reference herein.

SAU 52 Portsmouth School District

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-08-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initial,. _

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms arxJ conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment U2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

_^Ao/s-o
Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

o'lShkcQj:?
Date ' Narfie:

Title.

SAU 52 - Portsmouth School District

SAU 52 Portsmouth School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-08-A02 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020 O
Date Na^ne:

Title; Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: - . {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

t  s

SAU 52 Portsmouth School District Amendment #2

SS-2D19-BDAS-02-STUDE-08-A02 Page 4 of 4



Studtrt ProQrim B>2, Amndmf il <2

New Hampshire Oepartmefit of Health ami Human Services

Centnetor nam SAU S2* Pnnamoutft School tMstrtd

Budget neguest for Studcrd Aeoieaoce Pregnm

Butget Period: July 1. 202»<Junc U. 2021

Line im .
"'iTottfProB'yn .CostV^ J-

tUrecU indirect;'' ?T!otsl

"Contractor,Shaie'fjMateh-^- *•

.:r Olreci^— _v. ttodlrect'r • _ 1 Total
"^Ftihded by, OHHS^contract.share _vrr,

J^bectr ~Totalt-„;^l
00

Off
SS5.7l8.00 S 53.718
$14.180.00 14.180

T" " lOirectr"
1.. Total Salary/Wages S84.807.00 84.80700 S29.0e9.00 29.089.00
2. Employee Benefits S21.583.00 21,58300 $7,403.00 7.403,00
3. ConsuRonts

4. Equipmert:

Rental

Repar and Maintenance

Ptrehase/Depredation
S. Supplies:

Educationai

Lab

Pharmacy
Medical

S  .

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Cunent Expertses

Tctepnone
Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marlcetinfl/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training
12. SutKontracts/Aoreements
l5. (^tner (specrfic detaita mandatory):

TOTAL
tndlr«elA*AP«rc*nlelOinel

106.390.00 106,390.00 36,492.00 36.492.00 69,698.00 69,89800

SAU 52 - Portsmoulh Sdnd Dinict

SS-20l»,aOAS,C2-aTUDE.0a.AD2
ExMbii &2, ARwndmeni R
Pipe 1 of 1

Cortli

s.Om



StuOen AMisanc* Pregnrn E;Mbii Amendmetil#

New HimpsMre Oepennwnl of Heiitti and Human Services

CoRlnetor nam* SAU 92-PertmtMith School Olsefet

Budgol Rcquect for Student Asslsianca Prognni

Budget Period: Juty 1.2021-Junt 20.2022

Llne'tteni.

i. Total Sattry/Wafles

2. . Emplovee Benefits
3: CortsuRants

4. Equipment:
RenU

Repair arxl Mainienance

Purohast^Ocpreoatten
5; Supplies:

Educational

' Lao

Pnarmecy.
' Madleal--

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Tetepnofw
Postape

Subscriptions

Audit and

insurance

Legal

Board Er^enses
9. Software

10. Marltetirifl/Communicaiions

11. SiaW Education and TrainiriQ

12.. SuOcootracis/Agreemerits.
13. Other (9pecfic^taiiamafiCa{WY?r

TOTAL

I Aa A Pereent «l DIrecl

:.r ".Total Ptogram'.Cosf,

V—"rOtrecl'.. r.

S86.927.00

S22.123.00

109,050.00

.ilndirecti ■"<!Tptair:_ L :
66.927.00
22.123.00

-S

109.050.00

.jCotttractof.Slaie/.Malch t-.'j"'.""ti'i-
— Olrect'r:^-— Indlrect-

$31,207.00
$7,942.00

39,149.00

'.Total.
31.207.00

7.942JXI

39.149.00

Eunded by.DHHS contract tharey
;Wroci:- — • t: .»lndlreci:

"I

ss.nodo $
14.191.00

00.

->Totji
55.720.00
U.1B1.0Q

69.901.00

&AU 92 • Pcrisneuei Sctiaal OMrt
SS-201»-eOA54D-STUOE-Ofr.AI)2

B-2./Unendment <2
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Stephen Zadrave'c. hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Portsmouth School Department.
(Corporation/LLC Name),

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 14. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Georoe Shea.-Assiistant Superintendent (may list more than one person)

'  (

Is duly authorized on behalf of The Portsmouth School Department to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits oh the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
.Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

I: AoDated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Stephen Zadravec

Title:. Superintendent of Schools

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex"
NH Public Risk Monag«cn«nt Exchange CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex®) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex® is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex® is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex® may extend the same coverage to non-members.
Howrever. any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex®. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included In the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member, General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded Imm this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex®. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate Is issued as a matter of Information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does r>ot amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Perticlpaling Member: Member Number:

Portsmouth School District 950

SAU #52

1 Junkins Avenue

Suite 402

Portsmouth. NH 03801

Company Affording Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Piace

46 Donovan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage Effective Date

(mm/dd/wwi

Expiration Date
fmm/dd/vvYv)

Limits ■ NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Each Occurrence $ 5.000,000

General Aggregate $ 5,000,000

^ .MadT n Occurrence
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

X Ai

De

tomobile Liability
ductibie Comp and Coil: $1,000

Any auto

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Combined Single Limit
(Eacfi Acddsnt)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability
1/1/2020 1/1/2021 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employee $2,000,000 .

Disease - Policy Umit

X Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 . ^Blanket Limit. Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Deductible:

$1,000

Description; Proof of Primex Memtier coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex® - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; Sa4 PvtrtU

Date: 4/17/2020 mDurcell(5)nhDrimex.orQState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex® Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax
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Marci P. Blanchette

Objective
To provide drug and alcohol intervention, prevention, and treatment to adolescents in the high
school setting.

Qualifications
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (LCMHCV Certified Prevention Specialist (CPS), Tom
Fox Award recipient, Student Assistance Counselor for 8 years. Implemented age appropriate
groups dealing, specifically with emotion regulation, social and academic skills development issues,
familial issues, depression, impulse control.. body image, anger management, and drug and alcohol
prevention. Attended various trainings specifically related to ethics, self-care, emergency response
and preparedness, DBT, PTSD. and co-occurring disorders.

Professional Experience

Student Assistance Counselor and-Clinician

Child and Family Services 2005-preseni
Portsmouth High School Portsmouth, NH

+ Designed Student Assistance program specifically related to the needs of Portsmouth high
school

Member of the Community Coalition for Strategic Prevention Framework region
+  Provided assessment and individual counseling to over 600 students with issues related to

academics, interpersonal conflicts, familial issues, and drug and alcohol
prevention/intervention

+  Facilitated groups dealing specifically with adjustment issues, peer pressure, body image, and
conflict resolution

+  Conducted classroom presentations on issues related to the dangers of drug use.
+ Attended several traininjp concentrating on adolescent brain development
+  Facilitated parent/teacher mediation
+  Coordinated and facilitated skills groups focusing on social and academic skills development.

emotion regulation, and interpersonal effectiveness.

+ Attended numerous stalT meetings and trainings specifically related to agency initiatives.
+ . Single handedly developed a week long activities fair during Red Ribbon Week for the whole

student body

+ Attended weekly clinical supervision

Chase Home 2(X)7.2012

Group Facilitator Portsmouth, NH

+  Facilitated eight week group sessions utilizingNevv Hampshire trails Independent
living curriculum

+ Attended staff meetings for service collaboration



Marci Blanchette

Addiction Studies Instructor 2008-2009
Robert J. Lister Academy Portsmouth, NH

+ Developed sixteen week addiction studies curriculum
+ Attended open Iwuse sessions
+  Initiated regular parent contacts regarding student progress
+  Identified students strengths and weaknesses

+ Aided In student future planning

Psychotherapist/Case Manager 2001-2005
Seacoast Menial Health Exeter, NI-T

+  Provided assessment, individual psychotherapy, and training to coinmuiiit>' support program
(CSP) clients.

+ Developed and implement individualized tmatmcnt plans to address activities of daily living.
interpersonal issues, adaptation to change, concentration, task performance and pace.

+ Maintain thorough up-to-date clinical documentation for state funded services.

+ Co-facilitated Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) group.
+ Manage caseload of thirty persistently and chronically mentally ill consum ers.

Supervisor, Youth Reach Specialist 1998-2008
Odyssey House Hampton, NI-1

+  Specialized in teaching students various skills including. Distress Tolerance, Crisis
Intervention, Organizational Techniques, Effective Communication and Parenting skills

+  Provided therapeutic guidance to a group ofthilty"at risk" students
Facilitated groups addressing various issues related specifically to behavior modification

+ Assessed and intervened In crisis situations and medical emergencies
+  Provided individual psychotherapy to students in need of services

Guidance Counselor (Internship) 2001
Greenland Centra) School Greenland,NH

+  Provided Individual counselmg to a Nvidc variety of middle school students, e.g., learning
disabled, athletes, and gifted learners while fulfilling an internship.

+  Facilitated groups for students addressing various issues including depression, impulse
control, anger management, drug and alcohol abuse, and low self-esteem.

+ Coordinated consultaiiorrs wnth parents, faculty, aixi paraprofessionals.



Marci Blanchelle

Youth Advisor 1999-2000
Rockingham Community Action Portsntouth, Nl-I

Worked as counselor for county-wide initiative for "at risk" adolescents.

Developed goals to address homclessness, unemployment and social issues.

Coordinated with community agencies, including F-tealih and Human Services, local welfare
offices and adult education programs.

Proposed challenges to youth for growth opportunities.
Demonstrated communication techniques to promote candid exchange.
Developed support system through consistent . case management.

Training
Ethics

Crisis Management

Dialectical Behavior therapy (DBl)

Reconnecting Youth

Frameworks Suicide Prevention

Prime for Life

Nl-I Trails

Parenting Plus

Project Success

License I Certifications

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (LCMHC)
Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (Pending) (MLADC)
NH Certified Guidance Counselor

Certified Prevention Specialist (CPS)
Prime for Life Certification

Reconnecting Youth Certification
Project Success Certification

Education

Master of Arts Degree: Counseling, University of New Hampshire
Bachelor of Science; Psychology, Plymouth Slate University
Associate of Science: Childhood Development, Plymouth State University



CONTRACTOR NAME - Portsmouth School Department (George Shea)

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract,

Marci Blanchette Student Assistance Counselor 104,305.31 67.1 70,000

>



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAU 64 - Milton School District, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 20 School Street, Milton, NH
03851.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2016, (Item #23) as amended on July 10, 2019, (Item #15) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideratton of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price (imitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$200,000. . "

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14. to read:

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15. to read:

2.15. Reserved.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables. Subsection 6.1. to read:

6.1 The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.2. to read:

6.2 Reserved.

7. Exhibit B, Amendment #1. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified In Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2 and Exhibit B-3.
Amendment #3.

SAU 64 Milton School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initi

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-04-A02 Page1of4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SAD 64 Milton School District

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-04-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials* -

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

66
Title;

SAU 64 Milton School District

'0" ■

'Name:
Title:

SAU 64 Milton School (^strict

SS-2019.BDAS-02.STUDE-04-AC2

Amendment U2

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020

Date

Title Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SAU 64 Milton School District Amendment #2

SS-2019-BDAS-02-STUDE-04-A02 Page 4 of 4
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . SVv'jA-g hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of t\o Sc Vcv\ V v y.Qc"V .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on \'X 20 20 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Narhan rnAr-if* (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire vrill rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New'Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: o6l7ol"i^'X>
SignaturVof Elected Officer
NamenCoog^Vii X . e.

Rev, 03/24/20



Primex'
NH PuUk Ritk Monog«m«m Lichong* CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex'} is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs, in accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of politicai subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex' may exterxl the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex', including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage LiatMlity) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (tjnfair Employment Practices), E (Ern^oyee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex^. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out beiow accurately reflects the
categories of coverage estiabiished for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is Issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Pariicipaling Member: Member Number:

Milton School District 929

SAU #64

20 School Street

Milton, NH 03851

Company Aflorcling Coverage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex®
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage
Effective Date

(mmJdtl/ww)

Expiration Date

(mm/ddfwwi
Limits • NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

X General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

7/1/2019 7/1/2020
Each Occurrence $ 5,000,000

General Aggregate $ 5,000,000

□ MadT D Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Au
De

tomoblie Liability
ductible Comp and Coll: $1,000

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Acddant)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X  Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease - Each EmployM $2,000,000

Disease - Policy Umit

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

.By; TfUtf Sai

Date: 4/13/2020 mpurcelKSlnhDrimex.oraState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to;
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Eari H. Sussman SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT #64 m i/
20 School Street Adltrttt Al^fstan,

Nathan A. Castle Mitton, New Hampshire 03851
Financial Manager Telephone (603) 652-0262 Susan D. Delisle

Fax (603) 652-0250 Financial Clerk

MILTON SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS;

Mr. Douglas Shute, Board Chair

Ms. Margaret Hurd, Board Vice

Mr. Paul Steer, Board Member

Ms. Emily Meehan, Board Member

Ms. Melissa Brown, Board Member

Serving the Children and the Community of Milton New Hampshire



DonnaMaric Currier, LICSW

Education

Umvcrsily ot New Eogbnd
WcsJbrook, Maine
Masicr of SocbJ Work
M^r: SodaJ Work
Aiicnded Sepierabcr 2002 10 May 2004
Degree conferred May 2004

UajTcrsiiy of Now H«R^»hlrc
Durham. New Flampshirc
BachcJor of Ans

Mojor: Bngltsb and Women Studies
AUenilcd August 1994 to December 1997

Experience
Private Practice November 2011 lo Present
Dover, New Hampshire
• Provide psychotherapy in a private office setting
• Complete osscutncnti on individual clients
• Develop treatment plans
• Provide clinicaJ supcrvistot) for individuals eligible for ikensurc

Strafford laming Center August 2012 to June 2013
Field Worker

Somcrsworth. New Hampshire

School Social Worker at Parmingtoo High School
• Provide crisis intervcntioo and counseling to students
• Maintain a caseload of students referred through the guidance department
• Collaborate with the guidance dcpanmem, nurse, adminlstraiian. and teachers regarding the needs of the

students

• Provide resources and rcfcrrnJs to youth and families

North Star Reld Worker

• Provide drop out prevention and engagement services to neferrcd students in participating districu
• Act as a liaison between the rrudcnt/family and school district
• Develop alternative Ictuning plans with student input
• Provide resources and referrals to youth and fatnilics

Strafford County Head SUrt August 2010 to May 2012
Family Advocate
Dover. New Hampshire

• Provide suppon and case management to 34 Head Sttui families in the Dover center
• Join with families In the development nf the Family Purtncrship Agreement
• With direction from the family, identify long and short term gads for the famDy
• Ensuring the child's bcahh, education, and mental health needs arc being met through screens,

assesstnents, aitd referrals
• Provide support and assistance to families in crisis situations
• Provide clinical supervision for staff eligible for social work liccnsttre



Child aodFftfnily Services November 2004 lo July 2010
Family Thcnpisi
Concord, New Hampshire

• Provide family ihcrapy for families referred to Ihc Ituegraied Home-based (IHfl) program
• Complete Family Auessmcflis. Treatment Plans, and Terminarinn Rcpons
• Collaborate with caseworker assigned to the case regarding client and family needs
• Collaborate with JPPO or CPSW referral sourec

• Complete monthly reports and court reports
« Monitor client's development toward goals and report progress to referral source
• Provide MET/CBT 5 to appropriate clicnU with substance abuse issues
• Pager availability from Monday morning until Friday evening
• Ponkipatc with rotating weekend oo-cal) schedule

UalTerslty Hctdlh Care CoanseUng Program September 2003 to May 2004
Ginical [mem

Saco, Maine

• Complete Intake ami Assessments ofcUents
• Provide clinica] therapy to adult clients in the core program
• Provide play therapy for students at the Sanford Head Start
• Maintain proper case notes for my clients in the core program and at Head Start

Health and Edocattoo Services September 2002 to May 2003
Clinical Intern

Ncwburyport, Massachuseiis

• Complete Intake end Assessments of clients
» Provide clinical ihcrapy for those on my case load
• Maintain prc^r case notes for each clicm

Developmental Services of Strafford County January 2000 to August 2002
Assistant Progntnt Coordinator
Dover. New Hampshire

• Assist Coordinator in planning and facilitating day services for 20 devclopmeotaily disabled adults

Professlotml ActlviUes

• Elected to ibe Milton NH School Boaid. March 2012

• Became 0 NH Medicaid Provider. November 2011

• Completed Motivational Interviewing: Advancing the Practice. April 20II
• Bcctune a member of the National Association of Social Workers (NASW). April 2011
• Auendcd Motivational loicrvtewingTreiaing. November 2010
• Completed Motivational Enhancement Therapy and Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Treatment for

Adolescents with substance abase issues training. April 2009
• Earned certification as a School Social Worker in New Hampshire. April 2008
• Volunteer for .Scacoast Outright. November 200S
• Earoed Liccnsurc in the State of New Hampshire as an Indcpendeni Clinical Social Worker. September
0  2007
• Attended 6 hours of Play Therapy and Beyond: Treatment Techniques and Strategics with children and

pre-adolesccnts training, April 2007



Aucnded 8 hours of Sharpening youi Leadership SHlb, a Unlversiiy of New Hampshire Coniinuing
Education Course. November 2001
Aneoded 12 hours of Non-Violent Crisis Inicrvcniioa August 2001
Aoended 8 hour* of Women in Depression, a University of New Hampshire Continuing Education
course. May 2001
Attended 32 hours of Supervision and Leadership training. May 2000



JEREMY A. FRENCH, LICSW

QUALIFICATIONS

Ucensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in the state of New Hampshire
Remarkable abilit)- to build good working relationships with both cliildren and adults. This includes
being able to interact and communicate effectively with both children and adults.
Solid educational bacl^round in psycholog)', social work, and substance use.
Sound knowledge of human behavior and performance; individual differences in abilit)% personalit)',
and interests; learning and motivation.
Certified in Crisis Prevendon Insdaitc (CPI)

Demonstrated finesse under stress and composure while facilitating conflict resolution in crisis
situations. '

EDUCATION

• Keene State College - Kecne, NH - graduated May 2010

bachelor ojArts - Piycholo^ - Clinical Counseling

Associate's decree in Chemical Dependemy

Universit)' of New Hampshire — Manchester, NH — graduated May 2016

Master ofSocial W'^ork

Graduate Certificate - Substance Use Disorders

WORK EXPERIENCE

2016-2019 The Mental Health Center of Gixater Manchester Manchester, NH

Child and Adolescent Clinical Case Manager
m Provide individual and family mental health scr\'ices.

■ Coordinate with school personnel, juvenile probation officers, medical providers, etc. to provide
care for clrildren and families.

■  Implement evidenced based practices to children and families

■ Provide targeted case management ser\-ices ,

■ Received supentision to obtain licensure as a Independent Clinical Social Worker

■ Receiving supcr\*ision to obtain licensure as a Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor
s

2015-2016 New Hampshire Hospital- Anna Philbivok Unit Concord, NH

Psychiatric Social Work Intern
■ Facilitate admission and discharge for new and current patients.

■ Coordinate with outside agencies and school districts to facilitate course of treatment.

■ Lead anger management group for middle school aged patierits.

■ Met with families to plan discharge aftercare plans.

2014-2015 Child and Family Services Manchester, NH

Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program Intern
m IndividuaV substance abuse counseling

■ Co-facilitate group work for co-occurring disorders/managing behauors within a group setting

■ Administrative duties including organizing resources, developing intake questionnaires, scheduling



intake sessions for clients, answer phones, coordinate care with other professionals

2013 — 2015 XY^iUiam]. White hehavioralandConsultingServias, Inc. Ashland, NH

Behavior Support Specialist
■ Provides one-to-one aide support to students

■ Assists in creating and implementing bcha\ioral support plan for students

■ Assists in modif)'ing curriculum for identify students

■  Implement behavioral inter\'entions when smdents are in crisis

2010 — 2013 Wediko Children's Sendees W^mdsor, NH

Residential Counselor I Lead Stajffor the Support 'Team! Evening Support Program Coordinator
■ Residential Counselor for boys ranging in age from 6 to 21 years with emotional and beha\ioral

problems

■ Help dicm develop coping and social skills in residential school setting.

■ Assist in the implementation of Individual Education/'lTierapeutic Programs for students and help
monitor their progress.

■ Provide support for individual students outside the classroom to enable them to fuUy participate in
after school activities and communit)' field trips.

■ Responsible for executing emergency procedures and crisis intcr\'cntion plans throughout the
residential program.

■ Supervise coworkers, monitor their productivit)*, and facilitate training opportuniries for new staff.

2007 — 2008 Hillsboro-Deering Middle School Hillsboro, NH
Clinical Intern! Substitute Teacher

m Provide 1:1 and small group instructional, emotional and behavioral support for students with
disabilities. Co-led and led social skills and mentor groups.

■ Called in as a full time substitute during mentor teacher's absence.

2003 — 2010 Moultonborough Recreation Department Moultonborough, NH
Camp Counselor Community Center Supervisor
■ Planned and lead groups for children ranging from 5-15 years old in recreational activities,

including outdoor games, themed days, and field trips.

■ Supervised Communit)'Center after school program for children ages 8-13.



Milton School District.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

DonnaMarie Currier,
LICSW

Student Councilor 554,797.05 0% $0

Jeremy French,
LICSW

Social Worker $67,352.96 30% 520,000



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Student Assistance Program

This 2"*^ Amendment to the Student Assistance Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2') is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and SAU #9 - Conway School District, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a municipality with a place of business at 176A Main St., N. Conway, NH
03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on September 20, 2018, (Item #23) as amended on June 19,2019. (Item #29A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended and extended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; arid

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: ^

$280,000.

3. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.14., to read;

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students In
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2., Subsection 2.15., to read:

2.15. Reserved

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection 6.1, to read:

6.1 The Contractor shall administer the 2021 Youth Risk Behavior Survey with students in
grades 9 through 12 in the Spring of 2021.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6., Deliverables, Subsection,6.2 to read:

6.2. Reserved

7. Exhibit B, Amendriient #1, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection
4.1 to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #1, Exhibit B-2- B-3, Amendment #2;.

SAD #9 - Conway School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

. 8. Add Exhibit B-2, Ahiendment U2, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2. attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SAU #9 - Conway School District Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Coundl approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date

(q- ?-i30

state of f^w Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

a
Name;

Title:

SAU #9 - Conway School District

Date Name:
Title:

SAU #9 - Conway School DIstrtct Amendmont #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Student Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10, 2020

NjhS ^Date

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SAU #9 - Conway School District Amendment 1t2
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

VOTED: That Ajr-hoM (may list more than one person)
(Name and title of Contract Signatory)

I  /Prr/rm , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporatloi^LC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of (J^nu)nid /0. ±_.
(Corporation/LLC/Name)

2. The foHowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ihjni?. R 20 .>-9/'}. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) ^ .

Kir-linPrI
ract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of/^//>iay enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Narrre of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire v/ill rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the'corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation contractSyY'ith thOySlate of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: lenpn}

CoOH)o^f ̂ cI)&o/

Rev. 03/025/2020



Primex'
NH Public Riik Management Exchonge CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-8,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primex^ is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition. Primex^ may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex'. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Uability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the cun-ent coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Memljer:

SAU 9 Office

176A Main Street

Conway, NH 03818

Mambar Numljar: Company Affording Covarage:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Covaraga Effective Date

{mm/dd/ww}

Expiration Date
(mm/dd/vvw)

Limits • NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

Claints'

Made□ Q Occu

7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Each Occurrertce

General Aggregate

rrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)
Med Exp (Any one person)

$5,000,000
$ 5,000,000

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll; $1,000

7/1/2019 7/1/2020

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Acddent)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

X  I Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Each Employaa $2,000,000

Disease — Policy Umii

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:

$1,000

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; TfCfiy Seti

Date: • 4/22/2020 tdenver@nhprimex.oraState of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phono
603-228-3833 fax



Conway School Board

4/17/2020

Joe Lentini - Chair

Michelle Capazolli - Co Chair

Randy Davidson

Jessica Whitelaw

Joe Mosca

Courtney Burke

Vacant



Kevin L. Carpenter
EDUCATION

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH St. Andrews University,
Masters of Education (Educational Leadership) St. Andrews, Scotland
CAGS (Educational Leadership) Advanced study in
CPA: 3.94^ Biological Sciences and
Bates College, Lewiston, ME British Social Anthropology
Bachelor of Arts , May 2002
Major: Biology Minor: Anthropology
CPA, Major: 3.0/4.0 Minor 3.2/4.0 i

Educational Leadership Coursework

Supervision and Evaluation, Curriculum development and revision, Quantitative and |
Qualitative research, Appreciative Inquiry, Strategic Planning, School Law. Graduate |
work for both CAGS and Master's focused on leadership skills needed at both the j
principal and superintendent levels and included practicums which provided real practical j
projects used in the Berlin School System. National Institute For School Leadership j
certified. 1

I
Biology/Science Coursework & Laboratory Skills !

Cellular & Molecular Biology, Ecology, Evolutionary Biology, Plant Function &
Diversity, Virology, Animal Behavior, Chemistry, Biostatistics. Trained in
Biological/Chemical techniques including gel electrophoresis, litration, chromatograph
(thin-layer and gas), microscopy, spectroscopy, epoxy casting and sectioning,
independent experimental design and completion (primarily ecological).

ADMINISTRATING, TEACHING, and ADVISING EXPERIENCE

Principal, Kennett High School, Conway, NH . ,
Instructional leader for Kennett High School including whole school leadership in
curriculum, collaboration, driving and sustaining change, budget development and
implementation,* supervision and evaluation with a student-centered approach. July 2019-
current.

Principal, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH
Instructional leader for Berlin High School including supervision, evaluation, curriculum
development and implementation, budget development and implementation, student
safety and wellness, driving whole school change and collaboration. July 2015-June
2019

Science Teacher, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH



Instmction in biological sciences, anatomy and physiology, and special education science
classes. Fall 2002- 2015.

Science Department Chair, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH
Work to create yearly science budgets, evaluate science personal, and over see science
curriculum development and implementation. Fall 2004- 2015.

Administrative Council, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH.
Collaboratively work with high school administrators and department chairs to evaluate
school policies and current issues concerning student-education at the high school level.
Fall 2004- current.

Berlin High School Data Team, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH
Work with data team members .from all departments to analyze student achievement and
data as well as look at where gaps in the data exist and means to get useful valid data.
Spring 2011-current

Berlin District Leadership Team, Berlin School District, Berlin, NH
Work with district administrators, principals, educators, and community members to
analyze data and trends within the district and promote positive communication between
all schools in SAU 3.

Fall 2013-current

NEAS&C Standard Chair, Berlin High School, Berlin, NH
Served as the chair for the re-accreditation process for Standard VII. Worked
collaboratively with staff to collect data and generate afeport on BHS's complianceWith
the standard.

Professional Development Committee, Berlin Public Schools, Berlin, NH
Work to. develop and implement professional development of all staff members in the
Berlin School District to provide improved student learning and teacher qualification.
Served as professional development chair and head of rewriting district masterplan in
second turn on committee. January 2004-2005; 2006-2012

Stand Up Androscoggin Valley (SUAV), Berlin/Gorham, NH
Founding member and first committee chair for coalition working to increase prevention,
treatment, and recovery in the community for people of all ages with a strong emphasis
on youth substance prevention and education. Fall 2015-current

PERSONAL

Skilled in Microsoft Office, Windows, Google Suite of Applications, PowerSchool,
MMS, Naviance, Enriching Students, Android, and apple devices. Strong love of sports;
many years of volunteering as a soccer and t-ball/baseball coach in the Mount.
Washington Valley. Enjoy participating in sports and outdoor activities such as golf.



hiking, mountain biking. Traveled throughout much of the United Kingdom and Europe
including France, Italy, and Switzerland.

References available upon request.



Kevin Richard

Current position

• Superintendent of SAU 9.

Education '

GAGS I MAY 2016 | PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY

• Superintendent Certification (0001)

MASTERS IN EDUCATION | MAY 2002 | PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY

• Major: Education Administration and Supervision k-12 Certification

•  Principal (0003) & Vocational Director (0053)

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE I MAY 1990 I KEENE STATE COLLEGE

• Major; Education

• Certification in Technolog>' Education (1000) & Vocational Drafting (1713)

Experience

SUPERINTENDENT | SAU 9 | 2015-PRESENT

• Professional School Superintendent with experience in leading schools to greater success. Responsible for the oversight
of facilities, auTiculum development, budget development, student progress, program evaluation and adherence to
policy and educational standards.

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT I SAU 9 I JANUARY 2014-JUNE 30.2015

• Policy development, curriculum development, budget development, professional development.

•  Implementation of "workshop model" instructional practice.

• Revised k-6 literacy to align with Calkins Units of Study

• Developed a weekly administrative pic with a focus on supervision and evaluation.

PRINCIPAL! KENNETT MIDDLE SCHOOL! 2004-JUNE 30.2014

•  Sole administrator for grades 7 & 8 with a student population of 300 students.

• Duties include: evaluation of 33 teaching staff, 15 support staff, 6 custodians, as well as budget development, student
discipline, personnel hiring, and scheduling.

• Facilitated an $11 million dollar renovation of the middle school.

MWV CAREER AND TECHNICAL CENTER DIRECTOR! KENNETT HIGH SCHOOL! 2000-2004

• Administrator in charge of ten C & T programs.

• Duties include: evaluation of 25 staff members, budget development and implementation, coordination of adult
education, grant writing and implementation.

TEACHER! KENNETT HIGH SCHOOL} 1990-2000

• Duties include teaching: architectural drafting, CADD, engineering.technology, woodworking, and math



AWARDS & ACTIVIITIES

2013 NHASP Middle School Principal of the Year

2007-08 Schooi to Career Respect Gets Respect Award

2003-04 Vice President of NH Vocational Directors Organization

Chief Negotiator for Conway Education Association

Past advisor to Kennett Junior High Outing Club

Kenncct Aiunini Association Tcaclicr of the Year

I

Three times named to Who's Wiio Among America's Teachers

REFERENCES Updated references provided upon request.
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Marissa L. Maitland

Employment

adapt Campton, NH/Conway, NH
Student Assistance Provider Oct 2018-Present

As an SAP I use game play and experiential learning to connect and strategize with teens and
their families. By teaching teens the social emotional skills required to become confident, healthy,
communicators and decision makers the frequency and severity of substance use among the adolescents
in our community decreases.
Memorial Hospital North Conway, NH

Emergency Department Registration Oct 201-7-Oct 2018
As the emergency department registration clerk it was my job to discern the needs of patients

quickly and efficiently, connect them with the appropriate care, and to collect the necessary data as
accurately as possible in as little time as possible. This required me to have rock-solid communication,
prioritization, observation, and organizational skills. Meticulous record keeping was an integral part
of the job as was my unfiappability in the face of challenge or crisis.
New Hampshire Institute of Art Manchester, New Hampshire
Admissions Counselor Jan 2016-Jun 2017

In this unique role, I conducted in office and on-the-road outreach to organizations, teachers,
and students at the high school (and occasionally college) level. My role on-campus was to assess and
declare the college readiness of applicants within my assigned territory; my role off campus was to
teach students first hand so they could get a feel for the programs we offered. This meant forming
concrete relationships with students, families, school representatives, teachers, and supporting
organizations quickly and in a variety of settings and districts. Being able to authentically connect with
students and faculty was paramount to my success in this position. Also important was my ability to
connect individuals with the appropriate resources which often meant anticipating their needs before
they were able to. I was also responsible for designing and implementing the processes by which we
evaluated prospective students and coordination of our student workers.

Best Buy Manchester, New Hampshire
Mobile Lead, Sales Consultant—Gold Certified Aug 2012-Jan 2016
Apple Master

As a lead and sales consultant it was my job to educate, lead, and inspire both customers and
employees in sales while meeting projected sales goals. It was my job to ask open-ended questions to
determine a solution, or solutions, which would result in the most positive customer experience
possible. I under\\'ent extensive trainings to be able to educate my team on how to conduct themselves
ethically and in accordance with the company's values while protecting sensitive customer information.

YWCA Manchester, New Hampshire
Advocate 2015

I served as a specially trained and certified advocate for the YWCA where I provided 24-hour
confidential crisis counseling to individuals subject to domestic or sexual violence over the phone and
in person. I received my certification of confidentiality from the state of New Hampshire pursuant to
NH RSA 1730:1 as it pertains to cases of partner violence. I was responsible for documenting and
submitting all client services performed by me over the phone and in-hospital during each 12 hour shift
and connecting clients with resources when and where appropriate depending on their needs.



New Hampshire Institute of Art Manchester, New Hampshire
Computer Lab Monitor 2009-2011
Painting Department Assistant
Library Assistant

1 took on many roles at NHIA to assist and educate my peers as well as provide clerical support
for staff/faculty. I received training pertinent to Mac OS, large format printers, numerous softwares
used throughout campus (including Adobe Suite and Office), library science, and campus
communication.

Education

New Hampshire Institute of Art
Bachelor of Fine Arts 2014

Manchester Community College

Credits in: American Sign Language, Psychology, Abnormal Psychology, Human Growth and
Development, Art History, Anatomy and Physiology

Additional Skills and Training

Advanced graduate of world-renowned success coach Jack Canfield's Breakthrough To Success
(BTS)—this training is world renowned and aimed at teaching 100% accountability, goal setting,
networking, forging authentic connection, and pursuing a life of passion, with the objective of reaching
one's full potential.

Pathways to Success for Youth team member—this organization's goal is to bring the BTS
training to young adults and teens.

Original Experience and Job Hunt School Graduate and Ambassador—a program for recent
grads on navigating the world ofjob hunting and finding career fulfillment.

Trained in RJM Essentials—this training was specifically created for educators and those
working in schools as a tool to aid students with emotional awareness and healthy trauma response.

Title IX certification which I acquired during my employment at NHIA. This paired with my
experience with the YWCA make me better equipped to deal with the disclosure of incidences of
sexual harassment, violence, or inequality in a school setting.

Volunteer for Kennett Middle School—as a volunteer at KMS I have assisted in facilitating
team building activities with middle school students.



Nicki Chewning
Multi-faceted professional educator with leadership experience and expertise in working with at-risk

youth, excited for the opportunity to grow organizational capacity to meet the complex needs of the

at-risk population to promote achievement in school and beyond.

^ Excellent interpersonal and communication skills

^ Educational Baard. and Outdoor Leadership experience

^ Proven ability to build and maintain positive relationships with diverse entities
^ Conflict resolution and crisis intervention skills

^ Grant writing and reporting experience

^ Hold State of Maine Professional Educator Certification. NH Associate Principal Intern License.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Student Advocate &E Eagle Academy Director I Kennecc High.School. NH I 2018 - present
•  Member of the Senior Administrotive Team and Leadership Team

•. Director of the Adult Diploma Program Eagle Academy (EA) which serves students

•  16+ who hove not been successful in traditional high school and those 18+ who hove not yet earned a

high school diploma

•  Responsible for all hiring of teachers, curriculum decisions, grant and budget management for EA

•  Redesigned program of studies, increased the number of career tech classes by 50%, and partnered with

outside entities to offer innovative courses including Introduction to Aviation

•  Work to meet the needs of all KHS students, specifically those at risk due to truancy, homelessness, court

involvement, and DHHS intervention

•  Oversee the WYLD Program - a class for at-risk student with a an emphasis on social-emotional skills, healthy

habits and positive coping strategies •

•  Administrator for the Social Studies department responsible for the observation and evaluation of,

department faculty

Director, Outlook Program I Frveburg Academy, Fweburg ME I 2012 - present
•  Designed and implemented innovative experiential-based alternative education program to serve at-risk

9"^ and 10"^ grade students from which greater than 90% of participants have graduated or ore still

attending school

•  Developed collaborative relationships with individuals, corhmunity sponsors, businesses, non-profits and

grant makers to advance program outcomes

•  Procured grant funding and sponsorship which increased the program budget by 40%

•  Planned and tracked all expenditures and managed budget responsibly

.  • Created and taught sustainability-themed interdisciplinary curriculum with a strong emphasis on social-

emotional skills and growth

•  Founded long-term community service partnership with local animal shelter

•  Worked closely with healthcare providers, mental health professionals, case managers, juvenile justice

professionals and state agencies to effectively meet the complex needs of students and families

Imaging Technologist I Memorial Hospital. North Conwav NH I 2004 - 2016
•  Multi-modality technologist proficient in CT and X-ray

•  Provided exceptional care to patients suffering from trauma, acute illness and chronic disease

•  Worked in partnership with providers from many specialties including: neurology, orthopedics, family

practice, hospitalist, ER. general surgery, urology, OB etc.

•  Received numerous recognitions from staff and administration for being o collaborative team member and

for providing outstanding patient care

Biology Teacher I Fn^eburg Academy, Fn^eburg ME I 2000 - 2004



•  Taught complex scientific content to students in o clear, epsy-to-understand manner

•  Designed and delivered curriculum with creative and engaging presentation

•  Implemented service-learning project in conjunction with The Nature Conservancy

Ed Tech III I Fn'eburg Academy, Fn^ebiirg ME I 1999 - 2QQQ
•  Worked with students with multi-handicapping disabilities to learn functional life skills

Team Building Facilitator [Venture Up. PhoenLx.AZl 1997 - 1998
•  Led team building initiatives and trainings for corporate clients in AZ. TX, FL

•  Coached clients to improve communication and trust, build collaboration, and solve problems creatively

Regional Sales Representative I Charm Sciences. Maiden MAI 1996 -1997
•  Northeast Territory ME. NH. VT, MA. CT, NY, NJ. Rl

•  Generated leads and developed new customers while growing soles of existing accounts by 15%

•  Anticipated clients need and provided exceptionol customer sen/ice

•  Accounts included Ocean Spray (MA), Jordan's Meats (ME) and IFF (NJ)

EDUCATION

C.A.S., Educaciona]Leadership
University of Southern Maine, 33 credits completed
Concentration in Students At Risk

A/.5., Educadon
University of Southern Maine. 2003

B.S., Animal Science: Bioscience <Sr Technology
University of New Hampshire, 1996

A.S., Radiography
Southern Maine Community College. 2006

OTHER EXPERIENCE

Execudve Board Member, Harvest Hills Animal Shelter (2016'present)
.  • Engage in strategic planning for sustoinobility and long term financial health of the shelter that cares for

homeless dogs and cats from 19 communities
•  Responsibly manage $500k yearly operating budget
•  Develop marketing campaigns to optimize participation in various fundraising events

Advisory Board Member, Alternadve Educadon Associadon of Maine. (2013-2018)
•  Designed and launched Facebook page to disseminate information about the group and promote

relevant learning opportunities

•  Planned and hosted meetings for the organization and members

Member, Human Centered Design Alternative Educadon Think Tank (2014-2015)
•  Collaborated with education leaders, alternative educators and business leaders throughout Maine to

examine the effects of proficiency-based diplomas on alternative students and to propose a valid
assessment for these students to the Maine Department of Education and Maine Legislature

•  Co-authored white paper on committee findings that was presented to the Maine Commissioner of
Education and the Maine Legislature

Chapter Director, Trips for Kids (2013- 2018)



•  Founded independent chapter of national non-profit organization
•  Advanced organization's mission by leading trips to get kids riding bikes

•  Procured yearly grants to purchase and maintain bikes and equipment

•  Taught inte.nsive three-week introduction to mountain biking course each spring

Farm DeveJopmenc Commiccee Member, Fryeburg Academy (2014-2018)
•  . Researched school farm programs, permaculture and farm planning consultants, and grants
•  Contributed to creation of a vision for sustainable school farm and agricultural learning center

•  Co-wrote USDA Farm to School Implementation Grant 2016

• - Attended Maine Farm to Institution Summit - Fall 2016

North west Earth Institute '5 Menu for the Future Spring 2017
•  Participated in six week discussion-based course about the current and future state of our food system

•  Established relationships with others interested in promoting sustainable consumer practices and those
involved in the local food movement in the community

NAMI Suicide Prevention Gatekeeper training and certification 2014

CP! Annual Conference: Creating Positive Climates for Youth 2016,2017

Healthy Oxford Hills Community Health Coalition Volunteer (2009-2010)

Fryeburg Academy Head Mountain Bike Coach (2000-2004)

Registered Maine Whitewater Rafting Guide (1996-1998)
Northern Outdoors, ME, Blue Sky Whitewater, AZ



Rick Biche

Experience Principal, A. Crosby Kennett Middle School, Conway, NH 2016-Present
•  Sole administrator for grades 7 & 8 with a student population 300
•  Duties include: Evaluation of 31 teaching staff, 15 support staff, 6 custodian; hiring;

scheduling; budget development; and student discipline
•  Align school based goals with the goals of the SAU and Conway School District

Strategic Plan
•  Facilitate SAU 9 Science Curriculum Committee, set vision, goals and provide

monitoring of progress for grades K-12

Director, Mount Washington Valley Career & Technical Center, North
Conway, NH 2014-2016
•  Provide vision and leadership for twelve CTE programs in transition to a student-led

competency based assessment and reporting system.
•  Provide instructional leadership and lead professional development for all Kennett

High School staff.
•  Facilitate development and implementation of the Conway School District Strategic

Plan technology focus area.

•  Collaborate to develop and take action towards district level vision and goals
through the district administrative team.

Science Teacher, A. Crosby Kennett Middle School, Conway, NH. 2002-
2014

•  Responsible for daily planning, instruction and assessment of approximately 100
grade 7-8 students in General Science and as part of an interdisciplinary team.

•  Frequent participation on various hiring committees including all science personnel,
school technicians and the Middle School Principal.

•  Managed the Science Department budget since 2003

Team Leader, A. Crosby Kennett Middle School, 2003-2011
•  Served on a collaborative leadership team to develop and enact a vision for

continuous school improvement. .x
•  Served on the renovation committee 2004-2007 and responsible for key decisions

on technology purchase, asset retention, classroom layout and science laboratory
design.

Science Curriculum Leader, Conway School District, 2004-Present
■  • Transitioned Kennett Middle School Science from a textbook only curriculum to a

. content rich, technology integrated constructivist curriculum.
•  Organized and aligned Science Curriculum, Grades K-12
•  Leading a district-wide transition to the Next Generation Science Standards with a

focus on appropriate elementary and middle level implementation.

Kennett Middle School Technology Facilitator, 2002-2014
•  Initialed KMS Technology Committee leading to our school-wide technology

integration plan and development of 21 century curriculum.
•  Led a curriculum team to develop grades K-8 technology literacy curriculum and

portfolio plan.
•  Provided leadership, planning, and professional development for the school wide

transition to Google Apps for Education, and Online Gradebooks.
Math and Science Teacher, Acacia Middle School, Hemct, CA 2000-2002
•  Responsible for daily planning, instruction, and assessment in math and science



Rick Biche

Education Teaching Education Program, University of Denver, 1999.
M.S. Zoology, University of New Hampshire, 1995
B.A. Biology, Magna Cum Laude, University of Southern Maine, 1992

Grants and

Fellowships

Professional

Memberships

•  Granite State Leadership Academy Fellow 2016-2019, NHSAA
•  Managed Carl D. Perkins grant for the MWVCTC 2014-2016 (S75,000-S85,000

annually)

•  Branding and Marketing CTE, Perkins Incentive Grant 2016 ($9600)
•  Improving Access to Quality Data, Perkins Incentive Gram 2015 ($7000)
•  NSF-RET Supplements on the MELNHE grant and Hubbard Brook LTER,

supporting professional development for all SAU 9 middle school teachers and one
high school teacher, 2012-2014 (2@ $15,000 each)

•  Hubbard Brook RET Fellowship, 2012
•  Technology Leadership Cohort Training (2007-2009), NH DOE, Five teachers, one

principal from four district schools. ($4,000)
•  NH DOE, Title IID, Technology Integration at the Conway School District,

Laptops, handheld probeware and professional development for 5 classrooms
($61,000)

•  MWV School to Career Extemship, Mount Washington Observatory 2003

ASCD

NHASP

Association for Middle Level Educators

National Science Teachers Association



STUDENT-FOCUSED EDUCATOR, FACILITATOR & DIRECTOR-

has used experiential education & recreation as a vehicle to empower the students he works with to lead and promote the
benefits ofa healthy lifestyle."

-Wendy Hamill, Guidance Director Laconia Public School
INTRODUCTION

Dynamic and passionate professional who has a proven and accomplished record working with students of all
ages; over twenty successful years utilizing his knowledge and skills to meet the unique needs of the
community from a wide range of backgrounds. Has introduced a number of Innovative programs, clubs and
intramural sports based on needs assessments such as Project D.J. "For Youth By Youth," Youth Leadership
Through Adventure (an adventure approach to teaching service learning and leadership skills, outing club
intramural tennis, golf, and basketball.

EDUCATION & CERTinCATIONS

1996-2001 Plymouth State College , Plymouth, NH
Bachelor of Science, Physical Education
Option: Recreation Leadership
Minor: Health

Certified Project SUCCESS Coordinator
Certified Prime for Life Instructor

Certified Life Skills Instructor

Certified Project Venture Facilitator

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

jProfile Middle High School 2013-2019.
project SUCCESS Counselor.

Implementing the Evidence Based Intervention Project SUCCESS at Profile Public School with fidelity.

.D.A.P.T., Inc. Lincoln, NF^ ^ I 1999-Present;
roject SUCCESS Counselor Supervision/ YLTA, WYLD'.CEQ

Determining the mission and purpose of the organization. Leading and inspiring all aspects of the organization
including planning, administering needs assessments, budgeting, programming, financial reporting, payroll,
resource management, human resources, fundraising, grant writing, social enterprise, public relations, special
events and the trainingand supervision of staff. Implementing the Evidence Based Intervention Project
SUCCESS at Lin-Wood Public School with fidelity. Supporting the mission of the organization and creating
sustainable model programs.

b.C.T.A.A. (On Campus Talking About Alcohol) - Plymouth. NH I 2008-Presenti
instructor Plymouth State University.

Facilitating the Evidence Based Intervention Prime for Life for University alcohol policy violators on a
bi-weekly basis.

jrhe Center for Adolescent Health/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic ̂  Plymouth. NH 2O06-2O10j
Director of Experiential Programming!



Implementation of culturally sensitive experiential programming for at-risk youth; including rock climbing,
backpacking, snowshoeing, white water rafting and service learning.

j\.D.A.P.T., Inc. * Lincoln, NH I 1992-1999!
Positive Youth Development specialist

Programming, planning and organizing field trips, mentoring, designing and building of a challenge course.
Working with children In grades 1-12 by developing and offering a uni.que after school and summer adventure
program.



SAU9

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Marissa Maitland Student Assistance

Coordinator

$40,000 100% $40,000

Sean O'Brien CEO Adapt, inc. (supervision

•& Training)

$75,000 10% $7,500

Rick Biche Principal, A. Crosby Kennett

Middle School

$85,374 0% 0

Kevin Carpenter Principal, Kennett High

School

$103,000 0% 0

Nicki Chewning Student Advocate and Eagle

Academy Director

$63,550 0% 0

Kevin Richard Superintendent, SAU U9 $131,127 0% 0


